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The English text of this annual report shall prevail over the Chinese text for the purpose of interpretation.
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Singamas Container Holdings Limited (the “Group”)
has been listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited since 1993. We are one of the world’s
leading container manufacturers and a major operator
of container depots and terminals in the Asian-Pacific
region. Our container factory and depot networks are
among the most comprehensive in the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC”).

Our manufacturing business is currently supported by
eleven factories in the PRC. Two new factories located
in Qidong, Nantong City, Jiangsu Province, the PRC for
producing dry freight containers, specialised containers
and refrigerated containers are in full operation. Besides,
another new factory in Qidong specialised in producing
offshore containers is currently under construction and is
expected to commence operation by mid-2014.

We manufacture a wide range of products including
dry freight containers, collapsible flatrack containers,
open top containers, bitutainer, refrigerated containers,
U.S. domestic containers, tank containers and other
specialised containers and container parts.

Our logistics business includes container depots/
terminals and logistics company, and is currently running
eleven container depots/terminals, eight at the major
ports in the PRC - Dalian, Tianjin, Qingdao, Qidong,
Shanghai, Ningbo, Fuzhou, and Xiamen, two in Hong
Kong and one in Laemchabang, Thailand. We also
operate a logistics company in Xiamen, the PRC.
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REVENUE
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Profit (loss) from operations
Profit (loss) attributable to
owners of the Company
Basic earnings (loss) per share (US cents)
Net asset value per share (US cents)
Equity attributable to owners
of the Company
Bank balances and cash
Total borrowings (Note)
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Total borrowings represent the aggregate amount of interest-bearing borrowings.
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PRODUCTION OUTPUT
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On behalf of the board of directors, | would like to present
the operating results of Singamas Container Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively,
the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2013.

During the past year, demand for new containers
remained soft due to lower growth in global trade and the
continuously depressed liner market. This trend directly
affected the performance of the Group, with consolidated
revenue for the year totalling US$1,282,988,000
(2012: US$1,536,608,000), and consolidated net
profit attributable to owners of the Company totalling
US$34,274,000 (2012: US$60,346,000). Basic earnings
per share were US1.42 cents, compared with US2.49
cents for 2012.

The decline in key performance indicators is consistent
with those of the Group’s peers, who have likewise been
hampered by the depressed market, which has been
further aggravated by stockpiling of new containers
during the first half year. With the modest demand, a
slow recovering global economy and excess supply of
containers in the low season, the traditional peak season

Singamas Container Holdings Limited + Annual Report 2013
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in the second half year failed to materialise. However, the
high new container inventory amounting to more than one
million twenty-foot equivalent units (“TEUS”) at its peak
during the second quarter of the year began to decline
to a more modest level of approximately 600,000 TEUs
by the end of 2013. This downward inventory trend is
expected to continue entering 2014, a positive indicator
of a market recovery.

Irrespective of market conditions, the Group has always
benefited from effective cost controls, by streamlining its
operations, ensuring that existing manufacturing facilities
continue to strive for higher efficiency and productivity.
Besides, the Group is in a strong financial position to
withstand a market downturn while at the same time able
to quickly seize opportunities during an upturn.

Despite the formidable challenges of the 2013 financial
year, positive developments towards the year end provide
cautious optimism that the container industry is beginning
to turn around. The further decline of new container
inventory levels, the gradually improving economic
environment, a rising need for replacement containers
and many new and large container vessel deliveries
scheduled from 2014 through to 2016 are all factors that
should help steer the industry away from the present
doldrums.

The Board proposes to pay a final dividend of HK1 cent
per ordinary share (2012: HK2 cents) for the year ended
31 December 2013. Together with an interim dividend of
HK3 cents per ordinary share (2012: HK4 cents), the total
dividend paid for the year is to be HK4 cents per ordinary
share (2012: HK6 cents). The dividend payout ratio for
the year approximates to 36.4% (2012: 31.0%).
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The softness in new container demand was reflected
in a revenue of US$1,253,879,000 for the reporting
year in contrast with US$1,506,200,000 in 2012. The
decline was also due to the lower average selling price
(“ASP”) and lower of both production and sales of
dry freight containers. Profit before taxation and non-
controlling interests amounted to US$46,688,000 against
US$96,687,000 in 2012.

Manufacturing continued to be the Group’s key revenue
driver, accounting for 98% of total revenue, similar to
the 2012 financial year. The Group produced a total of
525,449 TEUs by the end of the reporting year, compared
to 600,102 TEUs in 2012. Total sales volume reached
542,442 TEUs versus 571,634 TEUs in 2012. Revenue
contributions from dry freight containers and specialised
containers were 73.7% and 26.3% respectively, as
compared with 70.7% and 29.3% respectively in 2012.
The ASP of a 20-foot dry freight container averaged
US$2,195 compared with US$2,452 for 2012.

In respect of specialised containers, demand picked
up during the second half year, for both refrigerated
containers and 53’ US domestic containers. Moreover,
the Group has two to three months worth of orders
for both refrigerated containers and 53’ US domestic
containers on hand as at March 2014. Aside from
existing specialised containers, the Group has made
further headway in offshore containers by entering into a
joint venture with Modex Asia Limited (“Modex Asia”), a
Norwegian company that specialises in manufacturing,
trading and leasing of offshore container. A new company
called Qidong Singamas Offshore Equipment Co., Ltd
was formed to establish a new dedicated production line
in Qidong to manufacture offshore containers. Production
is expected to commence by mid-2014 and the company
will begin contributing to the Group in the second half of
2014,

10  singamas Container Holdings Limited -« Annual Report 2013
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Mindful of the need to fully optimise production, enhance
competitiveness and strengthen the Group’s financial
position, the Company has entered into a share transfer
agreement with Foshan Shunde Kanghong Investment
Co., Ltd. to dispose of its 100% equity interest in
Guangdong Shun An Da Pacific Container Co., Ltd.
(“SSPC”) back in May 2013. With the transaction
completed in August 2013, orders of dry freight and
specialised containers have been transferred to the
Huizhou and Qidong facilities respectively, thus the
Group’s client base has been well supported.

With respect to the Qidong facility, Phase 1, which
produces dry freight and specialised containers has
achieved operational breakeven point, while Phase 2
has completed producing several batches of refrigerated
containers during the year and is expected to achieve an
operational breakeven point in 2014. It is worth noting
that aside from being eco-friendly, the Qidong facilities
deliver higher efficiency through newly adopted integrated
production lines that reduce the need for manpower
by 30% to 40%. Highly efficient facilities remain the key
to success for the Group, enabling it to capture strong
demand once the market revives.
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Due to lower growth in global trade, revenue from this
segment stables at US$29,109,000 compared with
US$30,408,000 in 2012. Profit before taxation and non-
controlling interests amounted to US$10,459,000 which
included US$5,114,000 gain on disposal of a terminal
in Shunde. Profit before taxation and non-controlling
interests in 2012 was US$6,192,000, which included
US$2,833,000 from a gain following disposal of a depot
in Shanghai. The total number of containers handled
approximately 3,023,000 TEUs during the reporting year
against around 2,990,000 TEUs in 2012. Average daily
container storage rose to 96,200 TEUs compared with
94,000 TEUs in 2012.

To further enhance the logistics business, the Group
completed the acquisition of Shanghai Huasing
International Container Freight Transportation Co.,
Ltd. (“Huasing”) during the first quarter of 2013, a
company principally engaged in container depot and
related logistics services. By putting Singamas’ new
management and extensive customer networks into
Huasing, this acquisition has not only strengthened the
Group’s logistics operations, but can also potentially
deliver greater profits benefitting the entire Group.

According to industry estimates, global trade volume will
increase by up to 5% in 2014. During the same period,
the container liner industry is expected to exit its present
trough and gradually realise a turnaround towards the
second half of 2014, thus more positive developments for
the container industry are within sight.

During the Chinese New Year period, the Group took
the opportunity to conduct system upgrades and
maintenance at its production facilities to enhance
efficiency and realise cost savings, while more importantly
ensure that it is well prepared to adapt quickly to market
conditions, particularly during peak seasons.

Singamas Container Holdings Limited + Annual Report 2013
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With the goal of adapting to market conditions in mind,
the Group will seek to establish new business alliances.
In August 2013, the Group and Modex Asia commenced
its co-investment through the establishment of a joint
venture in Qidong to produce offshore containers (as
discussed in the section headed “Manufacturing”). In
19 February 2014, the Group has entered into a master
agreement and the related agreements with parties
(including Modex Asia and Euro Offshore Leasing AS
“Euro Offshore”) to obtain 26% of the enlarged issued
share capital of the newly restructured Modex Group
(Euro Offshore and Modex Asia became the wholly
owned subsidiaries of Modex Group). As Modex Group
specialises in offshore container leasing, trading and
manufacturing, management believes this investment has
good future prospect that would expand and diversify
the Group’s existing business which in turn create more
diverse revenue streams, bolster profitability and enhance
the Group’s market position as a whole.

Though the management is cautiously optimistic about
the prospects of the container industry, it is well aware
of the need to constantly adapt to market conditions
and capitalise on emerging opportunities. The disposal
of SSPC, the bolstering of productivity and efficiency via
new and upgraded eco-friendly production facilities, the
acquisition of Huasing to enhance the logistics business
and the abovementioned joint-venture partnership with
the Modex Group all underscore this understanding.
Given that the Group also enjoys sound financial health, it
is in a position of strength to move forward.
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As the new chairman of the Group, | would like to take
the opportunity to express my deep gratitude to my fellow
board members and the management team for their
unstinting support during the year. Certainly, the entire
workforce must also be applauded for their diligence in
ensuring the efficient and professional operation of the
Group. | would also like to offer my sincere appreciation
on behalf of the Group to all of our customers and
business partners for their loyalty amid the challenges of
2013.

Lastly, special acknowledgement must be expressed to
Mr Chang Yun Chung, who has served as the Chairman
of the Group for the past two decades, and whose
contributions have had an enduring and positive impact
on the Group. While having relinquished his role as
Chairman, Mr Chang has been serving as Honorary
Chairman of Singamas Container Holdings Limited since
May 2013. The Board of Directors trusts that he will
continue to provide valuable contributions to the Group in
his new capacity.

Teo Siong Seng
Chairman

Hong Kong, 18 March 2014
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The year 2013 saw soft demand for new
containers owing to a lower growth in global trade
and the continuously depressed liner market. How
has Singamas faced the softened demand and
tackled the resulting challenges?

Lower growth in global trade and the continuously
depressed liner market hit container customers’
confidence in placing orders, which lead to decline
in production/sales volume and average selling
price. Despite soft container demand, the Group
has always benefited from effective cost controls
and ensuring that existing manufacturing facilities
continue to be highly efficient and productive.
Besides, the Group is in a strong financial position
to withstand the market downturn.

In order to further streamline the operations, the
Group disposed Guangdong Shun An Da Pacific
Container Co., Ltd., which is a relatively ‘old’
factory engaged in the manufacture of dry freight
and specialised containers during 2013. Existing
orders of dry freight and specialised containers
have been transferred to Huizhou and Qidong
facilities respectively, thus the Group’s client base
has been well supported. The proceeds generated
from this disposal have further strength our cash
position.

Softened market demand for new containers has
led to a stockpiling of new containers during 2013,
what is the current new container inventory level in
the market? What is the order book looking like for
dry freight containers and specialised containers?

With the modest demand and excess supply
of containers in the low season has led to a
stockpiling of new containers during 2013. The
new container inventory reached its peak at
more than one million twenty-foot equivalent
units (“TEUS”) during second quarter 2013, and it
gradually reduced to 600,000 TEUs by the end of
2013 and further reduced to around 500,000 TEUs
by the end of February 2014.
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We currently have two months of orders on hand
for dry freight containers. For the specialised
containers, demand for 53’ US domestic
containers is particularly strong, with orders spread
to few months. Other specialised containers have
slightly more than one month of orders, which is in
line with the industry norm.

In view of higher profit margins enjoyed by
specialised containers, how does Singamas plan
to further expand this business in the long run?

We have put continuous effort into R&D for new
product development in order to meet with our
customers’ diverse requirements.

Look out for new market of specialised containers,
the Group has made further move by entering
into a joint venture with a Norwegian company
in August 2013 to establish a new dedicated
production facility in Qidong to manufacture
offshore containers. Production is expected to
start by mid-2014 and this investment will begin
contributing to the Group in the second half of
2014,

Logistics services of the Group reported an
improved performance in spite of the gloomy
industry environment. Any initiative was taken to
seize market opportunity and expand the Group’s
profit in the future?

The introduction of Qidong port improved the
overall performance of Logistics Services in 2013.
In view of increasing demand in logistics services
in China, we had acquired a Company in Shanghai
which principally engaged in container depot and
related logistics in 2013. By putting Singamas’ new
management and extensive customer networks
into this new depot, this acquisition can strengthen
the Group’s logistics operations and potentially
delivery greater profits for the Group.
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What are Singamas’ expectations for the global
trading environment during 20147 How is the
Group preparing to meet the anticipated rising
market demand in the future?

According to industry estimates, global trade
volume will increase by up to 5% in 2014. With
gradually improving economic environment and
expect market in US and Europe to improve, we
expect container industry is turning around. Based
on this expectation, we will continue to implement
our proven business model, ensure high level of
productivity and efficiency and to capture any
business opportunities in the coming year.

What is Singamas’ expectation for the vessels
delivery business in 20147

Based on industry publications, the scheduled
delivery of vessels would be around 200 fleets in
2014, with an estimated increase in total shipping
capacity of approximate 1.5 million twenty-foot
equivalent units (TEUs). Among 200 vessels to be
delivered in 2014, 27 of which has capacity of over
10,000 TEUs.

While cost of corten steel is the major determinant
of container price, please share your view on the
price trend of corten steel. What is your prediction
about the average selling price of containers in
20147

Corten steel is the major component in producing
dry freight container, its cost accounts for 51% of
total dry freight container production costs in 2013,
is the major determinant of container price. Corten
steel price which experienced 10% decline in 2013
became stabilised by the end of the 2013 and
gradually increased starting from 2014. We expect
the corten steel price will steadily increase in 2014,
which in turn would lead to a gradual pick-up in
the average selling price of containers.
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Phases 1 and 2 of the Qidong facility have
achieved respectable development in 2013. What
are Singamas’ expectations for the revenue and
profit contribution of the Qidong facility to the
Group in 20147

Phase 1 of Qidong facility which produces dry
freight containers has achieved operational
breakeven point in 2013, while Phase 2 has
completed producing several batches of
refrigerated containers during the year. Although
Phase 2 incurred start-up losses in 2013 but we
expect it can achieve an operational breakeven
point in 2014. Both phases would then achieve
positive revenue and make a profit contribution to
the Group in 2014.
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The Honorary Chairman and Directors at the date of this
annual report are as follows:

HONORARY CHAIRMAN

Mr. Chang Yun Chung
(Appointed on 27 May 2013)

DIRECTORS

Mr. Teo Siong Seng "°  Chairman and

Chief Executive Officer
Executive Director
Executive Director
Non-executive Director
Non-executive Director

(Appointed on 2 July 2013)

Mr. Chan Kwok Leung "
Mr. Teo Tiou Seng *

Mr. Kuan Kim Kin #

Mr. Tan Chor Kee

Mr. Cheng Fu Kwok, Independent
David Non-executive Director

Mr. Lau Ho Kit, Ivan #* Independent
Non-executive Director

Mr. Ong Ka Thai © Independent
Non-executive Director

Mr. Yang, Victor # Independent

Non-executive Director

# Audit Committee Member

" Management Committee Member
© Nomination Committee Member

4 Remuneration Committee Member

Brief biographical details of the Honorary Chairman and
Directors at the date of this annual report are as follows:

HONORARY CHAIRMAN

Mr. Chang Yun Chung (also known as Mr. Teo Woon
Tiong), aged 95, the former Chairman of the Board, was
appointed on 20 April 1993 but was then appointed as
Honorary Chairman of the Company on 27 May 2013
following his retirement as a director of the Company.
Mr. Chang started his shipping career in Singapore in
1949 and is the founder of Pacific International Lines
(Private) Limited (“PIL”), the controlling and substantial
shareholder of the Company as defined under the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
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Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Mr. Chang is the father
of Mr. Teo Siong Seng and Mr. Teo Tiou Seng, directors
of the Company. Mr. Chang graduated from the Xiamen
Datung College. Mr. Chang is the Chairman of the PIL
Group of companies in Singapore, which is engaged in
shipping and related businesses. He is also the Chairman
of Pacific International Lines (H.K.) Limited (“PILHK”) of
Hong Kong, a subsidiary of PIL, Maya Corporation Pte.
Ltd. of Singapore, Maya Manufacturing & Trading Co.
(M) Sdn. Bhd., Maya Plastic Sdn. Bhd. and Malaysia
Shipping Corporation Sdn. Bhd. of Malaysia, Eastern
Maritime (Thailand) Ltd. and Pacific Seatran Lines Ltd.
of Thailand. Other than PILHK, the rest of the aforesaid
companies are third parties independent of the Company
and connected persons of the Company.

Mr. Teo Siong Seng, B.Sc. (Naval Architect), aged 59,
was appointed on 20 April 1993, became the President
and Chief Executive Officer of the Company on 1 February
1997 and was appointed as Chairman of the Company on
27 May 2013. Mr. Teo is a director of various subsidiaries
of the Company and he is also the younger brother of
Mr. Teo Tiou Seng. Mr. Teo started his shipping career with
PIL Group in Singapore since 1979 and was appointed
the managing director of PIL in October 1992. He is an
executive director of various PIL subsidiaries and joint
venture companies whose activities include shipowning,
liner shipping, ship agencies, freight forwarding, container
manufacturing, ships recycling, marine services,
container depot/terminal operation, warehousing, logistics
park, real estate and travel. He is currently an independent
non-executive director of China COSCO Holdings
Company Limited and China Shipping Container Lines
Company Limited. He is the Chairman of The Standard
Steamship Owners’ Protection and Indemnity Association
(Asia) Ltd., Singapore Maritime Institute Governing Council
and Vice Chairman of Singapore Business Federation. He
is also a Nominated Member of Parliament (NMP) of
Singapore and the Immediate Past President of Singapore
Chinese Chamber of Commerce & Industry. Mr. Teo is the
Honorary Citizen of Foshan City (Guangdong Province)
and Yixing City (Jiangsu Province) of China and Council
Member of China Overseas Exchange Association. Mr.
Teo is also the Honorary Consul of The United Republic of
Tanzania in Singapore.
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Mr. Chan Kwok Leung, aged 56, was appointed on 1
March 2012. Mr. Chan is the Chief Operating Officer of
the Company and is a director of various subsidiaries of
the Company. He joined Eng Kong Container Services
Limited, a subsidiary of the Company, on 1 July 1994.
He has more than 34 years of combined experience
in marketing, container depot management, container
inspection and repair, and container leasing. Prior to
joining the Company, he was the Technical Director of
Unicon International Ltd., a container surveying company
with major interests in the Far East.

Mr. Teo Tiou Seng, aged 61, was appointed on 26
June 1996 as Executive Director of the Company and is
also a director of various subsidiaries of the Company.
Mr. Teo is the elder brother of Mr. Teo Siong Seng and
has been engaging in shipping business since 1977. Mr.
Teo graduated and holds a Master Degree in Business
Administration from the University of Western Ontario,
Richard Ivey School of Business — the leading business
school in Canada. He has more than 31 years of working
experience in container transport business and is also a
director of PIL and the managing director of PILHK.

Mr. Kuan Kim Kin, aged 65, was appointed as
Non-executive Director of the Company on 15 July 1998.
Mr. Kuan joined PIL in 1994 as the General Manager of
the Finance Division and has been an executive director
of the Finance Division of PIL since 7 June 2004. He also
holds directorship in various PIL's Group of Companies.
Other than their relationship with PIL, these various PILs
Group of Companies are third parties independent of the
Company and connected persons of the Company. Prior
to joining PIL, he held a number of senior financial and
accounting positions across diverse business groups,
including two public listed companies in Malaysia.
Mr. Kuan is a fellow member of The Chartered Institute of
Management Accountants (United Kingdom).
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Mr. Tan Chor Kee, aged 62, was appointed as Non-
executive Director of the Company on 2 July 2013. Mr.
Tan graduated from the University of Singapore with a first
class honour degree in Mechanical Engineering. He has
more than 36 years of experience in shipping particularly
in equipment management, costs control, corporate
planning, logistics operations, agency and liner business.
Mr. Tan is currently the Deputy Managing Director of PIL.

Mr. Cheng Fu Kwok, David, aged 65, was appointed
as Independent Non-executive Director of the Company
on 1 November 2012. Mr. Cheng graduated in 1975
from the University of Hong Kong with a Bachelor (Honors)
Degree in Social Sciences. He has extensive experience
in banking, corporate finance and shipfinance. Mr. Cheng
is currently the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of
Credit Agricole Asia Shipfinance Limited. He is also the
Head of Shipfinance in Asia of Crédit Agricole CIB. Credit
Agricole Asia Shipfinance Limited and Crédit Agricole
CIB are third parties independent of the Company and
connected persons of the Company.

Mr. Cheng is a member of the Working Group on
Transportation under the Hong Kong Economic
Development Commission, and also a member of the
Hong Kong Maritime Industry Council of Transport and
Housing Bureau, Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region.

Mr. Lau Ho Kit, Ivan, aged 55, was appointed as
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company on
1 March 2011. Mr. Lau is a Certified Public Accountant
(Practising) in Hong Kong, a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and The Institute
of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales. Mr. Lau
graduated from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University
with a Master Degree in Professional Accounting. He
has extensive experience in accounting and financial
management. Mr. Lau is currently an independent non-
executive director of CCT Land Holdings Limited (formerly
known as CCT Tech International Limited), a company
listed on the main board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). He is also
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an independent non-executive director of Glory Mark
Hi-Tech (Holdings) Limited, a company listed on the
growth enterprise market of the Stock Exchange. CCT
Land Holdings Limited and Glory Mark Hi-Tech (Holdings)
Limited are third parties independent of the Company
and connected persons of the Company.

Mr. Ong Ka Thai, aged 59, was appointed as
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company
since 17 May 1997. Mr. Ong is currently the Chairman
of various companies including Ong Pacific (H.K.) Ltd.,
Ong First Tradition Pte. Ltd., Ong Commodities Pte. Ltd.
and Ong Pacific Capital Ltd.. These companies are third
parties independent of the Company and connected
persons of the Company. Mr. Ong graduated from the
University of California at Los Angeles with a Bachelor of
Arts Degree majoring in Economics, had served as the
CEO for a number of multinational joint ventures since
then. Mr. Ong is currently an independent non-executive
director of Shanghai International Shanghai Growth
Investment Limited, a company listed on the main board
of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Ong was previously an
independent non-executive director of China Bohai Bank
Limited. Except for the provision of banking facilities by
China Bohai Bank Limited to subsidiaries of the Group,
Shanghai International Shanghai Growth Investment
Limited and China Bohai Bank Limited are third parties
independent of the Company and connected persons of
the Company. Mr. Ong has over 37 years of experience in
the manufacturing, corporate and trade finance, regional
equity, futures and commodities trading, investment
banking and corporate advisory services, as well as direct
and private equity investment.
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Mr. Yang, Victor, aged 68, was appointed as
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company
on 15 April 2008. Mr. Yang was a founding partner of
Boughton Peterson Yang Anderson, Solicitors, Hong
Kong and he is also a qualified lawyer in Canada and the
United Kingdom. Mr. Yang has over 40 years experience
in legal practice primarily in the areas of corporate
finance, commercial law, mergers, acquisitions and
taxation. He is presently a Director and a past governor
of the Canadian Chamber of Commerce, a director of the
Hong Kong Foundation for UBC Limited and a member of
the University of British Columbia, Dean of Law’s Council
of Advisors. Mr. Yang was a past board member of the
Canadian International School of Hong Kong Limited and
a past member of the Major Sports Events Committee
of the Home Affairs Bureau, Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region. Mr. Yang is also an independent
non-executive director of China Agri-Industries Holdings
Limited and Playmates Toys Limited, both of which
are listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange.
Mr. Yang remained as a non-executive director of Lei
Shing Hong Limited after the company privatized in
March 2008 and resigned as an independent non-
executive director of Media Chinese International Limited
as of 1 October 2009. China Agri-Industries Holdings
Limited, Playmates Toys Limited, Lei Shing Hong Limited
and Media Chinese International Limited, all are third
parties independent of the Company and connected
persons of the Company.

All Directors, except for the managing director of the
Company who shall subject to retirement by rotation
at least once every three years but shall be eligible for
re-election, are subject to retirement and re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting in accordance
with the Company'’s articles of association. For details
of their respective profiles, please refer to the circular
accompanied with this annual report.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The senior management at the date of this annual report
are as follows:

Chairman and

Chief Executive Officer
Chief Operating Officer
Senior Vice President

Mr. Teo Siong Seng

Mr. Chan Kwok Leung
Mr. Chao Chun Yen,

Winston
Ms. Chung Pui King, Chief Financial Officer
Rebecca (Appointed on 2 February
2013) and Company Secretary
(Appointed on 10 September
2013)
Mr. Zhao Wei Vice President (Appointed on
5 June 2013)

Details of the senior management at the date of this
annual report are as follows:

Mr. Teo Siong Seng, was appointed as President and
Chief Executive Officer of the Company on 1 February
1997, then appointed as Chairman of the Company on
27 May 2013. Please refer to the Directors section for
details.

Mr. Chan Kwok Leung, was appointed as Executive
Vice President of Marketing and General Manager — Hong
Kong Container Depot and Terminal Operations on 1 July
1994 and was appointed as Chief Operating Officer of
the Company on 1 November 2012. Please refer to the
Directors section for details.

Mr. Chao Chun Yen, Winston, B. Shipping and
Transportation Management, aged 64, Senior Vice
President, joined the Company on 15 November 2012
and is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the
Company. Mr. Chao has more than 31 years’ experience
in shipping management and related businesses. Prior
to joining the Company, he was an executive director of
Pacific International Lines (China) Ltd.
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Ms. Chung Pui King, Rebecca, M.B.A., HKICPA,
FCCA, aged 45, was appointed as Chief Financial Officer
of the Company on 2 February 2013 and was appointed
as Company Secretary of the Company on 10 September
2013. Ms. Chung joined the Group on 1 January 1996.
She has more than 22 years of combined experience in
public accountancy, sourcing and manufacturing.

Mr. Zhao Wei, B. Economics, MBA, EMBA, aged 47,
Vice President, joined the company on 5 June 2013 and
also a director of certain subsidiaries of the company. Mr.
Zhao graduated and holds the MBA and EMBA degree
from University of Durham and University of Warwick
separately — both the leading business schools in the
UK. He has more than 20-years working experiences
in shipping management and the other logistics related
business. Prior to joining the company, Mr. Zhao was the
Regional General Manager of TNT Express International
(China) Ltd.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PRACTICES

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the Company
has complied with all the applicable principles and code
provisions of the revised Corporate Governance Code
(“the Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities (“Listing Rules”) on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock
Exchange”) and also adopted certain recommended best
practices of the Code save for the exceptions explained

below:

(1)

Code Provision A.2.1 — As Mr. Teo Siong Seng
took up both roles as the Chairman of the Board
and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company,
the roles of chairman and chief executive officer
are not separated. The Board considers that this
structure has the advantage of a strong leadership
which is conducive to making and implementing
decisions efficiently and consistently;

Code Provision A.6.7 — Due to other commitments,
a Non-executive Director and an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company had not
attended the 2013 AGM; and

Code Provision A.1.7 — For the purpose of
approving the continuing connected transactions
as more particularly announced by the Company
on 30 and 31 December 2013 respectively, the
board papers were circulated to the directors
(including the independent non-executive directors)
for consideration and approval in lieu of a physical
meeting for the reasons that: (a) the papers were
circulated to all the directors prior to their approval
and sufficient time and opportunity had been
provided to each of them to consider the matters
contemplated therein; (b) the matters essentially
referred to the renewal of certain pre-existing
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continuing connected transactions only; (c) none
of the directors requested for a physical meeting
for the purpose of considering and approving the
matters; and (d) Mr. Teo Siong Seng, Mr. Teo Tiou
Seng, Mr. Kuan Kim Kin and Mr. Tan Chor Kee, who
were considered to be interested in the matters,
abstained from voting at the board resolutions.

The board of directors of the Company (the
“Board”/“Directors”) believes that appropriate corporate
governance practices are essential for the Company
to enhance its accountability and transparency so as
to achieve a balance of the interests of shareholders,
customers, employees and investment partners of
the Company in all material respects. Accordingly,
the Company aims at maintaining high standards of
corporate governance practices.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
(the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules as the code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions. Having made specific enquiry of
the Directors, all of the Directors have complied with, for
any part of the accounting period covered by this report,
the required standard set out in the Model Code.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Apart from its statutory and fiduciary responsibilities,
the Board is responsible for reviewing the financial
performance of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Group”) and approving and monitoring
the Group’s strategic plans, major investments, funding
proposals and risk management policies. The Board is
also responsible for monitoring managerial performance,
achieving return for the shareholders of the Company
each year, and promoting good corporate governance
by reviewing the recommendations made from audit
committee (“Audit Committee”), management committee,
nomination committee (“Nomination Committee”) and
remuneration committee (“Remuneration Committee”) of
the Company.
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The Company’s articles of association (“Articles”) provide
that if a director has a conflict of interest in a material
matter, such director must abstain from voting and not
be counted in quorum. For the purpose of approving the
continuing connected transactions as more particularly
announced by the Company on 30 and 31 December
2013 respectively, the board papers were circulated to
the directors (including the independent non-executive
directors) for consideration and approval in lieu of a
physical meeting for the reasons that: (a) the papers were
circulated to all the directors prior to their approval and
sufficient time and opportunity had been provided to each
of them to consider the matters contemplated therein; (b)
the matters essentially referred to the renewal of certain
pre-existing continuing connected transactions only; (c)
none of the directors requested for a physical meeting for
the purpose of considering and approving the matters;
and (d) Mr. Teo Siong Seng, Mr. Teo Tiou Seng, Mr. Kuan
Kim Kin and Mr. Tan Chor Kee, who were considered to
be interested in the matters, abstained from voting at the
board resolutions.

The implementation of daily operations is generally or
specifically delegated to the management but Board
approval is required for material transactions such as
acquisitions and disposals of assets of the Group.

The Board currently comprises three executive Directors,
two non-executive Directors and four independent
non-executive Directors. No alternative Director was
appointed during 2013. The Board members for the year
ended 31 December 2013 and up to the date are:

Executive Directors

Chang Yun Chung (also known as Teo Woon Tiong)
(Chairman) (Retired on 27 May 2013)

Teo Siong Seng (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

Chan Kwok Leung (Chief Operating Officer)

Hsueh Chao En (Retired on 27 May 2013)

Tam Shuk Ping, Sylvia (Resigned on 2 February 2013)

Teo Tiou Seng

Non-executive Directors

Kuan Kim Kin
Tan Chor Kee (Appointed on 2 July 2013)
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Independent non-executive Directors

Cheng Fu Kwok, David
Lau Ho Kit, lvan

Ong Ka Thai

Yang, Victor

The biographies of the Directors are set out on pages 19
to 24 of this annual report. The relationships (including
financial, business, family or other material or relevant
relationships) among members of the Board are also
disclosed therein.

The Board held four meetings in 2013. The Board would
meet more frequently as and when required. The 2013
annual general meeting (“2013 AGM”) at which the
external auditors attended was convened on 27 May
2013. No other general meeting of the Company was
held in 2013.

Details of Directors’ attendance at the Board meetings
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held for the year ended 31 December 2013 and the 2013 =+—HILFENEFEERL T —=FK
AGM of the Company are set out below: REAFRG ZHFE -
Number of attendance
HE R
Board 2013 AGM
meetings —F—=K
Name of Directors EEna ExgEgR BREAEXE
Chang Yun Chung R 2/4 N/A 7~
(Retired on 27 May 2013) (RZF—=FAA=1F+HRFE)
Teo Siong Seng SRR 4/4 1/1
Chan Kwok Leung PoR B AR 4/4 1/1
Hsueh Chao En BER 0/4 N/A &
(Retired on 27 May 2013) (R=ZF—=FAA=++HEF)
Tam Shuk Ping, Sylvia B 0/4 N/A i A
(Resigned on 2 February 2013) (R=ZF—=4F—H = HFT)
Teo Tiou Seng sREARE 4/4 1/1
Kuan Kim Kin BA R 4/4 0/1
Tan Chor Kee BRIEE 2/4 N/A TiE A
(Appointed on 2 July 2013) (R=ZF—=F+ A -HEZF)
Cheng Fu Kwok, David 20 55 4/4 1/1
Lau Ho Kit, lvan G BIEES 4/4 1/1
Ong Ka Thai FRE 4/4 1/1
Yang, Victor 15 & 4/4 0/1
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As part of an ongoing process of directors’ training, the
Directors are updated with latest developments regarding
the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory
requirements from time to time to ensure compliance of
the same by all Directors. All Directors are encouraged
to attend external forum or training courses on relevant
topics which may count towards continuous professional
development training.

Pursuant to the Code, Directors should participate in
continuous professional development to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills. This is to ensure that
their contribution to the Board remains informed and
relevant. For the year ended 31 December 2013, all
Directors have participated in appropriate continuous
professional development activities either by attending
training courses or by reading materials relevant to the
Company’s business or to the Directors’ duties and
responsibilities.

The participation by individual Directors in 2013 is
recorded in the table below:

FRUESHERI 280 EFETKE
A B LT AR Bl S BB R EE B AR E 2 R 3
RER  UBRREREFETEREE - A2
RSB ERESHFIINTARMRA BERE 2 EAK
SRIFIIRE - ERFETXRERIEI A

7 e

RIESTR|  EEEDMEBETERR  UEE
WEHHMB R UHEREEEEEHED
HEMMYEENBELATHESSELRE
BeBz2—T—=F+-_A=+—HILFE"
FREREAHFEEIIREXBERRAF
(NN ESBELBEREERNSE A R2EE
B EEERREEIED -

EREEFRN _E—=—FH2HEIENELENT
*x:

Participation in Continuous
Professional Development in 2013
—E-ZHSHEZBBEERER

Attending expert

briefings/seminars/

Reading conferences

materials HEERENE

Name of Directors EEaE EER mEtE '
Teo Siong Seng SRINER v
Chan Kwok Leung PoR B AR v
Teo Tiou Seng SRR v

Kuan Kim Kin iy v

Tan Chor Kee PRAE & v

(Appointed on 2 July 2013) (R-F—=F+HA_AEZLF)

Cheng Fu Kwok, David %R Y 4

Lau Ho Kit, lvan £ 4

Ong Ka Thai FTRE v v

Yang, Victor &R v v
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

As Mr. Teo Siong Seng took up both roles as the
Chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive Officer
of the Company, the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer are not separated. The Board considers
that this structure has the advantage of a strong and
consistent leadership which is conducive to making and
implementing decisions efficiently and consistency.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

According to the service agreements entered into
between each of the non-executive Director or
independent non-executive Director and the Company,
the term of appointment is generally for one year but
subject to retirement and shall be eligible for re-election
at annual general meetings (“AGM”) under the Articles.

Under the Articles, every Director, other than the
Managing Director who shall be subject to retirement at
least once every three years, shall retire from office at
AGM but shall be eligible for re-election.

Under the Articles, any Director appointed by the Board
to fill a casual vacancy shall be subject to election by
shareholders at the first general meeting of the Company
after such Director’s appointment.

The Company’s circular of its AGM contained detailed
information on election of Directors, including detailed
biographies, interests, and (where appropriate)
independence of all Directors standing for re-election.

Pursuant to the requirement in the Listing Rules, the
Company has received a written confirmation from each
independent non-executive Director of his independence
to the Company. The Company considers all of the
independent non-executive Directors to be independent.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

EEERETHNEEE

1. Audit Committee 1. BRZEEE
The Board has established the Audit Committee BEERORUBRLEGHEUNENE
to investigate and handle matters within its terms BIRBEHBESEENNERSIE - K
of reference and make recommendations to MESSRHARNNSER @%
the Board for any necessary improvement. The “EE e EBEENTIERREB
full terms of reference of the Audit Committee Uk (http://www.hkexnews.hk) & 7K A
are available on the Stock Exchange’s website A)# (http://www.singamas.com) ©
(http://www.hkexnews.hk) and the Company’s
website (http://www.singamas.com).
The current members of the Audit Committee FEZEZ B R AKE BIEMUEIEH
include two independent non-executive Directors, TEE  DRIRJAHREE (F/E) R
namely, Mr. Lau Ho Kit, lvan (Chairman) and EREE - UR—RIFFNITES - iR
Mr. Yang, Victor, and a non-executive Director, RS o REEIERN R RIIRRINSZE
namely, Mr. Kuan Kim Kin. None of them is a EEIRIES R A °
former partner of the existing external auditors of
the Company.
The Chairman of the Audit Committee reports the BReg@kt FRZESIFEENES
findings and recommendations to the Board after DERAERRER -
each meeting.
The Audit Committee has regular meetings at least ERZEETHRITER  KOEFM
twice a year. In 2013, a total of three meetings ReMRZEBE—=F BERZEZELHIH
were convened and held with satisfactory RBIT=RGH HAHFEESARE -
attendance. The details of Audit Committee RZZE—=F BRBZZEGKEN
members’ attendance in 2013 are as follows: HE R EFEIE AT
Attendance
HEE
(in person)
(RABFERE)
Committee members FEENE
Lau Ho Kit, lvan (Chairman) RIS (/) 3/3
Kuan Kim Kin BAsR R SE 3/3
Yang, Victor S EEA A 3/3

ERZEEHERGEREERMETH
BE  -BRZEGANEERRANMA
SRR REREMEM -

The Audit Committee is provided with sufficient
resources to discharge its duties. The Audit
Committee is accountable to the Board and
minutes of meetings are circulated to the Board for
information.
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The following is a summary of the work of the Audit
Committee during the year under review:

(@) reviewed the Group’s consolidated financial
reports for the year ended 31 December
2012 and for the six months ended 30 June
2013;

(b) reviewed the external auditors’ statutory
audit plan and the letters of representation;

(©) reviewed the findings and recommendations
of the internal auditors;

(d)  considered and approved the 2013 audit
fees and terms of engagement for the
external auditors;

(e) reviewed the “Continuing Connected
Transactions” set forth on pages 49 to 56 of
this annual report; and

4] reviewed the effectiveness of the internal
control and risk management systems of the
Group.

On 17 March 2014, the Audit Committee met to
review the 2013 consolidated financial statements,
including the accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group, in conjunction with external
auditors. Based on this review and discussions
with the management and external auditors,
the Audit Committee endorsed the accounting
treatment adopted by the Company and had,
to the best of its ability, assured itself that the
disclosure of the financial information in this report
complies with the applicable accounting standards
and Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules. The Audit
Committee therefore recommended the Board’s
approval of the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2013 for public
release.
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The Audit Committee also recommended the
re-appointment of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
as the Group’s external auditors for 2014 and
that the related resolution shall be put forth for
shareholders’ consideration and approval at the
2014 AGM.

Nomination Committee

The Board has established the Nomination
Committee on 27 March 2012 for nominating
potential candidates for directorship, reviewing
the nomination of Directors, assessing the
independence of each independent non-executive
Director and making recommendations to the
Board on such appointments. The full terms
of reference of the Nomination Committee are
available on the Stock Exchange’s website
(http://www.hkexnews.hk) and the Company’s
website (http://www.singamas.com).

The current members of the Nomination Committee
include one executive director and Chairman of the
Board, namely, Mr. Teo Siong Seng (Chairman) and
two independent non-executive Directors, namely,
Mr. Lau Ho Kit, lvan and Mr. Ong Ka Thai.

The Chairman of the Nomination Committee
reports the findings and recommendations to the
Board after each meeting.
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In 2013, the Nomination Committee met once and RIE—=F REZELEE—KX
attendance of individual members at Nomination HERK B EREGWAT :
Committee meeting in the year is summarised
below:
Attendance
HE=E
(in person)
(RABEHLF)
Committee members FEENE
Chang Yun Chung (Chairman) s (FE) 1/1
(also known as Teo Woon Tiong) (R-F—=%#7H 1+ HRIF)
(Retired on 27 May 2013)
Teo Siong Seng (Chairman) SRINEE (F/E) N/A 7~ A
(Appointed 27 May 2013) (R-F—=FFH—++HEZT)
Lau Ho Kit, lvan EIEIRES 1/1
Ong Ka Thai FRE 1/1
The Nomination Committee is provided with REZEGYEHGEAZERUEITA
sufficient resources to discharge its duties. The BE REZESANESFTZARRA
Nomination Committee is accountable to the Board SR RBERRESTSEMN -

and minutes of meetings/resolutions are circulated
to the Board for information.

The following is a summary of the work of the FEEFA - IRRZESN TERIT

Nomination Committee during the year under N

review:

(@)  reviewed the structure, size and composition @ ®BER-ZE—=FNLA—BEH#
of the Board according to the amendments BEEEZ BT LA &
to the Listing Rules to be adopted on NEELMER - ABRAL
1 September 2013 regarding board diversity; WHERKAEEEFEKE ST
and approved and adopted the Board {EEIBER

Diversity Policy;

(b)  approved and adopted the revised Terms of b)) HAERKMKBHEDIEIIREEE
Reference for the Nomination Committee; SHEEGE AR
and

(c)  considered the appointment of Mr. Tan Chor ) EBERZEAMRBELEE(EREAE]D
Kee (“Mr. Tan”) as non-executive Director; BB IENITES ©
and
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All new appointments and re-appointments of
Directors are based on the following criteria:

° Integrity
° Independent mindedness
o Possession of core competencies that

meet the current needs of the Company
and the ability to complement the skills and
competencies of the existing Directors

° Readiness to commit time and effort to carry
out duties and responsibilities effectively

o A good track record of experience at a
senior level in corporations/organisations

° Financial knowledge

During the year under review, Mr. Tan was
appointed as non-executive Director on 2 July
2013. The Nomination Committee considered
Mr. Tan’s academic and professional background
and based on the above-mentioned criteria,
the Nomination Committee recommended the
appointment of Mr. Tan as a non-executive Director
to the Board. The Board then approved Mr. Tan’s
appointment after due consideration.

The Company’s circular of its forthcoming AGM
contained detailed information on election of
Directors, including detailed biographies, interests,
and (where appropriate) independence of all
Directors standing for re-election.
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The Board has adopted a Board Diversity Policy
effective from 1 September 2013 (“Policy”), details
of which are summarised as follows:

(@) In considering the Board’s composition,
a wider range of perspectives, including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length
of service of will be duly considered in the
selection of candidates.

(b)  All Board appointments will be based
on meritocracy, and candidates will be
considered against objective criteria.

() To ensure the effectiveness of the policy, the
Nomination Committee will review, discuss
any revisions that may be required, and
recommend any such revisions to the Board
for consideration and approval.

Remuneration Committee

The Board has established Remuneration
Committee to make recommendation on the
Company’s remuneration policy and structure
for all remuneration of Directors and senior
management. No Director and senior management
can determine his own remuneration. The full
terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee
are available on the Stock Exchange’s website
(http://www.hkexnews.hk) and the Company’s
website (http://www.singamas.com).

The current members of the Remuneration
Committee include two independent non-executive
Directors, namely, Mr. Yang, Victor (Chairman) and
Mr. Ong Ka Thai, and a non-executive Director,
namely, Mr. Kuan Kim Kin.
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The Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
reports the findings and recommendations to the
Board after each meeting.

In 2013, the Remuneration Committee met two
times and attendance of individual members at
Remuneration Committee meetings in the year is
summarised below:
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Attendance
H =
(in person)
(RABFERE)

Committee members ZEENE
Yang, Victor (Chairman) BER(FE) 2/2
Ong Ka Thai FRE 2/2
Kuan Kim Kin A SR 2/2

The remuneration Committee is provided with
sufficient resources to discharge its duties. The
Remuneration Committee is accountable to the
Board and minutes of meetings are circulated to
the Board for information.

The following is a summary of the work of the
Remuneration Committee during the year under
review:

(@) reviewed and made recommendations to
the Board on the Company’s Directors’ fees
for the financial year of 2013;

(b) reviewed and approved the salary
adjustment of the Company’s executive
Directors and senior management staff;

(c) reviewed and approved compensation
payable to salaried Directors and executives
in connection with any loss or termination of
their office or appointment;

(d)  reviewed and approved the Company’s
annual performance-based bonus policy and
payments;
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(e) evaluated tax impact of the proposed
employment model from Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu; and

4] reviewed the service agreement of
executives under the proposed employment
model.

The Remuneration Committee is delegated to
be responsible for determining the remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors and
senior management, including benefits in kind,
pension rights and compensation payments,
including any compensation payable for loss
or termination of their office or appointment, to
make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration of non-executive Directors and to
consider salaries paid by comparable companies,
time commitment and responsibilities and
employment conditions elsewhere in the Group.

Details of each Director’s remuneration and any
remuneration payable to members of senior
management for the year under review are set out
on pages 176 to 178 of this annual report.

Corporate Governance Functions

No corporate governance committee has been
established. The Board is responsible for the
corporate governance functions with the following
duties:

(@ to develop and review the Company’s
policies and practices on corporate
governance and make recommendations;

(b)  to review and monitor the training and
continuous professional development of
Directors;

(¢) to review and monitor the Company’s
policies and practices on compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements;
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(d)  to develop, review and monitor the code
of conduct and compliance manual (if any)
applicable to employees and Directors;

(e)  to review the Company’s compliance with
the Code and disclosure in the Corporate
Governance Report; and

) such other corporate governance duties
and functions set out in the Code (as
amended from to time) for which the Board
is responsible.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The Company’s Audit Committee has recommended
to the Board that, subject to shareholders’ approval at
the forthcoming AGM, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu be re-
appointed as the external auditors for 2014.

During the year under review, the fees paid to the
Company’s external Hong Kong auditors for audit work
amounted to HK$2,660,000 and for non-audit and
review activities amounted to HK$437,000 (including
HK$240,000 for interim review, HK$40,000 for tax review
and HK$157,000 for other related services).

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Lam Suk Nga (“Ms. Lam”) was appointed as the
company secretary of the Company on 2 February 2013
but resigned on 10 September 2013. Following the
resignation of Ms. Lam, Ms. Chung Pui King, Rebecca
(“Ms. Chung”)(a certified public accountant), who was
appointed as the company secretary of the Company on
the even date. Ms. Chung is currently the Chief Financial
Officer of the Company. The biographical details of Ms.
Chung are set out under the section headed “Honorary
Chairman, Directors and Senior Management Profile”.

The appointment and dismissal of the company secretary
of the Company were approved by the Board via a
physical Board meeting.
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STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’
RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

All Directors acknowledge that they are responsible for
overseeing the preparation of financial statements of each
financial period, which give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Group and of the results and cash
flow for that period. In preparing the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2013, the Directors
have selected suitable accounting policies and applied
them consistently, adopted all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards which are in conformity
to the International Financial Reporting Standards, made
judgments and estimates that are prudent and reasonable
and prepared the accounts on the going concern basis.

The Board, through the Audit Committee, has conducted
annual reviews of the effectiveness of the system
of internal controls covering all controls, including
financial, operational and compliance controls, broad-
based risk management processes, and physical and
information system security of selected operating units
of the Company. No suspected frauds and irregularities,
internal control deficiencies or suspected infringement
of laws, rules and regulations have come to the Audit
Committee’s attention to cause the Audit Committee to
believe that the system of internal controls is inadequate.
The Board, through the review of the Audit Committee, is
satisfied that the Group has fully complied with the Code
provisions on internal controls during the year under
review.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

The auditors’ responsibility is stated on pages 73 to 74
under the “Independent Auditor’s Report” section.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

1.

Procedures for shareholders to
convene a general meeting

Shareholders holding not less than 5% of the total
voting rights of all shareholders of the Company
having a right to vote at general meetings can
deposit a written request at 19/F., Rykadan Capital
Tower, 135 Hoi Bun Road, Kowloon, Hong Kong,
the registered office of the Company, for the
attention of the Company Secretary.

The written request must state the general nature
of the business to be dealt with at the meeting,
signed by the shareholders concerned and may
consist of several documents in like form, each
signed by one or more of those shareholders.

Procedures for putting forward
proposals at AGM

Shareholders holding not less than 2.5% of the
total voting rights of all shareholders having at the
date of the request the right to vote at the AGM; or
not less than 50 shareholders holding shares in the
Company who have a right to vote at the resolution
of the AGM can submit a written request to move
a resolution at the AGM.

The written request must state the resolution,
signed by all the shareholders concerned and may
consist of several documents in like form (which
between them contain the signatures of all the
shareholders concerned).

The written request must be deposited at
19/F., Rykadan Capital Tower, 135 Hoi Bun Road,
Kowloon, Hong Kong, the registered office of
the Company, for the attention of the Company
Secretary not less than six weeks before the
meeting to which it relates or if later, the time at
which notice is given of that meeting.
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Shareholders holding not less than 2.5% of the
total voting rights of all shareholders having a
relevant right to vote, or at least 50 shareholders
who have a relevant right to vote, may request
the Company to circulate, to shareholders of the
Company entitled to receive notice of a general
meeting, a statement of not more than 1,000
words with respect to (a) a matter mentioned in
a proposed resolution to be dealt with at that
meeting, or (b) other business to be dealt with at
that meeting. The request must be deposited at
19/F., Rykadan Capital Tower, 135 Hoi Bun Road,
Kowloon, Hong Kong, the registered office of the
Company, identify the statement to be circulated,
signed by all the shareholders concerned and be
received by the Company not less than seven days
before the meeting to which it relates.

Shareholders’ enquiries

Shareholders should direct their questions about
their shareholdings to the Company’s share
registrar being, Computershare Hong Kong
Investor Services Limited. Shareholders and the
investment community may at any time make
a request for the Company’s information to the
extent that such information is publicly available.
Shareholders may also refer to the contacts under
“Investor Relations” section in the Company’s
website (http://www.singamas.com) for enquiries.

Shareholders have the right to put enquires to the
Board. All enquires shall be in writing and sent by
post to the registered office of the Company or by
email to info@singamas.com for attention of the
company secretary.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company provides updated information of
the Group to all shareholders when it becomes available
and appropriate, through the publication of interim
and annual reports, circulars, notices, media releases
or other means in compliance with the legal and
regulatory requirements. The Company has made
such information available on the Company’s website
(http://www.singamas.com) as well as on an independent
welbsite provider (http://www.irasia.com/listco/hk/singamas).
This purpose is to provide our shareholders an alternative
channel to access the Group’s information easily and
reach the potential shareholders globally. No change
in the Company’s constitutional documents was made
during the year under review.

Apart from providing a forum for Directors’ dialogue
with shareholders in the Company’s general meetings
during the year, the Company continuously enhances
shareholders communications by holding press and
analyst conferences locally and overseas during any
reporting period or year. The institutional shareholders
may ask questions on the Company’s operations or
related financial information in such conferences and the
Company would then take the opportunity to explain
to them the latest development of the Group. This
direct communication with shareholders or potential
shareholders would enable them to understand the
Group’s standards and the manner of conducting
businesses. In addition, the Company has a “Frequently
Asked Questions” section in its annual report providing
its shareholders with more clear and concise information
that may be of common concern. Besides, the Company
has responded to letters and telephone enquiries from
shareholders and potential shareholders throughout the
year under review.
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The board of directors (“Board”/“Directors”) of Singamas
Container Holdings Limited (the “Company”) present the
Company’s annual report and the audited consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2013.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Company are investment
holding and provision of management services to its
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures. The principal
activities of its principal subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures are set out in notes 19, 21 and 22, respectively
to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2013 are set out in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income on pages 75 to
76.

The Directors recommended the payment of a final
dividend of HK1 cent per ordinary share for the year
ended 31 December 2013 (2012: HK2 cents per ordinary
share). Together with the interim dividend of HK3 cents
per ordinary share (2012: HK4 cents per ordinary share),
total dividend for the year would be HK4 cents per
ordinary share (2012: HK6 cents per ordinary share).
Subject to approval at the forthcoming annual general
meeting, the proposed final dividend is payable on or
before 31 July 2014 to those shareholders whose names
appear on the register of members of the Company on
Wednesday, 18 June 2014. The register of members of
the Company will be closed from Monday, 16 June 2014
to Wednesday, 18 June 2014, both days inclusive, during
which period no transfer of shares will be effected.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities
of the Group for the last five financial years is set out on
pages 239 to 240 of this annual report.
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RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group
and the Company during the year are set out in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and note 41
to the consolidated financial statements, respectively.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and
equipment during the year are set out in note 17 to the
consolidated financial statements.

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND
JOINT VENTURES

Particulars regarding the principal subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures of the Company are set out in notes
19, 21 and 22, respectively to the consolidated financial
statements.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL
RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had bank balances
and cash of US$306,640,000 (2012: US$418,430,000)
and total interest-bearing debts of US$412,160,000
(2012: US$366,480,000). This represented a gearing
ratio, calculated on the basis of the Group’s total interest-
bearing debts over equity attributable to owners of the
Company, of 0.69 (2012: 0.63) and a net debt to equity
ratio, calculated on the basis of the Group’s net interest-
bearing debts (after deducting bank balances and cash
of US$306,640,000) over equity attributable to owners of
the Company of 0.18 (2012: -0.09).

With the decline in profit as a result from soft demand,
the interest coverage ratio of the Group’s profit before
interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation (EBITDA) to
total net interest expense decreased to 9.2 times for the
year ended 31 December 2013 (2012: 10.24 times).
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TREASURY POLICIES

The Group’s revenues are largely transacted in US$.
However, certain operating expenses are transacted
in other currencies including Hong Kong dollars and
Chinese Renminbi (“RMB”). To monitor the currency risk
exposure, the Group’s interest-bearing debts are in both
US$ and RMB. As at 31 December 2013, approximately
44.9% of the total (2012: 38.0%) was in US$ with the
balance in RMB.

To further strengthen the financial position of the Group
and to ensure stable funding for the Group’s operations in
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”), the Company
issued on 14 April 2011 a three-year RMB1,380,000,000
(equivalent to US$210,600,000) notes that will mature on
14 April 2014 (the “Notes”). The Company applied the net
proceeds from the Notes for working capital and general
corporate purposes in the PRC. Accordingly, contrary
to the past that the Group’s interest-bearing debts were
largely arranged on a short term revolving basis for the
financing of its daily working capital requirements, a
majority of the Group’s short term interest-bearing debts
were repaid by the proceeds of the Notes.

Of the total interest-bearing debts as at 31 December
2013, the maturity profile spread over a period of four
years with US$248,160,000 repayable within one year
and US$164,000,000 within two to four years. Other than
the Notes which bear a fixed interest rate of 4.75%, the
Group’s interest-bearing debts are principally on a floating
rate basis.

In order to hedge against the foreign exchange risk
arising from the fluctuation of RMB relative to US$ in
relation to the Notes, the Company entered into two
par forward contracts to receive RMB at fixed rate
of RMB6.15 to US$1 based on notional amount of
RMB1,576,829,589. This notional amount represents
the total interest payments and final principal repayment
of the Notes during the three-year tenor. The terms of
these two par forward contracts were negotiated to
match the terms of the Notes. As at 31 December 2013,
the Group’s aforesaid outstanding derivative financial
instruments designated as hedging instruments had
a total notional amount of RMB1,412,505,616 (2012:
RMB1,478,055,616).
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BANK BORROWINGS

Details of bank borrowings of the Group and the
Company are set out in note 36 to the consolidated
financial statements. No interest was capitalised by the
Group during the year.

CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

The Group had the following continuing connected
transactions during 2013:

1. On 30 November 2010, Singamas Terminals (Hong
Kong) Limited (“STHK?”), a company engaged in
the business of provision of mid-stream services
and a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into a terminal agreement (the “2011
Terminal Agreement”) with Pacific International
Lines (H.K.) Limited (“PILHK”) to take effect from 1
January 2011, for a term of three years and will be
ending on 31 December 2013. PILHK is currently
a subsidiary of PIL (the controlling and substantial
shareholder of the Company as defined under the
Listing Rules). Accordingly, PILHK is a connected
person of the Company under the Listing Rules.
Since the 2011 Terminal Agreement involves
transactions, which occur on a recurring basis
over a period of time, the transactions constitute
continuing connected transactions of the Company
under the Listing Rules.
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It was estimated that the amount of STHK’s
transactions with PILHK, on annual basis, for
the three financial years commencing from
1 January 2011 would not exceed 5% for each
of the percentage ratios, other than the profits
ratio, in the threshold tests in Rule 14A.34 of the
Listing Rules. Accordingly, the transactions are
only subject to the reporting and announcement
requirements set out in Rules 14A.45 to 14A.47,
the annual review requirements set out in Rules
14A.37 to 14A.40 and the requirements set out
in Rules 14A.35(1) and 14A.35(2) of the Listing
Rules and they are exempt from the independent
shareholders’ approval requirements of Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules. Details of these continuing
connected transactions have been disclosed by
way of an announcement published in compliance
with the Listing Rules.

On 1 January 2011, Singamas Logistics (Tianjin)
Co., Ltd. (“SLTC”), a company engaged in the
business of provision of container depot services
and a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into a depot agreement (the “Depot
Agreement”) with the Tianjin Branch of Pacific
International Lines (China) Ltd. (“PILChina”) to take
effect from 1 January 2011, for a term of three
years. In view that PILChina is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of PIL, PILChina is a connected person
of the Company under the Listing Rules. Since
the Depot Agreement involves transactions, which
occur on a recurring basis over a period of time,
the transactions constitute continuing connected
transactions of the Company under the Listing
Rules.
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It was estimated that the amount of SLTC’s
transactions with PILChina, on annual basis,
for the three financial years commencing from
1 January 2011 would not exceed 5% for each
of the percentage ratios, other than the profits
ratio, in the threshold tests in Rules 14A.34 of the
Listing Rules. Accordingly, the transactions are
only subject to the reporting and announcement
requirements set out in Rules 14A.45 to 14A.47,
the annual review requirements set out in Rules
14A.37 to 14A.40 and the requirements set out
in Rules 14A.35(1) and 14A.35(2) of the Listing
Rules and they are exempt from the independent
shareholders’ approval requirements of Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules. Details of these continuing
connected transactions have been disclosed by
way of an announcement published in compliance
with the Listing Rules.

On 15 March 2011, each of Hui Zhou Pacific
Container Co., Ltd., Ningbo Pacific Container
Co., Ltd., Qingdao Pacific Container Co., Ltd.,
Shanghai Baoshan Pacific Container Co., Ltd.,
Singamas Container Industry Co., Ltd., Shanghai
Pacific International Container Co., Ltd., Shanghai
Reeferco Container Co., Ltd., Guangdong Shun
An Da Pacific Container Co., Ltd., Foshan Shunde
Singamas Tank Container Co., Ltd., Tianjin Pacific
Container Co., Ltd., Xiamen Pacific Container
Manufacturing Co., Ltd., Qidong Singamas
Energy Equipment Co., Ltd. and Singamas
Management Services Limited, subsidiaries of
the Company (collectively, the “Subsidiaries”),
entered into a master purchase agreement (the
“2012 Master Purchase Contract”) with PIL for the
sales of containers and other related equipment
by the Group to PIL Group. In view that PIL
is a connected person of the Company, the
entering into the 2012 Master Purchase Contract
constituted a connected transaction. As the 2012
Master Purchase Contract involves transactions,
which occur on a recurring basis over a period
of time, the transactions constitute continuing
connected transactions of the Company.
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As it was estimated that the proposed annual caps
of the transactions, for each of the three financial
years ending 31 December 2014 would exceed
the HK$10,000,000 threshold under Rule 14A.34
of the Listing Rules, pursuant to Rule 14A.35,
the transactions are subject to the reporting and
announcement requirements set out in Rules
14A.45 to 14A.47, the annual review requirements
set out in Rules 14A.37 to 14A.40 and the
independent shareholders’ approval requirements
set out in Rule 14A.48. After obtaining the approval
from the independent shareholders on 30 May
2011, the 2012 Master Purchase Contract had
taken effect from 1 January 2012 and will be
ending on 31 December 2014. Details of these
continuing connected transactions have been
disclosed by way of an announcement published
in compliance with the Listing Rules.

On 30 December 2013, STHK, entered into a
depot agreement (the “2014 Depot Agreement”)
with PILHK to take effect from 1 January 2014,
for a term of three years and will be ending on 31
December 2016. PILHK is currently a subsidiary of
PIL (the controlling and substantial shareholder of
the Company as defined under the Listing Rules).
Accordingly, PILHK is a connected person of the
Company under the Listing Rules. Since the 2014
Depot Agreement involves transactions, which
occur on a recurring basis over a period of time,
the transactions constitute continuing connected
transactions of the Company under Rule 14A.14 of
the Listing Rules.
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It was estimated that the amount of STHK’s
transactions with PILHK, on annual basis, for the
three financial years commencing from 1 January
2014 would be more than 0.1% but less than 5%
for each of the percentage ratios, other than the
profits ratio, in the threshold tests in Rule 14A.34 of
the Listing Rules. Accordingly, the transactions are
only subject to the reporting and announcement
requirements set out in Rules 14A.45 to 14A.47,
the annual review requirements set out in Rules
14A.37 to 14A.40 and the requirements set out
in Rules 14A.35(1) and 14A.35(2) of the Listing
Rules and they are exempt from the independent
shareholders’ approval requirements of Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules. Details of these continuing
connected transactions have been disclosed by
way of an announcement published in compliance
with the Listing Rules.

On 30 December 2013, SLTC, a company engaged
in the business of provision of container depot
services and a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into an addendum to the depot
agreement (the “Depot Agreement”) entered
with the PILChina to take effect from 1 January
2014, to extend the term for three years. In
view that PILChina is a wholly-owned subsidiary
of PIL; PILChina is a connected person of the
Company under the Listing Rules. Since the
Depot Agreement involves transactions, which
occur on a recurring basis over a period of time,
the transactions constitute continuing connected
transactions of the Company under Rule 14A.14 of
the Listing Rules.
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It was estimated that the amount of SLTC’s
transactions with PILChina, on annual basis,
for the three financial years commencing from
1 January 2014 would be more than 0.1% but
less than 5% for each of the percentage ratios,
other than the profits ratio, in the threshold tests
in Rules 14A.34 of the Listing Rules. Accordingly,
the transactions are only subject to the reporting
and announcement requirements set out in Rules
14A.45 to 14A.47, the annual review requirements
set out in Rules 14A.37 to 14A.40 and the
requirements set out in Rules 14A.35(1) and
14A.35(2) of the Listing Rules and they are exempt
from the independent shareholders’ approval
requirements of Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
Details of these continuing connected transactions
have been disclosed by way of an announcement
published in compliance with the Listing Rules.

The aforesaid continuing connected transactions have
been approved by the Directors and the independent
non-executive Directors have reviewed these transactions
and are in the opinion that:

(@ those continuing connected transactions between
STHK and PILHK are entered into in the ordinary
and usual course of business of the Group,
conducted on normal commercial terms and
entered into in accordance with the agreements
governing them on terms that are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders
of the Company as a whole and on terms no
less favourable than those available to or from
independent third parties. The total amount of such
transactions for the year ended on 31 December
2013 was HK$7,305,000 and did not exceed the
annual cap of HK$62 million;
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those continuing connected transactions
between SLTC and PILChina are entered into
in the ordinary and usual course of business of
the Group, conducted on normal commercial
terms and entered into in accordance with the
agreements governing them on terms that are
fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole and on
terms no less favourable than those available to or
from independent third parties. The total amount
of such transactions for the year ended on 31
December 2013 was RMB5,881,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$7,351,250) and did not exceed
the annual cap of RMB19,902,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$23,368,928); and

those continuing connected transactions between
the Subsidiaries and PIL are entered into in
the ordinary and usual course of business of
the Group, conducted on normal commercial
terms and entered into in accordance with the
agreements governing them on terms that are
fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole and on
terms no less favourable than those available to or
from independent third parties. The total amount
of such transactions for the year ended on 31
December 2013 was US$64,827,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$502,804,695) and did
not exceed the annual cap of US$100,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$780,000,000).
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Pursuant to Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules, the
Company has engaged the external auditors of the
Company to report the continuing connected transactions
of the Group in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740
“Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
The external auditors have reported to the Board
and confirmed that for the year 2013 the continuing
connected transactions (i) have received the approval of
the Board; and (ii) have been entered into in accordance
with the relevant agreements governing the transactions;
and (iii) the continuing connected transaction in
paragraphs (1), (2) and (3) above have not exceeded the
relevant caps as disclosed in the announcements dated
30 November 2010, 1 January 2011 and 15 March 2011
respectively.

The Company confirms that it has complied with the
disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules.
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DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO RULE
13.21 OF THE LISTING RULES

1.

On 25 March 2011, the Company entered into a
facility agreement (the “Facility Agreement”) with
DBS Bank Ltd., ING Bank N.V., Sumitomo Mitsui
Banking Corporation and United Overseas Bank
Limited as the mandated lead arrangers and DBS
Bank Ltd., ING Bank N.V., Hong Kong Branch,
Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation, Hong
Kong Branch and United Overseas Bank Limited
as the original lenders for a term of four years for
the purpose of financing the corporate funding
requirements and the capital expenditure of the
Group. The Facility Agreement includes conditions
to the effect that PIL continues to be the controlling
shareholder (as defined in the Listing Rules) and
the single largest beneficial shareholder of the
Company. A breach of the above conditions will
constitute an event of default under the Facility
Agreement. If such an event of default occurs, all
amounts outstanding under the Facility Agreement
may become immediately due and payable. The
outstanding balance under the Facility was fully
repaid during the year.

RIR LR A58 13.21 1% 2 1 55

ARAR - F——F=A-+HBEZX
SEXAEBALRHT - ERBITARA
A - WRERRT  ZHERRT N
RRERITEZERERA - ERR
TARRAR  HEEERITEEDIT
“HERBITEAEDIT  UEKRERTT
A AHNEZBE hE((ZRE
@) RAEECEESHTRNERH
XEHES - ZREBRZIGERER
TR BEERAN DR EBRAR (E
ERELTRADEE-—HRARR - ER
iR B ERBEZRE HEERED
R WEEAECMN -RENZTR &
ERETHAREE ZRBEHG A
Hi WARKER - HIRTREMNKE
ERBCONFAZBEER -

TE--FFR - BWEELSEER2A b7




On 14 April 2011, the Company issued the Notes.
The Notes bear interest from and including 14 April
2011 at the rate of 4.75% per annum. Interest
will be payable semi-annually in arrears on 14
April and 14 October in each year commencing
on 14 October 2011. The Notes are not rated by
any rating agency and are unsecured. Application
was made to the Singapore Exchange Securities
Trading Limited and approval was received for
listing of the Notes. Pursuant to the terms and
conditions of the Notes, it is provided that at
any time following the occurrence of a change
of control, holder of any Notes will have the right
at his option to require the Company to redeem
all but not some only of that holder’'s Notes at
101% of their principal amount, together with
accrued interest. Under the terms and conditions
of the Notes, a change of control occurs when
PIL ceases to be the controlling shareholder (as
defined in the Listing Rules) and the single largest
beneficial shareholder of the Company.

On 24 September 2013, the Company entered
into a facility agreement (the “Facility Agreement”)
with The Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd.,
DBS Bank Ltd., The Hongkong and Shanghai
Banking Corporation Limited, ING Bank N.V. and
United Overseas Bank Limited as the mandated
lead arrangers and other financial institutions for a
term of four years for the purpose of financing the
corporate funding requirements and the capital
expenditure of the Company together with its
subsidiaries (the “Group”), including refinancing
of the existing term loan and revolving credit
facilities under the facility agreement dated 25
March 2011 and the RMB notes issued by the
Company on 14 April 2011. The Facility Agreement
includes conditions to the effect that Mr. Teo
Siong Seng and his family members shall maintain
the Management Control of every member of
the Group. A breach of the above conditions will
constitute an event of default under the Facility
Agreement. If such an event of default occurs, all
amounts outstanding under the Facility Agreement
may become immediately due and payable.
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CHARGES ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2013, no asset of the Group (2012:
Nil) was pledged as securities to any third parties.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

During 2013, the Company provided guarantees to
banks as securities for credit facilities granted to certain
subsidiaries of the Company in the PRC. Details of
which are set out in note 45 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of share capital are set out in note 39 to the
consolidated financial statements.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company committed to maintaining a high standard
of corporate governance and has taken appropriate
steps to adopt and comply with the applicable principles
and code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code
during the year ended 31 December 2013.

Further information on the Company’s corporate
governance practices is set out in the “Corporate
Governance Report”.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE

The Company has adopted the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
(the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules as the code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions. Having made specific enquiry of
the Directors, all of the Directors have complied with, for
any part of the accounting period covered by this annual
report, the required standard set out in the Model Code.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this
annual report are:

Mr. Chang Yun Chung
(Retired on 27 May 2013)

Mr. Teo Siong Seng

Mr. Chan Kwok Leung

Mr. Hsueh Chao En
(Retired on 27 May 2013)

Ms. Tam Shuk Ping, Sylvia
(Resigned on 2 February 2013)

Mr. Teo Tiou Seng

Mr. Kuan Kim Kin*

Mr. Tan Chor Kee*
(Appointed on 2 July 2013)

Mr. Cheng Fu Kwok, David*

Mr. Lau Ho Kit, Ivan*

Mr. Ong Ka Thai*

Mr. Yang, Victor*

# Non-executive Director
* Independent Non-executive Director

In accordance with the provisions of the Company’s
articles of association (“Articles”), every Director not being
a managing Director shall retire from office at annual
general meetings and, being eligible, offer themselves
for re-election. A Director so appointed as to the office
of managing Director shall be subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years but shall be
eligible for re-election.

The term of office for non-executive Directors (including
independent non-executive Directors) is for a year and is
subject to retirement and re-election at the annual general
meeting in accordance with the Articles.

The Company has received annual confirmation of
independence from each of Mr. Cheng Fu Kwok, David,
Mr. Lau Ho Kit, Ivan, Mr. Ong Ka Thai and Mr. Yang,
Victor and considered them as independent.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2013, the interests or short positions
of the Directors in the Shares, underlying Shares
or debentures of the Company or any associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFQ”)) which (a)
were required notification to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of
the SFO (including interests or short positions which
any such Director is taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO); or which (b) were required
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO to be entered into
the register maintained by the Company; or which (c)
were required, pursuant to Model Code contained in
the Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange were as follows:
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(BREEREEZLBEGERDN) 2 BREIEX
WRVEARETA 2 EmIBAR) ¢ (o) R
(FBH KEE DI 362 (AR A R RIRZ
FRFEZERMAZEE  HORBERE
STRIZEMEARNRR] B Rz e T

(A) Ordinary Shares of the Company (A) ARFREEE
Number of Shares/
Underlying Shares Held Percentage
BEZBRY/HARERNEE of Issued
Personal Corporate Total Shares
Name Capacity Interest Interest Interest LEe#T
:31 54 EA#D REER RET  RHESL
Mr. Teo Siong Seng (Note 1) Beneficial Owner 50,808,250 - 50,808,250 2.10
RINE LA (Hat 1) EBERA
Mr. Teo Tiou Seng (Note 2) Beneficial Owner 668,730 - 668,730 0.03
REAR LA (M5 2) - Ent/ ZEUN
Mr. Kuan Kim Kin (Note 3) Beneficial Owner 668,730 - 668,730 0.03
Mg & (Bt 3) EBERA
Mr. Ong Ka Thai (Note 4) Beneficial Owner 668,730 - 668,730 0.03
FRREE (Mt 4) EBEBA
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Notes:

(1)

@

)

4)

®)

The personal interest of Mr. Teo Siong Seng represents
the interest in 41,301,250 Shares and interest in
9,507,000 underlying Shares in respect of the share
options granted by the Company, the details of which
are stated in the following section “"Share Options”.

The personal interest of Mr. Teo Tiou Seng represents
the interest in 196,780 Shares and interest in 471,950
underlying Shares in respect of the share options
granted by the Company, the details of which are
stated in the following section “Share Options”.

The personal interest of Mr. Kuan Kim Kin represents
the interest in 104,000 Shares and interest in 564,730
underlying Shares in respect of the share options
granted by the Company, the details of which are
stated in the following section “Share Options”.

The personal interest of Mr. Ong Ka Thai represents
the interest in 52,000 Shares and interest in 616,730
underlying Shares in respect of the share options
granted by the Company, the details of which are
stated in the following section “Share Options”.

Other Directors do not hold any interests in the
Company’s securities, except for their interests in
the underlying Shares in respect of the share options
granted by the Company, the details of which are
stated in the following section “Share Options”.

All the interests disclosed above represent long position
in the Shares and underlying Shares.
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(B)

Share Options (B) R
Particulars of the share option scheme adopted RARIRZZEZTLFAAA—BERAZE
by the Company on 1 June 2007 (the “Option IRt 8] (AT &) 2 FFIB R AR
Scheme”) are set out in note 40 to the consolidated BB HREMIFE40 o
financial statements.
Movements of the share options under the Option RER - AR E TaEREZ SN
Scheme during the year are as follows: N
Number of Share Options
ERESA
Asat Asat
1 January 31 December
Name/ %8/ 2013 2013 Exercise
Category S8 W25-z% Granted Exercised Lapsed  RZF-Z£ Grant Date Exercisable Period Price
of Participants R -F-H Rt fife % tZA=t-8 RYAH s it
(Notes &, b& ) HKS
(Wita bkc) B
Directors i3
M Crang Yun Chung Frost 261300 - - (261,300 - o 2B/6/2008-27/6/2017 39
Noteg) (i) 261300 - - (261,30 - o 2B/6/2009-27/6/2017 3%
261300 - - (261300 N 2B6/2010-27/6/2017 3%
133 - (1339 - - 1712010 107/2011-30/6/2020 138
83,333 - 63333 - - 1712010 1712012-30/6/2020 13
83,334 - - 83,334 - 1712010 417/2013-30/6/2020 138
951900 - (64,669 (667234 -
M Teo Song Seng FHEEE 2613000 - - S 2630 2807 2B/6/2008-27/6/2017 3%
2613000 - - - 081300 28007 2B/6/2009-27/6/2017 3%
2613000 - - - 281300 28007 2BI6/2010-27/612017 39%
133 - - - 133 1712010 171201 1-30/6/2020 138
833333 - - - 83333 1712010 417/2012-30/6/2020 138
83333 - - - 83333 1712010 417/2013-30/6/2020 138
9507000 - - - Q50T
M, Chen Kick Leung BERAEE 522600 - - - 5260 282007 28/6/2008-27/6/2017 3%
522600 - - - 5260 282007 2B/6/2009-27/6/2017 39%
522600 - - - 52600 2862007 2BI6/2010-27/6/2017 3%
750 - - - 730 61812008 6/8/2009-5/8/2018 148
750 - - - 730 61812008 6/8/2010-5/6/2018 148
217750 - - - 217750 682008 6/8/2011-5/6/2018 148
166,666 - - - 166,666 1712010 117/2011-30/6/2020 138
166,667 - - - 166,667 1712010 117/2012-30/6/2020 138
166,667 - - - 166,667 1712010 107/2013-30/6/2020 138
2287050 - - - 2T
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Number of Share Options

BhEgA

Asat Asat

1 January 31 December
Name/ #e/ 2013 2013 Exercise
Category S8 WZ5-z% Granted Exercised Lapsed ~ RZF-Z£  GrantDate Exercisable Period Price
of Participants R -F-H it fift %% tZR=t-H RUAH fiEd friEfe
(Notssa, bé ) HKS
(Wita bkc) AT

Directors (Contiued) 208

Mr. Hsugh Chao En BEERE 653,250 - - (663,260) - 28/6/2007 28/6/2008-27/6/2017 393
(Note ¢ (fite) 653,250 - - (653,250 - 28/6/2007 28/6/2009-27/6/2017 393
663,250 - - (653,250) - 28/6/2007 28/6/2010-27/6/2017 39
1,300 - - (1,300 - 6/8/2008 6/8/2009-5/8/2018 148
1,300 - - (1,300) - 6/8/2008 6/8/2010-5/8/2018 148
261,300 - - 261,300) - 6/8/2008 6/8/2011-5/8/2018 148
200,000 - - 200,000) - 11712010 1/7/2012-30/6/2020 1.38
200,000 - - (200,000) - 1772010 1/7/2013-30/6/2020 1.38

2,623,650 - - 2,623,640) -
Ms. Tam Shuk Ping,Syivia Ekat 522,600 - - (522,600) - 28/6/2007 28/6/2008-27/6/2017 393
(Note f i 522,600 - - (522,600) - 28/6/2007 28/6/2009-27/6/2017 393
522,600 - - (622,600) - 28/6/2007 26/6/2010-27/6/2017 393
583 - - (583) - 6/8/2008 6/8/2011-5/8/2018 148
166,667 - - (166,667) - 1772010 1/7/2013-30/6/2020 1.38

1,736,050 . S T30 .
Mr. Teo Tiou Seng FEERs 130,650 - - - 130,650 28/6/2007 28/6/2008-27/6/2017 393
130,650 - - - 130,650 28/6/2007 28/6/2009-27/6/2017 393
130,650 - - - 130,650 28/6/2007 26/6/2010-27/6/2017 393
40,000 - - - 40,000 11712010 1/7/2012-30/6/2020 1.38
40,000 - - - 40,000 1712010 1/7/2013-30/6/2020 1.38

471950 - - - 471,950
Mr. Kuan Kim Kin BiRErs 130,650 - - - 130,650 28/6/2007 28/6/2008-27/6/2017 393
130,650 - - - 130,650 28/6/2007 28/6/2009-27/6/2017 393
130,650 - - - 130,650 28/6/2007 28/6/2010-27/6/2017 393
20 - - - 260 6/8/2008 6/8/2009-5/8/2018 148
20 - - - 260 6/8/2008 6/8/2010-5/8/2018 148
52,260 - - - 52,260 6/8/2008 6/8/2011-5/8/2018 148
40,000 - - - 40,000 1712010 17/2011-30/6/2020 1.38
40,000 - - - 40,000 11712010 1/7/2012-30/6/2020 1.38
40,000 - - - 40,000 11712010 1/7/2013-30/6/2020 1.38

564,730 - - - 564,730
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Number of Share Options

BhEgA
Asat Asat
1 January 31 December
Name/ 4/ 2013 013 Exercise
Category S8 ®2%-= Granted Exercised Lapsed  WZF-2% Grant Date Exercisable Period Price
of Participants 2488 -R-H R fife % tZA=t-8 bl sk tid] 7
(Notes g, b&c) HKS
(W#ta 0ktc) B
Directors (Contined) FEE
Mr. Ong Ka Thai IFRE 130,650 - - - 130,650 28/6/2007 28/6/2008-27/6/2017 393
130,650 - - - 130,650 28/6/2007 28/6/2009-27/6/2017 393
130,650 - - - 130,650 28/6/2007 28/6/2010-27/6/2017 393
260 - - - 260 6/8/2008 6/8/2009-5/8/2018 148
52,260 - - - 52,260 6/8/2008 6/8/2010-5/8/2018 148
52,260 - - - 52,260 6/8/2008 6/8/2011-5/8/2018 148
40,000 - - - 40,000 11712010 1/7/2011-30/6/2020 1.38
40,000 - - - 40,000 11712010 1/7/2012-30/6/2020 1.38
40,000 - - - 40,000 11712010 1/7/2013-30/6/2020 1.38
616,730 - - - 616,730
M. Yang, Victor BERLE 40,000 - - - 40,000 11712010 1/7/2011-30/6/2020 1.38
40,000 - - - 40,000 11712010 1/7/2012-30/6/2020 1.38
40,000 - - - 40,000 11712010 1/7/2013-30/6/2020 1.38
120,000 - - - 120,000
Sub-total NGt 18,878,060 - (84,666) (5,225,934) 13,567,460
Employees (Mot g) B89
In aggregate At
1,045,200 - - (391,950) 653,250 28/6/2007 28/6/2008-27/6/2017 393
1,045,200 - - (391,950) 653,250 28/6/2007 28/6/2009-27/6/2017 393
1,045,200 - - (391,950) 653,250 28/6/2007 28/6/2010-27/6/2017 393
147,925 - - - 147,925 6/8/2008 6/8/2011-6/8/2018 148
84,668 - - - 84,668 11712010 1/7/2011-30/6/2020 1.38
176,668 - (40,000) - 136,068 11712010 1/7/2012-30/6/2020 1.38
383,332 - (40,000) (123,334) 219,998 11712010 1/7/2013-30/6/2020 1.38
Sub-total NG 3,928,193 - (80,000) 1299,184) 2,549,009
All other employees figitiea
In aggregate S
522,600 - - (87,100) 435,500 28/6/2007 28/6/2008-27/6/2017 393
522,600 - - (87,100 435,500 28/6/2007 28/6/2009-27/6/2017 393
522,600 - - (87,100) 435,500 28/6/2007 28/6/2010-27/6/2017 393
171,634 - (34,840) (17420 119374 6/8/2008 6/8/2009-5/8/2018 148
171,633 - (34,840) (17420 119,378 6/8/2008 6/8/2010-5/8/2018 148
212,633 - (34,580) (17,680) 220373 6/8/2008 6/8/2011-5/8/2018 148
Sub-total It 2188700 - (104,260 B3GR 1765600
Total @3 24,989,953 - 268,926) (6,838,938 17,882,089
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Notes:

@

®)

(c)

()

(e)

®

@)

The share options with the exercise price of HK$3.93
are vested and exercisable in three tranches on 28
June 2008, 2009 and 2010 respectively and up to 27
June 2017.

The share options with the exercise price of HK$1.48
are vested and exercisable in three tranches on 6
August 2009, 2010 and 2011 respectively and up to 5
August 2018.

The share options with the exercise price of HK$1.38
are vested or to be vested and exercisable in three
tranches on 1 July 2011, 2012 and 2013 respectively
and up to 30 June 2020.

Mr. Chang Yun Chung (also known as Mr. Teo Woon
Tiong) (“Mr. Chang”), a former Director, retired from
office at the 2013 annual general meeting held on 27
May 2013 (the “2013 AGM”) and did not offer himself
for re-election. Pursuant to the Option Scheme, the
unvested share options (representing 83,334 Shares)
and vested share options (representing 783,900
Shares) held by Mr. Chang were lapsed on 28 May
2013 and 28 June 2013 respectively.

Mr. Hsueh Chao En (“Mr. Hsueh”), a former Director,
retired from office at the 2013 AGM and did not offer
himself for re-election. Pursuant to the Option Scheme,
the unvested share options (representing 200,000
Shares) and vested share options (representing
2,423,650 Shares) held by Mr. Hsueh were lapsed on
28 May 2013 and 28 June 2013 respectively.

Ms. Tam Shuk Ping, Sylvia (“Ms. Tam”), a former
Director, resigned on 2 February 2013. Pursuant
to the Option Scheme, the unvested share options
(representing 166,667 Shares) and vested share
options (representing 1,568,383 Shares) held by Ms.
Tam were lapsed on 2 February 2013 and 2 March
2013 respectively.

Employees are working under employment contracts
that are regarded as “continuous contracts” for the
purposes of the Employment Ordinance.

66 Singamas Container Holdings Limited « Annual Report 2013

Mt

@

©)

(©

@

(©

®

@

KTT(Z(E3.93EThfERES 75 FIR =
FEENENA=F/1H 72;525)‘135/\/7:"
—FNAR=ZF—FFENA=—F/HS
BB A EEE K AT R THE TT/,%@?_—C_v
—EFNAZAEHIE -

LATTIE(E 1,488 7T 19 R 1 2 45 77 B IR

—EFNEFENANA  —FE-FE/ AN
AR —ZF——F NHNH5 =550 BEE
ERAJHEITE TR = F—TFENA
AHAILE -

KITIE(E 1.38 BT HY 5 IR 1B B AT S 45 7
IR =—F——F+H—H —F——F+
A—AR=ZF—=F+A—HZ =515k
RBEVER AT - (TERE —F _FF
NA=FHIF -

BIEFR A AL KAL) ERZZE
— =R A-F+AEFTZ-_FE—=F
EREEHFAS ([ ZFE—=FZREH
FRAE ) FRE - WTEREE - RIE
FBRIES 2 - KA HZ KL BT
HIBE R 1 (R 83,834 %) Jé B BEE B iR
#(R1783,900%) EAR IR =FE—=F 7
A=-F+AR-ZE—=F A =-+/1H%
Ao

FEFRHERL L ([EAE)ER=F
—=FEREFFAS LRI - B
JBIT o IRIFREIRIESIE) - BESXEFF B2 K
XA ELE 898 AR (R 200,000 8% ) K B BF
TERVEERRIE (RI12,423,650 4% ) B 7 Rl =
E—=Fa -+ NAR-F—=FH
iy AV=E-3 )

BEFER L+ (BTt )ER=
F—=F— AT - RIFBRIES
B BLAIFEHZARKBEEERBERIE
(R1166,667 %) % B BT & i) AR 4 ( Al
1,668,383/ ) EA IR —FE—=4#_H
ZHAHR=ZF—=F=FZHXI -

18 B T 12 IE B IXBI AT 15 0Y [FEE 4]
TiFayER -



At no time during the year was the Company, its holding
company, fellow subsidiaries or any of its subsidiaries
a party of any arrangement to enable the Directors to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares
in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.

Save as disclosed above, none of Directors nor their
associates, had any other interests or short positions
in the Shares, underlying Shares and debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which (a) were
required notification to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of
the SFO (including interests or short positions which
any such Director or chief executive is taken or deemed
to have under such provisions of the SFO); or which (b)
were required pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO to be
entered into the register maintained by the Company;
or which (c) were required, pursuant to the Model Code
contained in the Listing Rules, to be notified to the
Company or the Stock Exchange and none of Directors,
nor their spouse or children under the age of 18, had any
right to subscribe for securities of the Company, or had
exercised any such right during the year.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’
INTERESTS

As at 31 December 2013, according to the register
kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the
SFO, and so far as was known to any Director or chief
executive of the Company, the following persons (other
than the interests of certain Directors disclosed under the
section headed “Directors’ Interests and Short Positions
in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures” above),
had an interest or a short position in the Shares and
underlying Shares which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO:

ARE) -~ HERAR - REMEBAR - B E
M8 A R B BN F AEM R FER ML EA %
B UBARRREE A REBARRRSIME
A ABEE 2 BB s o

Br EXFTIEEEIN  SEEREECHBAL
BERE AR RS E AR AE (EERGE
HREREERBDEXVE) 2 Hm - BERD &
BREFZERIAR + WA @) RIE(ESH LB
EIEBIEXVEET7 R8N MBEFEME AR A
kAR (BREESREB(ESFLAEEN)Z
EBGEXESEAREHREIEEIAR)
(o) RIB(EFH R B E 150 )5 352 R AL R
RNRRIZZIEREE 2 MRz 5 3(0)
RIBEETRBMERNRB) MBS
IARARRNEES  HREB+\GU T2 FX
IS B EMREARRRFES ZEFHNFEARTT
P ZIBRER o

TERRZER

R-FB-—=F+-"A=+—H REARFR
(FBH KB EDINE 336 617 E 2 &M mFT
R ANMRERHSRITHRABMA - TIIA
T (BRA L TEERB - HERD REREE
ZREDPORE | —BINBEETESHER 2 #Ex
5N - RO MBS 2 EESORE
WARBCE S R ERPIDFE XV #BF 2 23D
ERAARRIHEMALHERIT -
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Percentage of

Number of Ordinary Shares Total Issued
LiEREE Shares

Name Notes Direct Interest Indirect Interest BT

i HtaF BEiEx#n EizEzE BROBSL

Mr. Chang (1) 493,291 953,954,534 39.43

KL

Madam Lee Kheng Wah 2) - 954,447,825 39.43

FBELL

PIL (1) 953,954,534 - 39.41

AT

Y. C. Chang & Sons Private Limited 3) - 953,954,534 39.41

Prime Capital Management 178,788,000 - 7.39

(Cayman) Limited

Notes: Btat -

(1) A total of 953,954,534 Shares are held by PIL in which Mr. (1) B2 5953,954,534 15 T3 X FHI5FFH © il
Chang is interested, in aggregate, in 496,800,000 shares KA LANIFH A TSR (7 & #£496,800,0008% -
representing 89.61% of the issued share capital of PIL. Mr. 1K FRTEE ZETIRA89.61% o SRALATFFEZ
Chang’s interest in shares of PIL comprises a personal interest KRR (7 A 77 /B AN #E 7 79,275,000 % + %
in 79,275,000 shares and corporate interests in 175,500,000 #8 South Pacific International Holdings Limited (3%
shares through South Pacific International Holdings Limited, a SEEFFEZ L A]2.02% B 27T ) i .2 2 Al
company in which he holds 2.02% of the issued share capital #z 175,600,000/ + Ri#iAY. C. Chang & Sons
and 242,025,000 shares through Y. C. Chang & Sons Private Private Limited (5855 £ 1 B 5% 22 7]2.86% 2 #77
Limited, a company in which he holds 2.86% of the issued JRA) #6223 )i 25 242,025,000 8 ° TEF
share capital. Messrs. Teo Siong Seng and Teo Tiou Seng, RIRBIEERRGBIEER S FFFEAX FHER
Directors, both of their interests in shares of PIL comprise 17,2 LA #z 3,600,000 8% % 2,400,000 % + 775
personal interests in 3,600,000 shares and 2,400,000 shares 15K FAI T E Z7THK 0.65% R 0.43% °
respectively and representing 0.65% and 0.43% of the issued
share capital of PIL.

@) Madam Lee Kheng Wah, as the spouse of Mr. Chang, is (2 FFBEL A TIREEZ NG - MFZ L AHRE
deemed to be interested in these Shares. BIEBRAFERAE L 72 R (D o

3) As Y. C. Chang & Sons Private Limited directly controls one-  (3) ARY. C. Chang & Sons Private Limited B Z & #

third or more of the voting rights in the shareholders’ meeting
of PIL, in accordance with SFO, Y. C. Chang & Sons Private
Limited is deemed to be interested in PIL’s interests in the
Shares.
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Save as disclosed above, there was no other person
known to the Directors or chief executive, other than the
Directors or chief executive of the Company, who, as at
31 December 2013, had an interest or a short position
in the Shares and underlying Shares which would fall to
be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE AGREEMENT

As at 31 December 2013, no Directors or proposed
directors had any existing service contract or proposed
service contract with the Company or any of its
subsidiaries which is not terminable by the Company
within one year without payment of compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Other than disclosed in note 48 to the consolidated
financial statements (which were approved by the
independent non-executive Directors and in the opinion
of the Directors were carried out on normal commercial
terms and in ordinary course of the Group’s businesses),
no contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s
business to which the Company, its ultimate holding
company, fellow subsidiaries or any of its subsidiaries
was a party and in which a director of the Company had
a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

B ENHEEEN  SESHSRITHRAEL
FEHEEMAL (T ARBESHARQRZ
SBRITBABE )R _E—=F+=-_A=+—H
AIRCEH LB GRGIEXVEZE 2 K 39 FM
RRERBEERD RABBER DS 2 sk

A
E o

EEZRBinE

R-ZE—=F+_"A=+—H ARAHEHESE
SR BT EIIVTMAQARSEMHBER
B NAI R —FRE L B E MR L 2 AR W -

ERZEAGHIER

BB MBS mMRM T8 RBEEIN(ZFERS
ERBUIFNTESEYR  AHEFTEMS
BAKE AERR - WA —REFERR
i) AT EHEERATE - BRMBA
Al REAEAME AR ERT SRS R A
B2 MARREFEERNEEEHTHE
BEA#ERD - WARFHEBRFRERKHESE
MZBREH)

CE-ZFFR - BWEELCEERAR 69




MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentages of the Group’s purchases and sales
attributable to major suppliers and customers are as
follows:

FEEFEPRMESR
AEEREEREEETRALBHERLE
FPZEASLET :

Percentage
Btk
Percentage of purchases attributable AEBSAHERMEBEER 11.5%
to the Group’s largest supplier
Percentage of purchases attributable AEBhAHERMEBEERE 37.5%
to the Group’s five largest suppliers
Percentage of sales attributable REBRARFALE X 16.2%
to the Group’s largest customer
Percentage of sales attributable AEBAARREPAGEERE 42.0%

to the Group’s five largest customers

During the year, none of the Directors nor their associates
nor any shareholder (which to the knowledge of the
Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s
share capital) had an interest in the major suppliers or
customers noted above.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION
OF LISTED SECURITIES
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has

purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s
listed securities during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Company was entered into or existed
during the year.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

Details of the Retirement Benefits Scheme are set out in
note 13 to the consolidated financial statements.
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PARTICULAR OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of the Directors and senior
management of the Company are set out on pages 19 to
26 under the “Honorary Chairman, Directors and Senior
Management Profile” section of this annual report.

REMUNERATION POLICIES AND
EMPLOYEE RELATIONS

The remuneration policy for the employees of the
Company is set by the Remuneration Committee on the
basis of their merit, qualification and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors and senior management
of the Group are decided by the Remuneration
Committee with reference to the Group’s operating
results, individual performance and comparable market
statistics.

As at 31 December 2013, the Group, including its
subsidiaries but excluding associates and joint ventures,
employed 8,063 (2012: 8,594) full-time employees.
Staff costs (including Directors’ emoluments) amounted
to US$101,454,000 (2012: US$113,986,000) for the
year. All full-time salaried employees, except for factory
workers and contract employees, are being paid on a
monthly basis, plus a discretionary performance bonus.
Factory workers are being remunerated based on a
basic wage plus production incentive. Share options are
also being offered to selected grantees of the Group.
The Group ensures that the pay levels of its employees
are competitive and employees are awarded on a
performance related basis within the general framework
of the Group’s salary and bonus system. To further
enhance the capability of its human resource, the Group
provides on-the-job training to its employees.

Other than the subsidiaries in the PRC, neither the
Company nor any of its other subsidiaries has established
labour union. The Company and its subsidiaries, however,
are not subject to any collective agreements. The Group
has maintained good relationships with its employees.
None of the Group’s employees is represented by a
labour union.
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PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, at
least 25% of the Company’s total issued share capital
was held by the public as at the date of this annual
report.

AUDITORS

A resolution for the re-appointment of Messrs. Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu as external auditors of the Company
is to be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

By order of the Board
Teo Siong Seng
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 18 March 2014
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Deloitte.
=2

TO THE MEMBERS OF SINGAMAS
CONTAINER HOLDINGS LIMITED

(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Singamas Container Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) set out on pages 75 to 238, which comprise
the consolidated and company statements of financial
position as at 31 December 2013, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

Directors' Responsibility for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit
and to report our opinion solely to you, as a body,
in accordance with section 141 of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report. We
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conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company and of the Group as at 31 December 2013,
and of the Group's profit and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in
accordance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

18 March 2014
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR
LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

ceBmkEMAREIE

For the year ended 31 December 2013 #Z —F—=F+ A =+—HIF&E

2013
~E-Z5
US$’000
FEx

1,282,988

16,068

(25,968)

(954,727)

(101,454)

(21,602)

(7,646)

(126,086)

(18,201)

5,064

8,079
920

(288)

57,147

(17,859)

Notes
Rzt
Revenue BEH 7
Other income Hapdg A
Changes in inventories of finished BUPK mn RAE R i)
goods and work in progress FEEE
Raw materials and RME BRI
consumables used
Staff costs EEA
Depreciation and IrE R
amortisation expense
Exchange (loss) gain B (B518) e
Other expenses Hitn B
Finance costs MBER 9
Investment income BEBA 10
Reclassification of fair value gain of WIEE AL TAERITE
derivative financial instruments CRMTEZAREE
designated as hedging instruments Sw A R
from hedge reserve ENEER 38
Share of results of associates i /N il
Share of results of joint ventures BhaBELECER
Profit before taxation P 35t A i ) 11
Income tax expense ik iba 14
Profit for the year AEEET

39,288

TE--HFFR - BWEESEFER2A 75

2012
—E-—fF
US$'000
FTET

1,536,608

6,487

15,851

(1,182,013)

(113,986)

(20,292)
837
(126,758)
(19,676)

4,421

2,427

575

(1,602)

102,879

(33,948)

68,931




For the year ended 31 December 2013 #t2 —F—=4F+ - H=+—HI-FE

2012
—E——fF
Notes US$'000
Hiat FTET
Other comprehensive income  H it #HEUL
Items that may be subsequently H#ZE#HZE
reclassified to profit or loss: BEHIEH -
Exchange differences arising BEINEFEEE
on translation 82
Fair value adjustments on forward #5787 23R &R E 5+
contracts designated as ZEBENNAR
cash flow hedges EBEAE 3,166
Reclassification of exchange m%z—mgﬁz
differences from exchange 22 | W 5 ER N 3T
translation reserve to profit or BEENIEERE
loss upon loss of control of HEH R
a subsidiary -
Reclassification of fair value AVORELIEN: L= Eaps
gain from hedge reserve to RBBESEER
profit or loss (2,427)
Other comprehensive income  FRHE 2 I
for the year 821
Total comprehensive income  FR2HIFHEEE
for the year 69,752
Profit for the year AEEBGGET
attributable to:
Owners of the Company RARIRE 60,346
Non-controlling interests FEIE AR AR R 8,585
68,931
Total comprehensive income  FE{L 2 UL 4% :
attributable to:
Owners of the Company RARIRE 61,150
Non-controlling interests FEFEAR AR R 8,602
69,752
Earnings per share BREF
Basic BN 16 US2.49 cents 11l
Diluted e 16 US2.49 cents Al
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As at 31 December 20183 R —F—=4#F+=-H=+—H

2012
—E-—fF
Notes US$'000
Rzt FTET
Non-current assets EREBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y - HR RS 17 343,159
Goodwill Bl 18 6,246
Interests in associates NI - 21 5,314
Interests in joint ventures REBEPE R 22 6,812
Available-for-sale investment AHEEZRE 23 1,614
Prepaid lease payments FENEERIE 24 79,004
Deposits for non-current assets EREBEEZLS 25 20,127
462,276
Current assets RBEE
Inventories FE 26 253,284
Trade receivables FEHER K 27 181,785
Prepayments and other receivables B & E b lE UK I8 28 144,767
Amount due from ultimate eSSl NS E
holding company 29 90
Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries & [E] Z BB A B FIAE 30 519
Tax recoverable Al e 2 F18 2,212
Derivative financial instruments EERY A TAN
designated as hedging TESRT A
instruments 38 -
Prepaid lease payments TEfHEENRIE 24 1,842
Bank balances and cash RITEHREIRE 31 418,430
1,002,929

TE-CZEFR - BREBECEARAA




As at 31 December 2018 R =—F—=4#F+=-H=+—H

2012
—E——F
Notes USs$'000
Hiat FTET
Current liabilities nEas
Trade payables FETARFK 32 127,047
Bills payable AN 33 118,949
Accruals and other payables EETERAREMERNERR 34 176,696
Amount due to ultimate JEAS B AR PR A R FRIR
holding company 29 10
Amounts due to associates JE {6 & 2 R kIR 35 1,990
Amounts due to joint ventures EfRE&EDR %m& 35 12
Tax payable FERIFRIR 7,725
Notes EE 37 —
Bank borrowings RITENK 36 50,554
482,983
Net current assets MBEEFE 519,946
Total assets less current liabilities ¥ E#AE R TGS &G 082,222
Capital and reserves BEAREE
Share capital A& 39 31,181
Share premium & mE 236,897
Accumulated profits Eaianl 262,056
Other reserves H At R 49,028
Equity attributable to owners AAEIRER (LS
of the Company 579,162
Non-controlling interests FEIE AR IR R R 2 69,868
Total equity HE AR 649,030
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As at 31 December 2013 R =—F—=%#F+=-H=+—H

2012
—E-—fF
Notes US$'000
Kz FET
Non-current liabilities EREEE

Bank borrowings RITEN 36 97,500
Notes EE 37 218,426

Derivative financial instruments EEAHRITEMNDITA
designated as hedging instruments &R T A 38 8,962
Deferred tax liabilities FRIERIEEE 43 8,304
333,192
982,222

The consolidated financial statements on pages 75 to #HNE75EEF 238 B 2 ira M B HEAKE
238 were approved and authorised for issue by the board H&€([EFg] [EF)) N T —NF=
of directors (“Board”/“Directors”) on 18 March 2014 and AT /\BHUE RIS - WH TF|ESREK

are signed on its behalf by: BE
Teo Siong Seng R¥A & Teo Tiou Seng REIE
Director % Director %
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As at 31 December 2018 R =—F—=4#F+=-H=+—H

2012
—E-—F
Notes US$'000
Kz FET
Non-current assets EREEE
Property, plant and equipment Y - HIE RS 17 3,944
Investments in subsidiaries KRB AR ZIKE 19 305,811
Investments in associates REtL N B2 KE 21 757
Available-for-sale investment AMEHEZRE 23 669
Deposits for non-current assets EMEEELE 25 1,420
312,601
Current assets BB E
Prepayments and other receivables B+ K H fh jiE U 58 20,934
Amounts due from subsidiaries R NGIE ¢ ] 20 237,344
Derivative financial instruments 5 EZ%%}L/EPI/E\-E’]T/TQE
designated as hedging instruments &gl THE 38 -
Bank balances and cash RITHEBR KR 31 116,669
374,947
Current liabilities mEAaE
Accruals and other payables E@Eﬁ%ﬁ&ﬁ@ﬁ%ﬁﬂﬁ%\ 7,683
Amounts due to subsidiaries AN PNGIE e 20 9,622
Amount due to ultimate B R ARIERR A A /T/\IE\
holding company 29 10
Amounts due to associates AN ENCIF /O] 35 218
Notes Zig 37 —
Bank borrowings RITIEK 36 30,000
47,533
Net current assets MBBEEFE 327,414
Total assets less current liabilities ZEEAFE R ARK 640,015
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As at 31 December 2013 R =—F—=%#F+=-H=+—H

2012
—E——F
Notes US$'000
Wizt FTET
Capital and reserves BARR#E
Share capital [N 39 31,181
Share premium & mE 41 236,897
Share option reserve BAREEE 41 4,724
Hedge reserve P 41 (3,930)
Accumulated profits ES gyl 41 46,255
315,127
Non-current liabilities EREBERE
Bank borrowings RITEN 36 97,500
Notes Ci 37 218,426
Derivative financial instruments EEREIFPTAMNITE
designated as hedging instruments &Rl T A 38 8,962
324,888
640,015
Teo Siong Seng R & Teo Tiou Seng REIE
Director % Director %
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82

For the year ended 31 December 2013 &% — & —

=F A=t AR

Attributable to owners of the Company

FARBRELR
Exchange Non-
translation controlling
Share Share reserve  General Development Revaluation Share option Hedge Other Accumulated interests
capital  premium  SMEHFE  reserve  reseve  reserve  reserve  reserve reserve profits Total  FEEBE Total
i i R -BEE URRE ERERE BRERE  HMRE  2HRE  ZHEA % L35 a5
US§000  US§000 - US$000  US$O000  USS000  USS000  US$000  US§000  US000  USFO00  US§000  USS000  US$000
Fin in Tin Fin i i Fin i T xr Fin Tin i
(Note)
(bzE)
At1 January 2012 RZE-—F-f-B 31,151 236,315 12,728 20,090 5,021 1,361 5,706 (4,669) (3,193 241,085 545,545 66,657 612,202
Proft for the year REFRET - = - - - - - - - 60,346 60346 8585 68931
Exchange diferences BENENEEE
arising on franslation - - 65 - - - - - - - 65 17 82
Fair value adjustments on i&?ﬁﬁﬁﬁ‘fﬁi
forward contracts designated £z REAL)
as cash flow hedges NAABESRE - - - - - - - 3,166 - - 3,166 - 3,166
Reclssiication offavaie 2 BEEFMEH
gain from hedge reserve - ERES
{o proft o loss - . . . . . - - - - )
Total comprehensiveincome. ~ AFFE2ANRAE
for the year - - 65 - - - - 739 - 60,346 61,150 8,602 69,752
Exercise of share options ﬁ@i?ﬁﬁﬁ% 30 582 - - - - (178) - - - 434 o 434
Recogniton of equity-setted ~ BEZMRARZ
share-based payments hitE - - - - - - 129 - - - 129 - 129
Transfer from share option if Sﬁxkéféﬁﬁ@iﬁ:
reserve to accumulated etz R
profts for opton forfeited EfE - - - - - - (933) - - 933 - - -
Acquisiton of addtonal interest 55— WE
ina subsidlary i - - - - - - - - (36) - 36) (2,083) 2,099
Dividend paid to non-controling Eﬁ?FWxﬁﬁ
interests BERE - - - - - - - - - - - (3,328) (3,328)
Dividend paid to the owners of ENARTHRRS
the Company - - - - - - - - - 28,060) 28,060) - 28,060)
Transfer from accumulated profits £/ 2517 - - - 10837 1,361 - - - - (1219 - - -
At 31 December 2012 RoE-IF
T-A=1+-A 31,181 236,897 12,793 30,927 6,382 1,361 4724 (3,930) (8,229 262,066 579,162 69,868 649,030
Profit for the year REFER - = - - - - - - - 34,274 34,274 5014 39,288
Bxchange diferences BENEREEE
arising on translation - - 1217 - - - - - - - 1,217 M 1,388
Reclassfication of exchange Rk £—HBAR
diferences fomexchange ~ #251 ?éﬂ%ﬁiﬁ\fﬁ
tranglationresene foproft  REENAEZER
orlossuponloss of control ~~ HIEX %
of asubsidary - ) - - - - - - ) - e
Fair value adjustments on HEEARSE
forward contracts designated WZLHH f
as cash flow hedges A% BESR = o o = = = = 12,009 = S 12,009 = 12,009
Reclassifcation of fairvalue gain - A% Ef& Kk
from hedge reserve to HrREESZES
profit or loss - - - - - - - (8,079 - - 8,079 - (8,079
Total comprehensive income. ~ AEF2 AN HAE
for the year - - (3,185) - - - - 3930 - 34,274 35,019 5125 40,144
Exercise of share options fTiEERE 4 67 = = = = 2 = = = 4 = 4
Recognition of equity-setfled ~ BEsBMRAZZ
share-based payments ERtE - - - - - - 34 - - - % - %
Transfer from share opton reseve. EEREREEAS
to accumulated profts for Zitaflz ik
option forfeited i - - - - - - (1,316) - - 1316 - - -
Disposal ofsubsicres HERBAT - - - o 507) - - - - g - (580 (15609
Accuistion of addtonal EE— W%’NZ
interest in a subsiciary Rigka - - - - - - - - (397) - (397) (12 (809)
Dividend paid to non-controling Hﬂiﬁxﬂxﬁ
interests e - - - - - - - - - - - (3,008) (3,008)
Dividend paid tothe owners —~ THARFRERE
of the Company - - - - - - - - - (15,604) (15,604) - (15,604)
Transfer from accumulated profits B 2517 - - - 3078 768 - - - - (3,849) - - -
At 31 December 2013 RZ5-Z%
+ZB=t+-R 31,185 236,964 9,608 24,760 6,643 1,361 3,420 - (3,626) 287,948 598,263 55,970 654,233
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 #i2 —F—=F +=H=+—HILF/E

Note:

In 2009, at the time of the acquisition of additional 20% equity interests
of Hui Zhou Pacific Container Co., Ltd. and Ningbo Pacific Container
Co., Ltd., the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of
these subsidiaries continued to be carried at their book values in the
consolidated statement of financial position. The excess of the fair
value and the book value of the net assets attributable to the additional
interests acquired, amounted to US$3,193,000, had been recognised
as other reserve in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

Pursuant to the relevant regulations in the People’s
Republic of China (“PRC”) (other than Hong Kong, Macau
and Taiwan) applicable to the Group’s PRC subsidiaries,
these entities have to provide for the PRC statutory
reserves before declaring dividends to their shareholders
as approved by the board of directors. The reserves,
which include general reserve and development reserve,
are not distributable until the end of the operation
periods of the respective entities, at which time any
remaining balance of the reserves can be distributed to
shareholders upon liquidation of the subsidiaries. The
general reserve can be used to offset accumulated losses
of the entities. The general reserve and development
reserve can be used to increase capital upon approval
from the PRC’s relevant authority. The distributable
profits of the subsidiaries are determined based on their
accumulated profits calculated in accordance with the
PRC accounting rules and regulations.

Mt

R-FFNGF  EREBNAFEBRERAFIRELKF
EBBRAA20% 2 BIMER BT - ZFHE L 7l 7 #%
FIBE - BIBERIHE EEERG S BRI R IREE
ABR o WIBRES Em FEEZ A A BELRIREEAER
3,193,000 FETT A5 & 1 m B E) K .2 B M E 1 FEE ©

REBERANAEERNFEARLME ([F
B ) (&8 - RFIREERIN <HBARZH
BUED] - ERRERESSHERERSA
F BRI EAEE A o HETEE—RE
BRBRFEREEEZST AR 2 EEFHERA
BRI - EZEHMBARFRE - AT 2
AR AR AR - —MRFE R B IEFREZ
FRAZ BETEE - —RERBLRERFEBER
B R R A IR R BB AR - P A
A2 AR EAE SRR Bt T R MR E R
HIFa T E muEE o
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For the year ended 31 December 20183 #Z —F—=F+ - H=+—HIFE

2012
T4
Note USs$'000
Hiat FTET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES EERE
Profit before taxation BRA AT A 102,879
Adjustments for: FEE
Depreciation e 18,573
Loss (gain) on disposal of HEMZE - WK
property, plant and equipment FiE 2 B1E () (66)
Loss on property, plant and TIEME - MR
equipment written off R BB 381
Share of results of associates FriGEsE & QAR 2 a5 (579)
Share of results of joint ventures & B Ei8 1,602
Amortisation of prepaid lease BN ERIEEH
payments 1,602
Recognition of equity-settled ERARR
share-based payments LR EE 129
Investment income FEWA (4,421)
Interest expense FEZH 18,290
Reclassification of fair value gain WIEE R R T A/
of derivative financial instruments PTEEMIAZAR
designated as hedging BEE T B EHH
instruments from hedge reserve BEES =B (2,427)
Exchange loss arising from the notes =R E #7 & /E518 536
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HENB ARz W= 44 -
Gain on disposal of an associate HE—BE R Rz e -
Allowance for doubtful debts RIBARE 22
Amortisation of patents BN 2 5 117
Gain on disposal of joint ventures HEGELE W (3,360)
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 #i2 —F—=F +=H=+—HILF/E

2012
—E——F
Note US$'000
Wizt FTET
Operating cash flows EEESETNZ
before movements in EERERE
working capital 133,282
Decrease in inventories FERD 24,387
(Increase) decrease in trade FEUBR R (38 0)
receivables N 91,565
Decrease (increase) in TEA R E At FE UL
prepayments and FRIBF A (35 0)
other receivables (21,093)
Decrease in amount due JE WS A 242 AR
from ultimate holding NGIVE 8
company 925
Decrease in amount due JEW—BREER A
from a related company IR 405
Increase in amount due L EE NS
from fellow subsidiaries FRIEIE AN -
Increase (decrease) in JE 1T BR SR 00
trade payables O (1,849)
(Decrease) Increase in JENE8E O )
bills payable 3N 55,328
(Decrease) increase in FERTE R R EAM
accruals and other payables FERTBRFR CRk2)
N 16,352
Decrease in derivative AR TAN
financial instrument liability PTEEmIT A
designated as hedging aERL
instruments (275)
Cash (used in) from EX () MERE
operations 299,027
Interest paid ERHE (17,784)
Income tax paid B FETSHR (36,417)
Net cash (used in) from B (FT#E)
operating activities SR &35 244,826

—m=EER
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For the year ended 31 December 20183 #Z —F—=F+ - H=+—HIFE

2012
—E——F
Note US$'000
Hiat FTET

INVESTING ACTIVITIES BERE
Purchase of property, plant EEYZE MK

and equipment B (85,959)
Deposits paid of non-current assets BT IEREBIEEL S (19,541)
Proceed on disposal of an associate & —Bt & A B 1S -
Proceed on disposal of a joint venture H&E—&&EEMES 11,858
Proceeds on disposal of property, HEYE - a3k

plant and equipment RS 124
Dividends received from associates & Uk & A F] &

and joint ventures BEBERE 999
Interest received 2HF B 4,074
Dividend income from unlisted BUIELETES

equity investment RERE 347
Acquisition of a joint venture WE—E&E -
Cash inflow arising from disposal HERBRRZ

of subsidiaries R FI15 44 -
Advances made to mERMME AR

fellow subsidiaries B IR (3,071)
Repayment received from fellow eI

subsidiaries ANEIFIA 3,088
Repayment received from WEl&aEdHERIE

joint ventures 19
Deposits received on disposal BERFHEZ

of subsidiaries B rliRE 50,358
Net cash used in BERHE

investing activities R&EFHE (37,704)
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 #i2 —F—=F +=H=+—HILF/E

2012
—E-—fF
Note US$'000
Wizt FTET
FINANCING ACTIVITIES BLERE
Proceeds from exercise of 1T IR PATS
share options 434
New bank loans RITHER 57,344
Repayment of bank loans ERFTER (144,539)
Dividends paid to non-controlling B T IEERARER
interests w2 IRE (3,328)
Dividends paid to owners of SRR RIRERE
the Company (28,060)
Advance from ultimate holding BRARIEI A B)E
company FRIE 166
Repayment to ultimate holding BEFEERAR]
company KIE (166)
Advances from associates g ABft & R E 508 6,500
Repayments to associates EEHE R aKIE (6,524)
Advances from joint ventures BAGEDRERIA 45
Repayments to joint ventures EEAEDLHEFIA (70)
Consideration paid for acquisition BEiF—MBARER
of additional interest in a subsidiary 2 XA St (2,099)
Net cash from (used in) financing EAZFENFRE (FT5E)
activities REFH (120,297)
NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN HeEREREEZ
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (iEi4) i/ 86,825
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS W—H—HZzEHE&R
AT 1 JANUARY EREE 331,577
Effect of foreign exchange [EREF) s T8
rate changes 28
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ®R+—-—BA=+—Hx
AT 31 DECEMBER HeERERRE 418,430
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS H4&RZRHLER :
REPRESENTED BY:
Bank balances and cash RITHEBRRIE S 418,430
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GENERAL

The Company is a listed public limited company
incorporated in Hong Kong and its shares are listed
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(“Stock Exchange”). Its ultimate and immediate
holding company is Pacific International Lines
(Private) Limited (“PIL”), a company incorporated
in the Republic of Singapore. The addresses of the
registered office and principal place of business
of the Company are disclosed in the section of
corporate information of the annual report. The
consolidated financial statements are presented in
United States dollars (‘US$”), which is the same as
the functional currency of the Company.

The Group is principally engaged in the businesses
of manufacturing of containers and other related
products and providing logistics services.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”)

In the current year, the Group has applied the
following new and revised HKFRSs issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants

R REIERTRY
B &
(I & BT SR )

RAFE  AEBECDEAATHEES
FHER AR Z IR BRI EE
PRS2 -

(the “HKICPA”).

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual improvements to
HKFRSs 2009-2011 Cycle
Amendments to HKFRS 7 Disclosures - Offsetting Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities
Amendments to HKFRS 10,  Consolidated Financial
HKFRS 11 and HKFRS 12 Statements, Joint
Arrangements and

Disclosure of Interests in Other
Entities: Transition Guidance

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of ltems of Other
Comprehensive Income
HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial
Statements
HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements
HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests
in Other Entities
HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement
HKAS 19 Employee Benefits
(as revised in 2011)
HKAS 27 Separate Financial Statements
(as revised in 2011)
HKAS 28 Investments in Associates and
(as revised in 2011) Joint Ventures
HK(FRIC)-Int 20 Stripping Costs in the Production

Phase of a Surface Mine

BN REER BB B E
ZIERT BIEENZE
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—F——FAY)
BAMBREER RE - 2/
FTHR2ER EEAzBERE
BRI REER GETBHE
F10% F11% BELHRR
RE 12525 AEMERZE
BAIRE -
BEHIES
BASEAE 15 Rt AWz
ZIERT A2 25
BB REER LEYBHZE
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BRI REER AREZH
F115%
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F£13%
EEQHERIE 195 ESEF
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EREERETY  BUUKHE
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

Except as described below, the application of the
new and revised HKFRSs in the current year has
had no material impact on the Group’s financial
performance and positions for the current and prior
years and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 7 Disclosures
- Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities

The Group has applied the amendments to HKFRS
7 Disclosures — Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities for the first time in the current
year. The amendments to HKFRS 7 require entities
to disclose information about:

a) recognised financial instruments that are set
off in accordance with HKAS 32 Financial
Instruments: Presentation; and

b) recognised financial instruments that are
subject to an enforceable master netting
agreement or similar agreement, irrespective
of whether the financial instruments are set
off in accordance with HKAS 32.

The amendments to HKFRS 7 have been applied
retrospectively. The application of the amendments
has had no material impact on the amounts
reported in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and revised Standards on
consolidation, joint arrangements,
associates and disclosures

In the current year, the Group has applied for
the first time the package of five standards on
consolidation, joint arrangements, associates and
disclosures comprising HKFRS 10 Consolidated
Financial Statements, HKFRS 11 Joint
Arrangements, HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests
in Other Entities, HKAS 27 (as revised in 2011)
Separate Financial Statements and HKAS 28 (as
revised in 2011) Investments in Associates and
Joint Ventures, together with the amendments to
HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11 and HKFRS 12 regarding
transitional guidance.

The impact of the application of these standards is
set out below.

Impact of the application of HKFRS 10

HKFRS 10 replaces the parts of HKAS 27
Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements
that deal with consolidated financial statements
and HK(SIC) — Int 12 Consolidation — Special
Purpose Entities. HKFRS 10 changes the definition
of control such that an investor has control over an
investee when a) it has power over the investee,
b) it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee, and c) has
the ability to use its power to affect its returns. All
three of these criteria must be met for an investor
to have control over an investee. Previously, control
was defined as the power to govern the financial
and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain
benefits from its activities. Additional guidance
has been included in HKFRS 10 to explain when
an investor has control over an investee. The
application of HKFRS 10 has not had any material
impact to the Group.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and revised Standards on
consolidation, joint arrangements,
associates and disclosures (Continued)

Impact of the application of HKFRS 11

HKFRS 11 replaces HKAS 31 Interests in Joint
Ventures, and the guidance contained in a related
interpretation, HK(SIC) — Int 13 Jointly Controlled
Entities — Non-Monetary Contributions by
Venturers, has been incorporated in HKAS 28 (as
revised in 2011). HKFRS 11 deals with how a joint
arrangement of which two or more parties have
joint control should be classified and accounted
for. Under HKFRS 11, there are only two types
of joint arrangements — joint operations and joint
ventures. The classification of joint arrangements
under HKFRS 11 is determined based on the rights
and obligations of parties to the joint arrangements
by considering the structure, the legal form of
the arrangements, the contractual terms agreed
by the parties to the arrangement, and, when
relevant, other facts and circumstances. A joint
operation is a joint arrangement whereby the
parties that have joint control of the arrangement
(i.e. joint operators) have rights to the assets,
and obligations for the liabilities, relating to the
arrangement. A joint venture is a joint arrangement
whereby the parties that have joint control of the
arrangement (i.e. joint venturers) have rights to the
net assets of the arrangement. Previously, HKAS
31 contemplated three types of joint arrangements
— jointly controlled entities, jointly controlled
operations and jointly controlled assets. The
classification of joint arrangements under HKAS
31 was primarily determined based on the legal
form of the arrangement (e.g. a joint arrangement
that was established through a separate entity was
classified as a jointly controlled entity).
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and revised Standards on
consolidation, joint arrangements,
associates and disclosures (Continued)

Impact of the application of HKFRS 11
(Continued)

The initial and subsequent accounting of joint
ventures and joint operations is different.
Investments in joint ventures are accounted
for using the equity method (proportionate
consolidation is no longer allowed). Investments
in joint operations are accounted for such that
each joint operator recognises its assets (including
its share of any assets jointly held), its liabilities
(including its share of any liabilities incurred jointly),
its revenue (including its share of revenue from
the sale of the output by the joint operation) and
its expenses (including its share of any expenses
incurred jointly). Each joint operator accounts
for the assets and liabilities, as well as revenues
and expenses, relating to its interest in the joint
operation in accordance with the applicable
standards. The directors of the Company reviewed
and assessed the classification of the Group’s
investments in joint arrangements in accordance
with the requirements of HKFRS 11. The directors
concluded that the Group’s interests in jointly
controlled entities accounted for using equity
method under HKAS 31 should be classified as
joint ventures under HKFRS 11. The application of
HKFRS 11 has not had any material impact on the
amount recognised in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and revised Standards on
consolidation, joint arrangements,
associates and disclosures (Continued)

Impact of the application of HKFRS 12

HKFRS 12 is a new disclosure standard and
is applicable to entities that have interests in
subsidiaries, joint arrangements, associates and/
or unconsolidated structured entities. In general,
the application of HKFRS 12 has resulted in
more extensive disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements (please see notes 21 and 22
for details). In respect of the Group’s associates
and joint ventures, the directors are of the view
that they are not individually material to the Group.
Accordingly, the Group has not made additional
disclosures required by HKFRS 12.

HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

The Group has applied HKFRS 13 for the first time
in the current year. HKFRS 13 establishes a single
source of guidance for, and disclosures about, fair
value measurements. The scope of HKFRS 13 is
broad: the fair value measurement requirements of
HKFRS 13 apply to both financial instrument items
and non-financial instrument items for which other
HKFRSs require or permit fair value measurements
and disclosures about fair value measurements,
except for share-based payment transactions that
are within the scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based
Payment, leasing transactions that are within the
scope of HKAS 17 Leases, and measurements
that have some similarities to fair value but are
not fair value (e.g. net realisable value for the
purposes of measuring inventories or value in use
for impairment assessment purposes).
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement
(Continued)

HKFRS 13 defines the fair value of an asset as the
price that would be received to sell an asset (or
paid to transfer a liability, in the case of determining
the fair value of a liability) in an orderly transaction
in the principal (or most advantageous) market
at the measurement date under current market
conditions. Fair value under HKFRS 13 is an exit
price regardless of whether that price is directly
observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. Also, HKFRS 13 includes extensive
disclosure requirements.

HKFRS 13 requires prospective application. In
accordance with the transitional provisions of
HKFRS 13, the Group has applied the new fair
value measurement and disclosure requirements
prospectively. The Group has provided these
disclosures in note 6¢. Other than the additional
disclosures, the application of HKFRS 13 has not
had any material impact on the amount recognised
in the Group’s consolidated financial statements.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of
Items of Other Comprehensive Income

The Group has applied the amendments to HKAS
1 Presentation of Items of Other Comprehensive
Income. Upon the adoption of the amendments to
HKAS 1, the Group’s “statement of comprehensive
income” is renamed as the “statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income”. In
addition, the amendments to HKAS 1 require
additional disclosures to be made in the other
comprehensive income section such that items of
other comprehensive income are grouped into two
categories: (a) items that will not be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss and (b) items that
may be reclassified subsequently to profit or
loss when specific conditions are met. Income
tax on items of other comprehensive income is
required to be allocated on the same basis — the
amendments do not change the option to present
items of other comprehensive income either before
tax or net of tax. The amendments have been
applied retrospectively, and hence the presentation
of items of other comprehensive income has
been modified to reflect the changes. Other than
the above mentioned presentation changes, the
application of the amendments to HKAS 1 does
not result in any impact on profit or loss, other
comprehensive income and total comprehensive
income.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS

(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)
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New and revised HKFRSs issued but
not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following
new and revised standards, amendments and

interpretation that have been issued but are not yet 2R o
effective.
Amendments to HKFRS 10,  Investment Entities’ BRMBREER KEER
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27 E£10% - F12%
REBER G LR
Eo15h 2 BT
Amendments to HKAS 19 Defined Benefit Plans: oyl REBENETE
Employee Contributions? F195R2183] ESH?
Amendments to HKFRS 9 Mandatory Effective Date BB REER BB B ER
and HKFRS 7 of HKFRS 9 and FIRRETH FIH BB
Transition Disclosures® BT EUAE
FIBERE
Amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets BBEERFE 325 e sZEN
and Financial Liabilties’ ZIBET THEE
Amendments to HKAS 36 Recoverable Amount BASIERIZE6R REHHEEZT]
Disclosures for BRI W1z
Non-Financial Assets’
Amendments to HKAS 39 Novation of Derivatives and BASTERIZ IR ITAETRZEERY
Continuation of BT B EZ L
Hedge Accounting’
Amendments to HKFRSs ~ Annual Improvements to BB REER BBE B R F
HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle* ZIERT BHE(—CE-F
FE_F—_F
B
Amendments to HKFRSs  Annual Improvements to BB REER BBE B R F
HKFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle? ZIERT BHE(—EF—
FRF—-F
B
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments? ERNBEREERNE 2HTA?
HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts® ERUBERESERNE 14, EFELEFS
HK(IFRIC) - Int 21 Levies' &% (BRIBHRE HE
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-REF215%
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2 APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSSs”) (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but
not yet effective (Continued)

U Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2014, with earlier application permitted.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July
2014, with earlier application permitted.

8 Available for application — the mandatory effective date
will be determined when the outstanding phases of
HKFRS 9 are finalised.

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July
2014, with limited exceptions.

2 Effective for first annual HKFRS financial statements

beginning on or after 1 January 2016.

HKFRS9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduces new
requirements for the classification and
measurement of financial assets. HKFRS 9
was subsequently amended in 2010 to include
the requirements for the classification and
measurement of financial liabilities and for
derecognition, and further amended in 2013
to include the new requirements for hedge
accounting.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS9 Financial Instruments
(Continued)

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described as
follows:

° All recognised financial assets that are within
the scope of HKAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement are
subsequently measured at amortised cost
or fair value. Specifically, debt investments
that are held within a business model whose
objective is to collect the contractual cash
flows, and that have contractual cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal outstanding are
generally measured at amortised cost at
the end of subsequent accounting periods.
All other debt investments and equity
investments are measured at their fair values
at the end of subsequent reporting periods.
In addition, under HKFRS 9, entities may
make an irrevocable election to present
subsequent changes in the fair value of
an equity investment (that is not held for
trading) in other comprehensive income, with
only dividend income generally recognised in
profit or loss.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS9 Financial Instruments
(Continued)

° With regard to the measurement of financial
liabilities designated as at fair value through
profit or loss, HKFRS 9 requires that the
amount of change in the fair value of the
financial liability that is attributable to
changes in the credit risk of that liability
is presented in other comprehensive
income, unless the recognition of the
effects of changes in the liability’s credit
risk in other comprehensive income would
create or enlarge an accounting mismatch
in profit or loss. Changes in fair value of
financial liabilities attributable to changes
in the financial liabilities’ credit risk are not
subsequently reclassified to profit or loss.
Under HKAS 39, the entire amount of the
change in the fair value of the financial
liability designated as fair value through profit
or loss was presented in profit or loss.

The new general hedge accounting requirements
retain the three types of hedge accounting.
However, greater flexibility has been introduced
to the types of transactions eligible for hedge
accounting, specifically broadening the types of
instruments that qualify for hedging instruments
and the types of risk components of non-financial
items that are eligible for hedge accounting.
In addition, the effectiveness test has been
overhauled and replaced with the principle of an
“economic relationship”. Retrospective assessment
of hedge effectiveness is also no longer required.
Enhanced disclosure requirements about an
entity’s risk management activities have also been
introduced.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS9 Financial Instruments
(Continued)

The directors anticipate that the adoption of
HKFRS 9 in the future may have a significant
impact on classification of measurement in respect
of the Group’s and the Company’s available-for-
sale investment, which is currently stated at cost
less impairment and will be measured at fair value
upon adoption and be designated as fair value
through other comprehensive income.

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12
and HKAS 27 Investment Entities

The amendments to HKFRS 10 define an
investment entity and require a reporting entity that
meets the definition of an investment entity not to
consolidate its subsidiaries but instead to measure
its subsidiaries at fair value through profit or loss in
its financial statements.

To qualify as an investment entity, a reporting entity
is required to:

o obtain funds from one or more investors
for the purpose of providing them with
professional investment management
Services;

° commit to its investor(s) that its business
purpose is to invest funds solely for returns
from capital appreciation, investment
income, or both; and

o measure and evaluate performance of
substantially all of its investments on a fair
value basis.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS
12 and HKAS 27 Investment Entities
(Continued)

Consequential amendments have been made
to HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27 to introduce new
disclosure requirements for investment entities.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate
that the investment entities amendments will have
any effect on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements as the Company is not an investment
entity.

Amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting
Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities

The amendments to HKAS 32 clarify existing
application issues relating to the offset of financial
assets and financial liabilities requirements.
Specifically, the amendments clarify the meaning of
“currently has a legally enforceable right of set-off”
and “simultaneous realisation and settlement”.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate
that the application of these amendments to HKAS
32 will have a significant impact on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 36 Recoverable
Amount Disclosures for Non-Financial
Assets

The amendments to HKAS 36 remove the
requirement to disclose the recoverable amount of
a cash-generating unit (“CGU”) to which goodwill
or other intangible assets with indefinite useful
lives had been allocated when there has been no
impairment or reversal of impairment of the related
CGU. Furthermore, the amendments introduce
additional disclosure requirements regarding the
fair value hierarchy, key assumptions and valuation
techniques used when the recoverable amount of
an asset or CGU was determined based on its fair
value less costs of disposal.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate
that the application of these amendments to HKAS
36 will have a significant impact on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs issued by
the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required
by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except
for the derivative financial instrument, which is
measured at fair value, as explained in the principal
accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on fair value of
the consideration given in exchange for goods.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to
sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date, regardless of whether
that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair
value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes
into account the characteristics of the asset or
liability if market participants would take those
characteristics into account when pricing the asset
or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined
on such a basis, except for share-based payment
transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS
2, leasing transactions that are within the scope
of HKAS 17, and measurements that have some
similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such
as net realisable value in HKAS 2 or value in use in
HKAS 36.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair
value measurements are categorised into Level 1,
2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs
to the fair value measurements are observable
and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted)
in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities that the entity can access at the
measurement date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted
prices included within Level 1, that are
observable for the asset or liability, either
directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for
the asset or liability.
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(a)

Basis of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements
incorporate the financial statements of the
Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is
achieved when the Company:

° has power over the investee;

o is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the
investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to
affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it
controls an investee if facts and circumstances
indicate that there are changes to one or
more of the three elements of control listed
above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins
when the Group obtains control over the
subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income
and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or
disposed of during the year are included
in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income from
the date the Group gain control until the
date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.
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3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(a)

Basis of Consolidation (Continued)

Profit or loss and each item of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the
owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests. Total comprehensive
income of subsidiaries is attributed to the
owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in
the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to
the financial statements of subsidiaries to
bring their accounting policies in line with
the Group’s accounting policies.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity,
income and expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members
of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

Changes in the Group’s ownership
interests in existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests
in existing subsidiaries that do not result
in the Group losing control over the
subsidiaries are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amounts of the
Group’s interests and the non-controlling
interests are adjusted to reflect the changes
in their relative interests in the subsidiaries.
Any difference between the amount by
which the non-controlling interests are
adjusted based on the net asset value of
the subsidiaries and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised
directly in equity and attributed to owners of
the Company.
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3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Basis of Consolidation (Continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership
interests in existing subsidiaries
(Continued)

When the Group loses control of a
subsidiary, a gain or loss is recognised
in profit or loss and is calculated as the
difference between (i) the aggregate of the
fair value of the consideration received and
the fair value of any retained interest and (i)
the previous carrying amount of the assets
(including goodwill), and liabilities of the
subsidiary and any non-controlling interests.
All amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to that
subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets
or liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified
to profit or loss or transferred to another
category of equity as specified/permitted by
applicable HKFRSs). The fair value of any
investment retained in the former subsidiary
at the date when control is lost is regarded
as the fair value on initial recognition for
subsequent accounting under HKAS
39, when applicable, the cost on initial
recognition of an investment in an associate
or a joint venture.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted
for using the acquisition method. The
consideration transferred in a business
combination is measured at fair value, which
is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-
date fair values of the assets transferred by
the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group
to the former owners of the acquiree and
the equity interests issued by the Group
in exchange for control of the acquiree.
Acquisition related costs are generally
recognised in profit or loss as incurred.
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(b) Business combinations (Continued)

At the acquisition date, the identifiable
assets acquired and the liabilities assumed
are recognised at their fair value at the
acquisition date, except that:

o deferred tax assets or liabilities and
liabilities or assets related to employee
benefit arrangements are recognised
and measured in accordance with
HKAS 12 Income Taxes and HKAS 19
Employee Benefits respectively;

° liabilities or equity instruments
related to share-based payment
arrangements of the acquiree or
share-based payment arrangements
of the Group entered into to replace
share-based payment arrangements
of the acquiree are measured in
accordance with HKFRS 2 Share-
based Payment at the acquisition
date; and

o assets (or disposal groups) that
are classified as held for sale in
accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-
current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations are
measured in accordance with that
standard.
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3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(b)

Business combinations (Continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the
sum of the consideration transferred, the
amount of any non-controlling interests in the
acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree
(if any) over the net of the acquisition-date
amounts of the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed. If, after re-
assessment, the net of the acquisition-date
amounts of the identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of
the consideration transferred, the amount of
any non-controlling interests in the acquiree
and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously
held interest in the acquiree (if any), the
excess is recognised immediately in profit or
loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present
ownership interests and entitle their holders
to a proportionate share of the entity’s net
assets in the event of liquidation may be
initially measured either at fair value or at
the non-controlling interests’ proportionate
share of the recognised amounts of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The
choice of measurement basis is made
on a transaction-by-transaction basis.
Other types of non-controlling interests
are measured at their fair value or another
measurement basis required by another
standard.
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3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Business combinations (Continued)

When a business combination is achieved
in stages, the Group’s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair
value at the acquisition date (i.e. the date
when the Group obtains control), and the
resulting gain or loss, if any, is recognised in
profit or loss. Amounts arising from interests
in the acquiree prior to the acquisition date
that have previously been recognised in
other comprehensive income are reclassified
to profit or loss where such treatment would
be appropriate if that interest were disposed
of.

Investments in subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an enterprise in which the
Company achieves the control and has the
power to govern the financial and operating
policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits
from its activities.

Investments in subsidiaries are included
in the Company’s statement of financial
position at cost, less any identified
impairment loss.

Investments in associates and
joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the
Group has significant influence. Significant
influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of
the investee but is not control or joint control
over those policies.
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3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(d)

Investments in associates and
joint ventures (Continued)

A joint venture is a joint arrangement
whereby the parties that have joint control
of the arrangement have rights to the net
assets of the joint arrangement. Joint control
is the contractually agreed sharing of control
of an arrangement, which exists only when
decisions about the relevant activities require
unanimous consent of the parties sharing
control.

The results and assets and liabilities
of associates and joint ventures are
incorporated in these consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of
accounting. The financial statements of
associates and joint ventures used for equity
accounting purposes are prepared using
uniform accounting policies as those of
the Group for like transactions and events
in similar circumstances. Under the equity
method, an investment in an associate or
a joint venture is initially recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position
at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise
the Group’s share of the profit or loss
and other comprehensive income of the
associate or joint venture. When the Group’s
share of losses of an associate or joint
venture exceeds the Group’s interest in that
associate or joint venture (which includes
any long-term interests that, in substance,
form part of the Group’s net investment in
the associate or joint venture), the Group
discontinues recognising its share of further
losses. Additional losses are recognised only
to the extent that the Group has incurred
legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the associate or joint
venture.
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(d)

Investments in associates and
joint ventures (Continued)

An investment in an associate or a joint
venture is accounted for using the equity
method from the date on which the investee
becomes an associate or a joint venture. On
acquisition of the investment in an associate
or a joint venture, any excess of the cost of
the investment over the Group’s share of
the net fair value of the identifiable assets
and liabilities of the investee is recognised
as goodwill, which is included within the
carrying amount of the investment. Any
excess of the Group’s share of the net fair
value of the identifiable assets and liabilities
over the cost of the investment, after
reassessment, is recognised immediately
in profit or loss in the period in which the
investment is acquired.

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied
to determine whether it is necessary to
recognise any impairment loss with respect
to the Group’s investment in an associate
or a joint venture. When necessary, the
entire carrying amount of the investment
(including goodwill) is tested for impairment
in accordance with HKAS 36 Impairment
of Assets as a single asset by comparing
its recoverable amount (higher of value in
use and fair value less costs of disposal)
with its carrying amount. Any impairment
loss recognised forms part of the carrying
amount of the investment. Any reversal
of that impairment loss is recognised in
accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that
the recoverable amount of the investment
subsequently increases.
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3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(d)

Investments in associates and
joint ventures (Continued)

The Group discontinues the use of the
equity method from the date when the
investment ceases to be an associate or
a joint venture, or when the investment (or
a portion thereof) is classified as held for
sale. When the Group retains an interest
in the former associate or joint venture
and the retained interest is a financial
asset, the Group measures the retained
interest at fair value at that date and the fair
value is regarded as its fair value on initial
recognition in accordance with HKAS 39.
The difference between the carrying amount
of the associate or joint venture at the date
the equity method was discontinued, and
the fair value of any retained interest and
any proceeds from disposing of a part
interest in the associate or joint venture is
included in the determination of the gain
or loss on disposal of the associate or joint
venture. In addition, the Group accounts
for all amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in relation to
that associate or joint venture on the same
basis as would be required if that associate
or joint venture had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a
gain or loss previously recognised in other
comprehensive income by that associate or
joint venture would be reclassified to profit
or loss on the disposal of the related assets
or liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain
or loss from equity to profit or loss (as a
reclassification adjustment) when the equity
method is discontinued.
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3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(d)

Investments in associates and
joint ventures (Continued)

The Group continues to use the equity
method when an investment in an associate
becomes an investment in a joint venture or
an investment in a joint venture becomes
an investment in an associate. There is no
remeasurement to fair value upon such
changes in ownership interests.

When the Group reduces its ownership
interest in an associate or a joint venture
but the Group continues to use the equity
method, the Group reclassifies to profit or
loss the proportion of the gain or loss that
had previously been recognised in other
comprehensive income relating to that
reduction in ownership interest if that gain
or loss would be reclassified to profit or
loss on the disposal of the related assets or
liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an
associate or a joint venture of the Group
(such as a sale or contribution of assets),
profits and losses resulting from the
transactions with the associate or joint
venture are recognised in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements only to the
extent of interests in the associate or joint
venture that are not related to the Group.
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3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(e)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a
business is carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses, if any, and is presented
separately in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

For the purpose of impairment testing,
goodwill is allocated to each of the cash-
generating units (or groups of cash-
generating units) that is expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination. A
cash-generating unit to which goodwill has
been allocated is tested for impairment
annually, or more frequently whenever there
is indication that the unit may be impaired.
For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a
reporting period, the cash-generating unit
to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment before the end of that
reporting period. If the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit is less than the
carrying amount of the unit, the impairment
loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit
and then to the other assets of the unit pro-
rata on the basis of the carrying amount of
each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss
for goodwill is recognised directly in profit
or loss in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income. An impairment loss
recognised for goodwill is not reversed in
subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating
unit, the attributable amount of goodwill is
included in the determination of the amount
of profit or loss on disposal.
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3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(f)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, including
leasehold land (classified as finance leases)
and buildings and site improvements held
for use in the production or supply of goods
or services, or for administrative purposes
other than construction in progress and
freehold land, are stated at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses, if
any. Depreciation is recognised so as to
write off the cost of items of property, plant
and equipment other than construction
in progress and freehold land less their
residual values over their estimated useful
lives, using the straight-line method. The
estimated useful lives, residual values and
depreciation method are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period, with the effect of
any changes in estimate accounted for on a
prospective basis. The estimated useful lives
are as follows:

Estimated
useful life
Leasehold land and
buildings and site improvements
outside Hong Kong
- on medium term lease 20 to 50 years

Buildings and site improvements
in Hong Kong
—on short lease

Plant and machinery

Furniture, fittings and
office equipment

Motor vehicles

1to 10 years
5to 15 years

510 10 years
5to 10 years
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3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

()

Property, plant and equipment
(Continued)

Construction in progress is included in
property, plant and equipment in the course
of construction for production, supply, or
administrative purposes. The amortisation
of prepaid lease payments provided during
the construction period is included as part
of costs of building under construction.
Costs also include professional fees and, for
qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised
in accordance with the Group’s accounting
policy. Construction in progress are carried
at cost less any recognised impairment
loss. Such properties are classified to the
appropriate categories of property, plant and
equipment when completed and ready for
intended use. Depreciation of these assets,
on the same basis as other property assets,
commences when the assets are ready for
their intended use.

An item of property, plant and equipment
is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected to
arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or
retirement of an item of property, plant and
equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in
profit or loss.
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3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(9)

Impairment losses on tangible
and intangible assets other than
goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the
Group reviews the carrying amounts of its
tangible and intangible assets with finite
useful lives other than goodwill to determine
whether there is any indication that those
assets have suffered an impairment loss. If
any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the asset is estimated in order to
determine the extent of the impairment loss,
if any. When it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount of an individual
asset, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit to which
the asset belongs. Where a reasonable
and consistent basis of allocation can
be identified, corporate assets are also
allocated to individual cash-generating
units, or otherwise they are allocated to the
smallest group of cash-generating units for
which a reasonable and consistent allocation
basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair
value less costs to sell and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset for which the estimates of future
cash flows have not been adjusted.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(9)

(h)

Impairment losses on tangible
and intangible assets other than
goodwill (Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset
(or a cash-generating unit) is estimated
to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently
reverses, the carrying amount of the asset
(or cash-generating unit) is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
but so that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the
asset (or a cash generating unit) in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised as income immediately.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost
and net realisable value. Cost, comprises
direct materials, and where applicable, direct
labour, and those overheads that have been
incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition.

Costs of inventories are calculated using
weighted average method. Net realisable
value represents the estimated selling price
for inventories less all estimated cost of
completion and costs necessary to make
the sales.
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3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(i)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position and the Company’s
statement of financial position when a
group entity becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument.
Financial assets and financial liabilities are
initially measured at fair value. Transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets
and financial liabilities (other than financial
assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate,
on initial recognition. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

() Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are
classified into one of the two
categories, including loans and
receivables and available-for-sale
financial assets. The classification
depends on the nature and purpose of
the financial assets and is determined
at the time of initial recognition. All
regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales
are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets
within the time frame established
by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3 EEGER#®)
POLICIES (Continued)
() Financial instruments (Continued) i) =MAIE@#E

(i)

Financial assets (Continued)
Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a
method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial asset and of
allocating interest income over the
relevant period. The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through
the expected life of the financial asset,
or, where appropriate, a shorter
period to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an
effective interest basis.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-
derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market.
Subsequent to initial recognition,
loans and receivables (including
trade receivables, other receivables,
amounts due from ultimate holding
company, fellow subsidiaries, joint
ventures, subsidiaries and a related
company and bank balances and
cash) are measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method,
less any identified impairment losses
(see accounting policy on impairment
loss on financial assets below).
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3 EEEFBR@®@
POLICIES (continued)

() Financial instruments (Continued) i) E#HIRE
() Financial assets (Continued) () &EBEE®E)
Available-for-sale financial assets AR EZ TR EE
Available-for-sale financial assets A ESRMEEAR

are non-derivatives that are either
designated or not classified as
financial assets as fair value through
profit or loss, loans and receivables
or held-to-maturity investments. The
Group designated the unquoted
equity investments as available-for-
sale financial assets.

For available-for-sale equity
investments that do not have a quoted
market price in an active market and
whose fair value cannot be reliably
measured, they are measured at cost
less any identified impairment losses
at the end of each reporting period
(see accounting policy on impairment
loss on financial assets below).

Impairment loss on financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for
indicators of impairment at the end of
the reporting period. Financial assets
are considered to be impaired where
there is objective evidence that, as
a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition
of the financial asset, the estimated
future cash flows of the financial
assets have been affected.
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3 EEEFBR@E

POLICIES (Continued)

Il

i)

() Financial instruments (Continued)

(i)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment loss on financial assets
(Continued)

For financial assets, objective

evidence of impairment could include:

° significant financial difficulty of
the issuer or counterparty; or

i) &MIE%E)

(i)

EMEEE)
EHMEERERK (E)
HRNEMEE  BEZE
BREA R

. BITEIB TR
BEMBREE =

. breach of contract, such . EA) o KRB
as default or delinquency in Y AFEAE
interest or principal payments; %
or

. it becoming probable that the J BRABEAREE
borrower will enter bankruptcy EWESITEEMA o

or financial re-organisation.

For financial assets carried at
amortised cost, the amount of the
impairment loss recognised is the
difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value
of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost,
the amount of the impairment loss is
measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated future
cash flows discounted at the current
market rate of return for a similar
financial asset. Such impairment loss
will not be reversed in subsequent
periods.
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3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(i)

Financial instruments (Continued)

(i)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment loss on financial assets
(Continued)

The carrying amount of the financial
asset is reduced by the impairment
loss directly for all financial assets with
the exception of trade receivables,
where the carrying amount is reduced
through the use of an allowance
account. Changes in the carrying
amount of the allowance account are
recognised in profit or loss. When
a trade receivable is considered
uncollectible, it is written off against
the allowance account. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously
written off are credited to profit or
loss.

For financial assets measured at
amortised cost, if, in a subsequent
period, the amount of impairment
loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment
losses was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is
reversed through profit or loss to the
extent that the carrying amount of the
asset at the date the impairment is
reversed does not exceed what the
amortised cost would have been had
the impairment not been recognised.
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3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(i)

Financial instruments (Continued)

(ii)

Financial liabilities and equity
instruments

Financial liabilities and equity
instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance
with the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the
definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract
that evidences a residual interest
in the assets of the Group after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
instruments issued by the Company
are recognised at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a
method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial liability and of
allocating interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid
or received that form an integral
part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums
or discounts) through the expected
life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to
the net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an
effective interest basis.
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3 EEEFBR@®@
POLICIES (continued)

() Financial instruments (Continued) ) =#AIE#E)
(i) Financial liabilities and equity (i) SMEaEREHETIAR
instruments (Continued) (%)

Financial liabilities THEE

Financial liabilities including bank TREBEBERITER
borrowings, trade payables, other FEHEEM H b fE 11 BR
payables, bills payable, amounts F‘ﬁ?ﬂf JE A B 4%
due to ultimate holding company, T Bt NRRE

associates and joint ventures and
notes are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective
interest method.

Financial liability at fair value
through profit or loss

A financial liability is classified as held
for trading if:

- it has been acquired principally
for the purpose of selling in the
near term; or

éffﬁ%ml,ﬁ&m?ﬁﬁéﬁ?é
ARABERMNEEFTER

BRABEF A Bz
THRE

CRHEBEEBESEARSE
ER S - 1 -

- BABSHEERE
HIAKELE « %

- on initial recognition it is a - I 1)) 45 B AR B H B
part of a portfolio of identified RESEEEREEE
financial instruments that the ZAl @Bl eI A
Group manages together and HErHFP —
has a recent actual pattern of - MEBERE
short-term profit-taking; or AR HEN RN

%

- it is a derivative that is not - HRIIFRER/RE
designated and effective as MMERE A TR
hedging instruments. WOTETE -

Financial liability at fair value through BEAnBEFABRZE

profit or loss include held-for-trading BREEBREIERERREB

derivative financial instrument that MHMERE AT A2 T—ir
is not designated and effective as BEXSITESRMTIA
hedging instrument. At the end of E’\Eu\ﬁ?’éw{étfl#ﬁiﬁﬁ

each reporting period subsequent
to initial recognition, financial liability
at fair value through profit or loss is
measured at fair value, with changes
in fair value arising on remeasurement
recognised directly in profit or loss in
the period in which it arises.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(i)

Financial instruments (Continued)

(iii)

Derivative financial instrument
and hedging

Derivatives are initially recognised
at fair value at the date a derivative
contract is entered into and are
subsequently remeasured to their
fair value at the end of the reporting
period. The resulting gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss
immediately unless the derivative is
designated and effective as a hedging
instrument, in which event the timing
of the recognition in profit or loss
depends on the nature of the hedge
relationship.

Hedge accounting

The Group uses derivative financial
instruments (primarily foreign currency
forward contracts) as hedges of the
foreign currency risk in respect of
the notes issued. Such hedges are
designated and accounted for as
cash flow hedges.

At the inception of the hedging
relationship, the Group documents
the relationship between the hedging
instrument and hedged item, along
with its risk management objectives
and its strategy for undertaking
various hedge transactions.
Furthermore, at the inception of the
hedge and on an ongoing basis,
the Group documents whether the
hedging instrument that is used in a
hedging relationship is highly effective
in offsetting changes in cash flows of
the hedged item.
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3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(i)

Financial instruments (Continued)

(iii)

Derivative financial instrument
and hedging (Continued)

Cash flow hedges

The effective portion of changes
in the fair value of derivatives that
are designated and qualified as
cash flow hedges are recognised in
other comprehensive income and
accumulated in hedge reserve. The
gain or loss relation to the ineffective
portion is recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

Amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity (hedge reserve)
are reclassified to profit or loss in
the periods when the hedged item is
recognised in profit or loss.

Hedge accounting is discontinued
when the Group revokes the hedging
relationship, the hedging instrument
expires or is sold, terminated, or
exercised, or when it no longer
qualifies for hedge accounting.
Any gain or loss recognised in
other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity at that time
remains in equity and is recognised in
profit or loss when the hedged items
affect profit or loss.
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3 EEGHBEXR®E
POLICIES (Continued)

() Financial instruments (Continued) i) =MAIE@#E
(iii) Derivative financial instrument (iii) TTEEMIEREHH

and hedging (Continued) (%)
Financial guarantee contracts EEERE A
A financial guarantee contract is ERERENTT—ENE
a contract that requires the issuer KETEREBE-BRAES
to make specified payments to REEBGEHRZBEBIA
reimburse the holder for a loss it WE — %5 E BB AR H
incurs because a specified debtor BARBEEENIA - BITE
fails to make payment when due BN ZABEAFEED
in accordance with the original or REEZEX - AXEHE
modified terms of a debt instrument. BITMIFRERBRER
A financial guarantee contract issued NAREBEEEZS/E
by the Group and not designated REH UEAREBER
as at fair value through profit or loss ARBERBEITERERE
is recognised initially at its fair value N2 RGKAEG LR ©
less transaction costs that are directly RO T HERE  NEBEI
attributable to the issue of the financial TS EFTESRER
guarantee contract. Subsequent to SR (VREBEE BT
initial recognition, the Group measures BIE375% [ #E  AARE
the financial guarantee contract at the ERIAZE]|EEEAR
higher of: () the amount of obligation RS2 R(i) 96
under the contract, as determined in RZBERIBEBA 2R
accordance with HKAS 37 Provisions, BBORMER < R #H
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent (@A) o

Assets; and (i) the amount initially
recognised less, when appropriate,
cumulative amortisation recognised
in accordance with the revenue
recognition policy.
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

() Financial instruments (Continued)

(iii) Derivative financial instrument
and hedging (Continued)

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial
asset only when the contractual rights
to the cash flows from the asset
expire.

On derecognition of a financial
asset, the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the sum
of the consideration received and
receivable and the cumulative gain
or loss that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity is recognised in
profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial
liabilities when, and only when, the
Group’s obligation are discharged,
cancelled or expire. The difference
between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and
the consideration paid and payable is
recognised in profit or loss.

(i) Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable and
represents amounts receivable for goods
sold or services provided in the normal
course of business, net of discounts and
sales related taxes.
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3 EEEBIR (&)
POLICIES (Continued)
(i) Revenue recognition (Continued) () WNZRE#E)

Revenue from manufacturing operations
is recognised either at the time when the
containers being delivered and title has
passed to customers or acceptance notes
being issued by customers; depending on
the terms of the underlying sales contracts
and all the following conditions are satisfied:

° the Group has transferred to the
buyer the significant risks and rewards
of ownership of the goods;

° the Group retains neither continuing
managerial involvement to the degree
usually associated with ownership nor
effective control over the goods sold;

° the amount of revenue can be
measured reliably;

o it is probable that the economic
benefits associated with the
transaction will flow to the Group; and

° the costs incurred or to be incurred
in respect of the transaction can be
measured reliably.

Revenue from logistics services operations is
recognised when the services are rendered.

Deposits and instalments received from
customers prior to meeting the above
criteria for revenue recognition are included
in the consolidated statement of financial
position under current liabilities.
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3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

()

(k)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Interest income from a financial asset is
recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group
and the amount of income can be measured
reliably. Interest income from a financial
asset is accrued on a time basis, by
reference to the principal outstanding and at
the effective interest rate applicable, which
is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts through the expected
life of the financial asset to that asset’s net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Dividend income from investments is
recognised when the shareholders’ rights
to receive payment has been established
(provided that it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and
the amount of revenue can be measured
reliably).

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases
whenever the terms of the lease transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the lessee. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is
recognised in the profit or loss on a straight-
line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as
an expense on a straight-line basis over the
term of the relevant lease.
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3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(k)

Leasing (Continued)

Leasehold land and buildings

When a lease includes both land and
building elements, the Group assesses the
classification of each element as a finance
or an operating lease separately based on
the assessment as to whether substantially
all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of each element have been
transferred to the Group, unless it is clear
that both elements are operating leases in
which case the entire lease is classified as
an operating lease. Specifically, the minimum
lease payments (including any lump-sum
upfront payments) are allocated between the
land and the building elements in proportion
to the relative fair values of the leasehold
interests in the land element and building
element of the lease at the inception of the
lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease
payments can be made reliably, interest in
leasehold land that is accounted for as an
operating lease is presented as “prepaid
lease payments” in the consolidated
statement of financial position and is
amortised over the lease term on a straight-
line basis. When the lease payments
cannot be allocated reliably between the
land and building elements, the entire lease
is generally classified as a finance lease
and accounted for as property, plant and
equipment.
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3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

U]

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of
the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on
taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit
differs from “profit before taxation” as
reported in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income because it excludes items of income
or expense that are taxable or deductible
in other years, and it further excludes items
that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group’s liability for current tax is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary
differences between the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding
tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities
are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets
are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available
against which those deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the
initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in
a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit.
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3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

U]

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for
taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and
interests in associates and joint ventures,
except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference and
it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
Deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with
such investments and interests are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable
that there will be sufficient taxable profits
against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected
to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets
is reviewed at the end of each reporting
period and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available to allow all or part of the
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
measured at the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax
rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted at the end of the
reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities
and assets reflects the tax consequences
that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.
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3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

U]

(m)

Taxation (Continued)

Current and deferred tax are recognised
to profit or loss, except when they relate
to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity,
in which case, the current and deferred tax
are also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity respectively.
Where current tax or deferred tax arises
from the initial accounting for a business
combination, the tax effect is included in the
accounting for the business combination.

Foreign currencies

The individual financial statements of each
group entity are presented in the currency
of the primary economic environment
in which the group entity operates (its
functional currency). For the purpose of
the consolidated financial statements,
the results and financial position of each
entity are expressed in US$, which is the
functional currency of the Company, and the
presentation currency for the consolidated
financial statements.

In preparing the financial statements of
each individual group entity, transactions
in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (“foreign currencies”)
are recorded in the respective functional
currency (i.e. the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the
entity operates) at the rates of exchange
prevailing on the dates of transactions. At
the end of each reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at
that date. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are not retranslated.
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3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(m) Foreign currencies (Continued)

Exchange difference arising on the
settlement of monetary items, and on
retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they arise, except for exchange
differences arising on a monetary item that
forms part of the Company’s net investment
in a foreign operation, in which case, such
exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity and will be reclassified from equity
to profit or loss on disposal of foreign
operation.

For the purpose of presenting the
consolidated financial statements, the
assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations including comparatives are
expressed in US$ using exchange rate
prevailing at the end of each reporting
period. Income and expenses are translated
at monthly average exchange rates for the
period, unless exchange rates fluctuated
significantly during that year, in which case,
the exchange rates prevailing at the dates
of the transactions are used. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised
in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity under the heading of
the exchange translation reserve (attributed
to non-controlling interests as appropriate).
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3 EEGHBER®E
POLICIES (Continued)

(m) Foreign currencies (Continued) (m) Mgk (&)

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e.
a disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a
foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss
of control over a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation, a disposal involving loss
of joint control over a joint arrangement that
includes a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of significant influence over an
associate that includes a foreign operation),
all of the exchange differences accumulated
in equity in respect of that operation
attributable to the owners of the Company
are reclassified to profit or loss. In addition,
in relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary
that does not result in the Group losing
control over the subsidiary, the proportionate
share of accumulated exchange differences
are re-attributed to non-controlling interests
and are not recognised in profit or loss.
For all other partial disposals (i.e. partial
disposals of associates or joint arrangement
that do not result in the Group losing
significant influence or joint control), the
proportionate share of the accumulated
exchange differences is reclassified to profit
or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on
identifiable assets acquired arising on the
acquisitions of a foreign operation on or
after 1 January 2005 are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign operation
and retranslated at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the end of the reporting period.
Exchange differences arising are recognised
in the exchange translation reserve.
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3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(n)

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised
until there is reasonable assurance that
the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to them and that the grants will be
received.

Government grants are recognised in
profit or loss on a systematic basis over
the periods in which the Group recognises
as expenses the related costs for which
the grants are intended to compensate.
Specifically, government grants whose
primary condition is that the Group should
purchase, construct or otherwise acquire
non-current assets are recognised as a
deduction from the carrying amount of the
relevant asset in the consolidated statement
of financial position and transferred to profit
or loss on a systematic and rational basis
over the useful lives of the related assets.
Government grants that are receivable
as compensation for expenses or losses
already incurred or for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to the Group
with no future related costs are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they
become receivable.
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3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(o)

Retirement benefit costs

In respect of the subsidiaries in the PRC,
the Group contributes to a state-managed
retirement benefit schemes operated by the
PRC government. Contribution payable by
the Group to the schemes is charged to the
profit or loss when employees have rendered
services entitling them to the contributions.

Prior to 1 December 2000, the Group
contributed to defined contribution
retirement schemes which were available
to certain employees of Hong Kong. The
assets of these schemes are held separately
and managed by independent trustees. The
amount of the Group’s contributions, net
of any contributions forfeited in respect of
those employees who leave the schemes
prior to vesting fully in the contributions,
is charged to the profit or loss as incurred
when employees have rendered services
entitling them to the contributions.

Effective from 1 December 2000, the Group
operates and contributes to Mandatory
Provident Fund (“MPF”) schemes which
are available to all employees of Hong
Kong. The assets of the scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in funds
under the control of trustees. Contribution
payable by the Group to the MPF scheme
is charged to the profit or loss when
employees have rendered services entitling
them to the contributions.
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3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(p)

(a)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of
qualifying assets, which are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are added to the cost of those assets until
such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale.
Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from the borrowing costs eligible
for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they are
incurred.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the
Group has a present obligation (legal or
constructive) as a result of a past event, it
is probable that the Group will be required
to settle that obligation, and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. Provisions are measured at the
best estimate of the consideration required
to settle the present obligation at the end
of the reporting period, taking into account
the risks and uncertainties surrounding the
obligation. When a provision is measured
using the cash flows estimated to settle the
present obligation, its carrying amount is the
present value of those cash flows (where the
effect of the time value of money is material).
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3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(r) Share-based payments

Equity-settled share-based payment
transactions

Share options granted to employees

The fair value of services received
determined by reference to the fair value
of share options granted at the grant date
is expensed on a straight-line basis over
the vesting period, with a corresponding
increase in equity (share option reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the
Group revises its estimates of the number of
options that are expected to ultimately vest.
The impact of the revision of the original
estimates during the vesting period, if any,
is recognised in profit or loss, such that
the cumulative expense reflects the revised
estimate, with a corresponding adjustment
to share option reserve.

When the share options are exercised,
the amount previously recognised in share
option reserve will be transferred to share
premium. When the share options are
forfeited after the vesting date or are still not
exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in share option reserve
will be transferred to accumulated profits.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting
policies, which are described in note 3, the
Directors are required to make estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from
other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be
relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects
both current and future periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning
the future, and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the end of the reporting period,
that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

Estimated allowance for doubtful
debts

The Group makes allowance for doubtful debts
based on an assessment of the recoverability of
trade receivables taking into consideration the
estimation of future cash flows. The allowance is
measured as the difference between the carrying
amount of the assets and the present value of
estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit
losses that have not been incurred) discounted
at the financial asset’s original effective interest
rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed at
initial recognition). Allowances are applied to
trade receivables where the actual future cash
flows are less than expected and where events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the
balances may not be collectible. The identification
of doubtful debts requires the use of judgement
and estimates. Where the expectation on the
recoverability of trade receivables is different from
the original estimate, such difference will impact
carrying value of trade receivables and doubtful
debt expenses in the years in which such estimate
has been changed. As at 31 December 2013,
the carrying amount of trade receivables was
US$227,123,000 (without allowance for doubtful
debts) (2012: US$181,785,000 (net of allowance
for doubtful debts of US$660,000)).
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Estimated impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires
an estimation of the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating units to which goodwill has been
allocated. The value in use calculation requires the
Group to estimate the future cash flows expected
to arise from the cash-generating unit and a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the
present value. Where the actual future cash flows
are less than expected, a material impairment loss
may arise. As at 31 December 2013, the carrying
amount of goodwill is US$6,246,000 (2012:
US$6,246,000). Details of the recoverable amount
calculation are disclosed in note 18.

Fair value measurements and
valuation processes

Some of the Group’s liabilities are measured at fair
value for financial reporting purposes. The directors
of the Company and Chief Financial Officer of the
Group are responsible for the determination of the
appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for fair
value measurements.

In estimating the fair value of the liabilities, the
Group uses market-observable data to the extent
it is available.

In estimating the fair value of derivative financial
instruments, the Group uses discounted cash flow
technique that include inputs that are based on
observable market data to estimate the fair value
of certain types of financial instruments. Note 6¢
provides detailed information about the valuation
techniques, inputs and key assumptions used
in the determination of the fair value of various
liabilities.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Fair value measurements and
valuation processes (Continued)

As described in note 6c¢, the Directors use their
judgement in selecting an appropriate valuation
technique for financial instrument not quoted in
an active market. Valuation techniques commonly
used by market practitioners are applied. For
derivative financial instrument, assumptions are
made based on quoted market rates adjusted for
specific features of the instrument. The fair value of
the derivative financial instruments designated as
hedging instrument as at 31 December 2013 was
estimated at an asset of US$3,071,000 (2012: a
liability of US$8,962,000).

Useful lives of property, plant and
equipment

In applying the accounting policy on property,
plant and equipment with respect to depreciation,
management estimates the useful lives of various
categories of property, plant and equipment
according to the Group’s experiences over the
usage of property, plant and equipment and
also by reference to the relevant industrial norm.
If the actual useful lives of property, plant and
equipment is less than the original estimate
useful lives due to changes in commercial and
technological environment, such difference will
impact the depreciation charge for the remaining
useful life. As at 31 December 2013, the carrying
amount of property, plant and equipment was
US$347,131,000 (2012: US$343,159,000).
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CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that
entities in the Group will be able to continue as
a going concern while maximising the return to
shareholders through the optimisation of the debt
and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net
debt, which includes the borrowings and notes
disclosed in notes 36 and 37 respectively, net of
cash and cash equivalents and equity attributable
to owners of the Company, comprising issued
share capital, reserves and accumulated profits.

The Directors review the capital structure on a
semi-annual basis. As part of this review, the
Directors consider the cost of capital and the risks
associates with each class of capital. Based on
recommendations of the Directors, the Group will
balance its overall capital structure through the
payment of dividends, new share issues as well as
the issue of new debt or the redemption of existing
debt.
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6

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

a.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BA#5# &M at

Categories of financial
instruments

6 EmMIA
a. SEMIAZER

Group Company
AEE /NG
2013 2012 2013 2012

ZE—=£ il T — = el
US$’000 US$'000 US$’000 US$'000
S FET FEx FET

Financial assets EREE

Loans and receivables ~ E R R EMBER
(including cash (BRERE R
and cash equivalents) RZERE)

Available-for-sale ARHEZ
financial assets TRIEE

Derivative financial EEREHMITA

instruments designated
as hedging instruments T H

HPTA S R

644,709 660,663 372,217 373,028
1,614 1,614 669
3,071 = 3,071

649,394 662,277

375,957 373,697

Financial liabilities EHMEE

Derivative financial
instruments designated
as hedging instruments T H

Amortised cost

BERYHIA
HPTA S Rl

8,962 8,962

653,160 649,405 394,364 358,328

653,160 658,367 394,364

367,290
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6 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management
objectives and policies

The Group’s and the Company’s major
financial instruments include available-
for-sale investments, derivative financial
instruments, trade receivables, other
receivables, trade payables, bills payable,
other payables, bank borrowings, notes
and current accounts with ultimate holding
company, fellow subsidiaries, associates,
joint ventures, subsidiaries and a related
company. Details of these financial
instruments are disclosed in respective
notes. The risks associated with these
financial instruments include market risk
(currency risk, interest rate risk and other
price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The
policies on how to mitigate these risks are
set out below. The management manages
and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a
timely and effective manner.

Market risk
(i) Currency risk

Several subsidiaries of the Group have
foreign currency sales and purchases,
bank and cash and bank borrowings,
which expose the Group to foreign
currency risk. Approximately 67%
(2012: 65%) of the Group’s cost of
sales and expenses are denominated
in currencies other than the functional
currency of the relevant group entity
making the sales, whilst almost 96%
(2012: 95%) of sales are denominated
in the group entity’s functional
currency.
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b.

6 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continuved) 6 &EmITE#)
Financial risk management b. BMHEKREIEBERERK
objectives and policies (Continued) (&)
Market risk (Continued) M5 Bk (&)
() Currency risk (Continued) )  EEEE)
The Company’s currency risk is RABEMFENEERERE
not significant in both years, as WA#EE  BRARAIZ
its monetary assets and monetary BEEEEREREE(REE
liabilities (other than notes and MR F T AMNITE
derivative financial instruments TRIT ARRIN) EEAETT
designated as hedging instruments) FHE TR RR 2
are mainly denominated in US$, which =g
is also its functional currency.
The carrying amounts of the Group’s REREBE - RNEB LA
foreign currency denominated BiEcEBEEREK
monetary assets and monetary BE(EBRREEREHPT
liabilities (other than notes and BEmtTESm T ARIN 2
derivative financial instruments BREEWT :
designated as hedging instruments) at
the reporting date are as follows:
Assets Liabilities
BgE &
2012 2012
T T4
US$'000 US$'000
FTET FET
Renminbi (‘RMB") A R#E 286,781 079,544
Hong Kong dollar &7t
(“HK$") 6,785 648
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6 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continuved) 6 &I HE &)
b. Financial risk management b. MBHEKREEBEERIRK

objectives and policies (Continued) (%)

Market risk (Continued) i E R (&)

() Currency risk (Continued) )  EXEEE)
Sensitivity analysis BURRIED T
The Group is mainly exposed to SEFEZEHAREZE
exchange fluctuation of RMB. HORE o

The sensitivity analyses include
financial assets and liabilities (other
than notes and derivative financial
instruments designated as hedging
instruments) denominated in foreign
currencies which are different
from the functional currency of the
relevant Group entities. The following
table shows the post-tax profit or
loss impact of the foreign currency
denominated non-derivative monetary
assets and liabilities to change in
RMB for the Group. The numbers
below indicate the (decrease) increase
in post-tax profit where RMB is 5%
(2012: 5%) higher/lower against
the US$. This is mainly attributable
to the exposure outstanding at the
end of the reporting period on RMB
bank balances, bank borrowings and
payables net of receivables assuming
they are outstanding for the whole

BRI BEIEATER
HEAERIEE 2 Hit
ENSREERABRE(R
BRET AR TEMNIT
EEBMTARKRIN o TRE
TEARYHETEESHY
K%@%milﬂf%ﬁ
ERBGEHRBE RN
BEZEE . TREER
TARBEETERE
855% (—F——F : 5%)
B 2 BRER & m A Opt 2> ) 18
g o b EBRAAREEN IR
EHRFBARKIRITE
% ¥ REEARER
T8 R PR BR 40 B
W%mZH S FTE (RE%RZ
EERIERFHEFITR—K
) -

year:
2012
—E—_4F
US$'000
FET
RMB against US$ increase AR¥HETT FABRMZH
by 5% (2012: 5%) (ZE——F: Az Hh) 259
RMB against US$ decrease AR HETL TNEENO ZH
by 5% (2012: 5%) (ZE——F:Afpzh) (259)
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6 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management
objectives and policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
(i) Currency risk (Continued)

In order to eliminate the exposure of
the RMB-denominated notes issued
in 2011, the Group and the Company
entered into two exchange rate swap
contracts to receive RMB against US$
based on the notes’ notional amount
of RMB1,576,830,000 in total. This
notional amount represents the total
coupon payments and principal to be
paid during three-year tenor.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has
been determined based on the
RMB exposure to the hedged item
(i.,e. RMB-denominated notes)
and its hedging instruments (i.e.
the exchange rate swap contracts
designated as hedging instruments)
at the end of the reporting period. A
5% (2012: 5%) increase or decrease
in RMB represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably
possible change in exchange rates.

If RMB is 5% (2012: 5%) higher/lower
(i.e. spot rate for the hedged item and
forward rate for the exchange rate
swap contracts) against the US$ and
all other variables remain constant,
the net effect of the hedged item
and the hedging instruments to the
Group’s and the Company’s profits for
the year ended 31 December 2013
would decrease by US$246,000/
US$334,000 (2012: US$12,000/
US$25,000). In addition, the Group’s
and the Company’s hedge reserve
for 2012 would be credited by
US$547,000/debited by US$494,000,
accordingly.
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6 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b. Financial risk management
objectives and policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
(i) Cash flow interest rate risk

The Group’s and the Company’s
cash flow interest rate risk primarily
relates to floating rate borrowings
and variable rate bank balances.
Interest rate risk on bank balances is
considered immaterial due to short
maturity. It is the Group’s policy to
keep its borrowings at floating rate
of interest so as to minimise the fair
value interest rate risk.

The Group’s and the Company’s
exposures to interest rates on financial
liabilities are detailed in the liquidity
risk management section of this note.
The Group’s and the Company’s
cash flow interest rate risk on non-
derivative financial instruments is
mainly concentrated on the fluctuation
of London Interbank Offered Rate
(“LIBOR”) and borrowing rates offered
by People’s Bank of China arising
from the Group’s and the Company’s
variable-rate borrowings.
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6

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management
objectives and policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Cash flow interest rate risk
(Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below
has been determined based on
the exposure to interest rates for
bank borrowings at the end of the
reporting period. For floating rate
bank borrowings, the analysis is
prepared assuming the amount of
liability outstanding at the end of the
reporting period was outstanding
for the whole year. A 50 basis point
(2012: 50 basis point) increase or
decrease in interest rate represents
management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in interest
rates.

If interest rate had been 50 basis
points (2012: 50 basis points) higher/
lower and all other variables were held
constant, the Group’s post-tax profit
for the year ended 31 December 2013
would have decreased/increased by
US$903,000 (2012: US$715,000).
The Company’s post-tax profit for
the year ended 31 December 2013
would have decreased/increased by
US$820,000 (2012: US$638,000).
This is mainly attributable to the
Group’s and the Company’s exposure
to interest rates on its variable rate
bank borrowings.

The Group’s and the Company’s
sensitivities to interest rates have
increased during the current year
mainly due to the increase in variable-
rate bank borrowings.
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6 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management
objectives and policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
(i) Other price risk

The Group is exposed to equity
price risk through its investments
in unquoted equity securities. No
sensitivity analysis is presented as
the Group’s investments in unquoted
equity securities are measured at cost
less any identified impairment losses
at the end of each reporting period.

Credit risk

As at 31 December 2013, the Group’s
and the Company’s maximum exposure
to credit risk which will cause a financial
loss to the Group and the Company due
to failure to discharge an obligation by the
counterparties and financial guarantees
provided by the Company is arising from
the carrying amount of the respective
recognised financial assets as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position
and the amount of contingent liabilities
in relation to financial guarantee issued
by the Company as disclosed in note 45.
In order to minimise the credit risk, the
management of the Group has delegated a
team responsible for determination of credit
limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action
is taken to recover overdue debts. In
addition, the Group reviews the recoverable
amount of each individual trade debt at the
end of each reporting period to ensure the
adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the
Directors consider that the Group’s credit
risk is significantly reduced. With respect to
financial guarantees provided to subsidiaries
by the Company and amounts due from
subsidiaries, ultimate holding company and
fellow subsidiaries, the Directors consider
the credit risk is limited because the
subsidiaries have strong financial positions.
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6 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management
objectives and policies (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

The credit risk on bank deposits is limited
because the counterparties are banks or
financial institutions with high credit-rating
assigned by international credit-rating
agencies or state-owned banks in the PRC.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as
14.60% (2012: 35.06%) and 50.98% (2012:
58.66%) of the total trade receivables were
due from the Group’s largest customer and
the five largest customers, respectively. The
Group has assessed the creditworthiness
of these customers, all of these customers
have strong financial backgrounds and
high credit-rating within the industry. In
this regard, the Directors considered that
the credit risk is low. The Group also has
concentration of geographical risk as
52.26% (2012: 65.78%) of the Group’s
turnover was generated from the customers
from United States of America (“USA”) and
Europe.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk,
the Group monitors and maintains a level
of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance
the Group’s operations and mitigate the
effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The
management monitors the utilisation of
bank borrowings and ensures compliance
with loan covenants or to timely negotiate
with the lenders if any non-compliance is
expected.
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6 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management
objectives and policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The following tables detail the Group’s
and the Company’s remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities based on the agreed repayment
dates. The tables have been drawn up
based on the undiscounted cash flows of
financial liabilities based on the earliest date
on which the Group can be required to pay.
The tables include both interest and principal
cash flows. To the extent that interest flows
are floating rate, the undiscounted amount is
derived from interest rate curve at the end of
the reporting period.

In addition, the following tables detail the
Group’s liquidity analysis for its derivative
financial instrument. The tables have been
drawn up based on the undiscounted
contractual net cash (inflows) and outflows
on derivative instrument that settle on a net
basis. When the amount payable is not fixed,
the amount disclosed has been determined
by reference to the projected interest rates
as illustrated by the yield curves existing
at the end of the reporting period. The
liquidity analysis for the Group’s derivative
financial instrument is prepared based on
the contractual maturity as the management
considers that the contractual maturity is
essential for an understanding of the timing
of the cash flows of derivatives.
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6 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
b.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B %5k & it

Financial risk management
objectives and policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)
Liquidity and interest risk tables

Group
2013

Weighted ~ On demand
average  orless than
interest rate 1 month

mEE
gmilE A
% US§1000
147

Non-derivative financial ~ FfT4EHERE
liabilities

Trade payables pE 38,805
Bils payable ERRE 17,468
Other payables EfofEfi 17,097
Amount due to utimate EREAERAT

holding company ] 12
Amounts due toassocates  JEFBEEAFZR
Amounts due tojoint ventures  EfTABAERE
Bank loans B

- nterest bearing borrowings” - 5t IEE*
Notes 28

6

13
months

-

£
b.

3 months
to1year

=R
£
Us§'000
TEn

1,181
231,426

249,551

TR

M5 E kR EE B R REBUR
(%)

REBEE R E) '
REVE T RFFE R R

A
—s-=%

Total  Camying

undiscounted amount
Syears+  cashflows at31/12/2013
R-F-Zf

#HH +2A=1-A

ReEAE  (RELH

US§1000 US§'000

Fin Tin

12
268
9

178,716 195,846
- 231,426

173,716 668,272
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6 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continuved) 6 &RAILE(#)
b.

b. Financial risk management B 75 R bR & 18 B E R EBUR

objectives and policies (Continued) (&)
Liquidity risk (Continued) nBETERRE)
Liquidity and interest risk tables B E & RFEE 7% (&)
(Continued)
2012 —ET-_F
Weighted ~ On demand Total Camying
average  Orlessthan 13 3months undiscounted amount
interest rate 1 month months fo 1 year 1-5years Syearst  cashflows at31/12/2012
i3
Il 3821 HR =2 =R =2 i #HE T-A=1-R

Bl —EA =fiA iF ik I BOREER LRELH
% USS000  USROOD  USFOOD  USKOO0  USSOO0  USSOO0  US§000
e e e e e e e

Derivative financial iability ~ #74B% &
- net settlement -BGE
Dervative financial nsiuments 5 BHH T &
designated a5 hedging ik
instruments (Notg) I8h3) - - = 21 8711 - 8,%62 8,962

Non-derivative financial ~ F4EHEE

liabiities
Trade payables D - 20,31 97,726 - - - M
Bils payable EfZE - 36,594 7413 4,942 - - 11849 118949
Other payatles Efp RS - 16,715 5703 12,499 - - 17 17
Amount due to ulimate ERSRARAT

holding company U8 - 10 - - - - 10 10
Amounts dug toassociates  FEFBEE AR - 1,990 - - - - 1,990 1990
Amounts due tojoitventures  ERAELEFE - 12 - - - - 12 12
Bankloans 83

- nterest bearing borrowings' - A EE* 251% 9462 15,92 %646 102013 - 1073 148054
Notes b3 4.75% - - 053 22183 - B3 2184%

94,104 196,794 53,660 329,836 = 674,304 649,406
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6

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management
objectives and policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

Liquidity and interest risk tables
(Continued)

The amounts included above for variable
interest rate instruments for non-derivative
financial liabilities are subject to change if
changes in variable interest rates differ to
those estimates of interest rates determined
at the end of the reporting period.

* For the Group’s interest bearing borrowings,
the weighted average interest rate at the end of
each reporting period is used for undiscounted
cash flows analysis.

Note: The undiscounted cash flow of derivative
financial instrument was determined assuming
all variables used in the fair value calculation at
the end of each reporting period remained the
same until maturity.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BA#sh &Mzt
6 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
b. Financial risk management
objectives and policies (Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued)
Liquidity and interest risk tables
(Continued)
Company
2013
Weighted  On demand
average  orless than
interest rate 1 month
METS A
BRI
%
Non-derivative financial ~ Efi4EHAE
liabilities
Other payables Afp S
Amounts due to subsidlaries ~ ERIBA A
Amount due to utimate ERR&ERAR
holding company ]
Amounts duetoassociates  EREEAFIFUA
Bank loans BER
- nterest bearing borrowings” - 5B &
Notes 3
Financial quarantee contracts ~ £BZRAY

6

13
months

-

ST Rz

b. MEAKREEHERBRK
(#)
REELER(E)

3 months
to1year

=R
E-f
Us§'000
TEn

231,426
3,987

235,363

REE L RFFE R 7 (&)

PN
—E-=%

Total Carrying

undiscounted amount

1-5 years 5Syears+  cashflows at31/12/2013
N2E-2%

-3 Bt #EH +2A=1-A
it If RENBUE RmeE
Us$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
Tin Tin T4n Tin

11221 11221
- 231,426
- 10,655

112211 478,621



FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6 &AL R (4#)
b. HMHEREEBEFERER

b. Financial risk management

objectives and policies (Continued) (%&)
Liquidity risk (Continued) nBEEER(Z)
Liquidity and interest risk tables TMEE S RFF R R (&)
(Continued)
2012 —EF——4F
Weighted  On demand Total Camying
average  orlessthan 1-3 3 months undiscounted amount
interest rate 1 month months fo 1 year 1-5 years Syearst  cashflows at31/12/2012
RE-—F
e Hit -2 =fA % 4 A% T-A=1-H

ERilx —fA =i iF ik 1% REREER  CRm:R
% US§000 US$000 US$'000 US$000 US$000 US$000 US$000
e e e e e T*r e

Derivative financial iabilty 74 H%&&

- net settlement -BGE

Dervative fivancial nstuments~ #A1EX5

designated as hedging il

instruments (Note) IA(H) - = = 21 8711 - 8,962 8,962

Non-derivative financial ~ FiT4EEEE

liabilities
Other payables HipEfia - - 2552 - - - 2552 2552
Amounts due to subsidlaris  EERFIBAFZE - 9,622 - - - - 9622 9,622
Amount due to utmate ERREERAT

holding company B - 10 - - - - 10 10
Amounts due toassociates  ERBERFFE - 28 - - - - 218 218
Amounts due tojoint ventures A ELEHA - - - - - - - -
Bank oans RiTEH

~interest bearing boowings® - 3T 8fEE” 2.22% = 7542 22875 102013 - 132430 127,500
Notes £k 4.75% - - 10573 201,823 - 238,396 218426
Financial quarantee conracts ~ £BERAH) - 39,816 54,287 1529 6,507 - 102,089 -

49,666 64,331 34917 336,343 - 485,317 308,328
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6

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management
objectives and policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

Liquidity and interest risk tables
(Continued)

The amounts included above for financial
guarantee contracts are the maximum
amounts the Company could be required
to settle under the arrangement for the
utilised amount that is guaranteed by the
Company if that amount is claimed by the
counterparty to the guarantee. Based on
expectations at the end of the reporting
period, the Company considers that it is
more likely than not that no amount will be
payable under the arrangement. However,
this estimate is subject to change depending
on the probability of the counterparty
claiming under the guarantee which is a
function of the likelihood that the financial
receivables held by the counterparty which
are guaranteed suffer credit losses.

The amounts included above for variable
interest rate instruments for non-derivative
financial liabilities are subject to change if
changes in variable interest rates differ to
those estimates of interest rates determined
at the end of the reporting period.

* For the Company’s interest bearing borrowings,
the weighted average interest rate at the end of
each reporting period is used for undiscounted
cash flows analysis.

Note: The undiscounted cash flow of derivative
financial instrument was determined assuming
all variables used in the fair value calculation at
the end of each reporting period remained the
same until maturity.
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6

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

C.

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial assets and financial
liabilities are determined as follows:

- the fair value of derivative instrument
is made of discounted cash flow
analysis using the application yield
curve and forward rate for the
duration of the instrument for non-
optional derivatives; and

- the fair value of other financial assets
and financial liabilities (excluding
derivative financial instrument) are
determined in accordance with
generally accepted pricing models
based on discounted cash flow
analysis.

Fair value of the Group’s financial
assets and financial liabilities that
are measured at fair value on a
recurring basis

The derivative financial instruments
designated as hedging instrument is
measured at fair value at the end of each
reporting period. The following table gives
information about how the fair values of
this financial instrument is determined (in
particular, the valuation technique(s) and
inputs used), as well as the level of the fair
value hierarchy into which the fair value
measurements are categorised (levels 1 to 3)
based on the degree to which the inputs to
the fair value measurements is observable.

o Level 1 fair value measurements are
those derived from quoted prices
(unadjusted) in active market for
identical assets or liabilities;
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6 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6

cH Fair value of financial instruments
(Continued)

Fair value of the Group’s financial
assets and financial liabilities that
are measured at fair value on a
recurring basis (Continued)

° Level 2 fair value measurements are
those derived from inputs other than
quoted prices included within Level
1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (i.e. as prices)
or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices);
and

o Level 3 fair value measurements
are those derived from valuation
techniques that include inputs for the
asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (unobservable

inputs).
Fair value as at Fair value
Financial assets 31/12/2013 hierarchy
Bz-E-=f
+ZA=+—-HiE AREE
SHEE HAREE B4
Exchange rate swaps classified Asset of Level 2

as derivative financial instruments  US$3,071,000
designated as hedging
instruments in the consolidated

statement of financial position

RSN Ve o)
BRURTEZTEERTA

3,071,000% 7T FH
BE

There were no transfers between Level 1
and 2 in the current and prior years.
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EAEREEHR

Discounted cash flow. Future cash flows are
estimated based on forward exchange rates (from
observable forward exchange rates at the end of
the reporting period) and the contracted forward
rates, discounted at a rate that reflects the credit
risk of various counterparties
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6 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

C.

Fair value of financial instruments
(Continued)

Fair value of the Group’s financial
assets and financial liabilities that
are measured at fair value on a
recurring basis (Continued)

The Directors of the Company consider
that the carrying amounts of financial
assets and financial liabilities (except for
the Notes) recorded at amortised cost
in the consolidated financial statements
approximate their fair values.

The fair value of the Notes with the
carrying amount of US$226,095,000 as
at 31 December 2013 was estimated
at RMB1,380,648,600 (equivalent to
US$226,451,000), which was determined
based on the closing market price of the
Notes at that date.

7 REVENUE

Revenue represents sales of goods from
manufacturing and services income from logistics
services operations, less returns, discounts and
sales related taxes, and is analysed as follows:

c. EMIBRZAREE®

BREFHEEERFEREE
ERMEEMEMAaBZARE
B

ARTEERBRG A HHRE
LM BAERSRAE(RE
50 2 BEEAERLA L
B -

RZE—=F+=A=+—H"
B T (B /4 226,095,000 % TTHY =
BUAZBKRMEAERZ ARG
EfEE 45 AR 1,380,648,600
7T (M7 226,451,000 € 7T) ©

e
EERIRRIE R 2 HE RRRES 2

ARG R B~ TH R EREEER
DHTWR -

2012
—E——F
US$’000
FZET

Manufacturing
Logistics services

RERT
YD AR

1,506,200
30,408

1,636,608
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the Group’s chief operating
decision maker (i.e. Chief Executive Officer) for the
purpose of resource allocation and assessment
of segment performance are organised into two
operating divisions — manufacturing and logistics
services. These divisions are the basis on which
the Group reports its segment information under
HKFRS 8.

No operating segments identified by the chief
operating decision maker have been aggregated in
arriving at the reportable segments of the Group.

Principal activities are as follows:

Manufacturing - manufacturing of marine
dry freight containers,
refrigerated containers,
collapsible flatrack
containers, tank containers,
US domestic containers,
other specialised containers
and container parts.

Logistics services — provision of container
storage, repair and trucking
services, serving as a freight
station, container/cargo
handling and other container
related services.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B %5k & it

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Information regarding these segments is presented
below:

Segment revenue and results

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue
and results by reportable and operating segment:

2013
Manufacturing
LA
US$°000
S
REVENUE S
External sales HINEE 1,253,879
Inter-segment sales HEEHEE
Total CE 1,253,879

Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing
market prices.

DEEHEBREMSERE °

SEGMENT RESULTS NEMER
Finance costs HKER
Investment income RERA

Reclassification of fair value 8T A% T A
gain of derivative financial MiTESRTE
instruments designated as LN BERH
hedging instruments from REFREED
hedge reserve 2En

Share of results of associates  FE{GEES A &) 2%

Share of results of joint ventures FE(RA B R 2 FiE

Profit before taxation BRAE A
Income tax expense PSR
Profit for the year AEEHEA

DEER (#)
SEDTWER 2T -

TEMERBERER :

AEFTRERKEH M2 LEBNE
BEOWT

—F—=K
Logistics
services Sub-total Eliminations Total
Wik R IhEt e k]

US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 Us$'000
FEn FER FEL Txn

20,100 1,282,988 - 1,282,988
4,148 4,148 (4,148) g

33,257 1,287,136 (4,148) 1,282,988

10,305 61,573
(18,201)

5,064

8,079
920

(288)

57,147

(17,859)

39,288
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8 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continuved) 8  EPE#R &)

Segment revenue and results (Continued) SEEEBRRES(E)
2012 —F——F
Logistics
Manufacturing services Sub-total  Eliminations Total
BUERT MR et iR et

Us$'000 US$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000
TET TET TET TET TET

REVENUE =+

External sales HINEE 1,506,200 30,408 1,536,608 - 1,536,608
Inter-segment sales NEEHEE 13 751 764 (764) =
Total At 1,506,213 31,159 1,537,372 (764) 1,536,608

Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing
market prices.
AEBEHEBRDETZETE °

SEGMENT RESULTS DEEE 110,954 5,780 116,734 - 116,734
Finance costs FEER (19,676)
Investment income BEWRA 4,421

Reclassification of fair value I8 AP T A
gain of derivative financial FOTEEMIA
instruments designated as AN BERH
hedging instruments from B REED

hedge reserve =& 2,427
Share of results of associates ~ FE{f & A R 2 7l 575
Share of results of joint ventures A B % 2 B8 (1,602)
Profit before taxation BREE AT A 102,879
Income tax expense FIsiiER Y (33,948)
Profit for the year AEEHEA 68,931
Segment results represent the profit earned by DEPEBIEE D EHFAERF - BRDH
each segment without allocation of finance costs, MEER RERA - IEEREFT
investment income, reclassification of fair value BENPTESR T ACZ AR EERMNBEY
gain of derivative financial instruments designated HEEESERR  BEBE AR 2R
as hedging instruments from hedge reserve, share FMRELEEEREZER - LTI ER
of results of associates and share of results of AR A BEREMAAERGFET
joint ventures. This is the measure reported to the BABBE 247 2 B o

Group’s Chief Executive Officer for the purposes
of resource allocation and assessment of segment
performance.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B &Mz

Segment assets and liabilities

The following is an analysis of the Group’s total
assets and total liabilities by reportable and

operating segment:

2013

ASSETS 43

Segment assets NHEE

Interests in associates N =NCI PR - 5

Interests in joint ventures NEBLE s

Unallocated corporate assets AOEREEE

Consolidated total assets GRBERRE

LIABILITIES af&

Segment liabilities NHEE

Unallocated corporate liabilties AOMARERE

Consolidated total liabilties A REER

OTHER INFORMATION Hi &R

Amounts included in the measure ~ FARGHE D EBEF|
of segment profit or loss BEIDHEER
or segment assets: SHEEE

Additions of capital expenditure g B AR

Depreciation and amortisation EREH

Loss on disposal of property, HENE  #Ek
plant and equipment FEEE

Loss on property, plant and IEYE  ER
equipment written off FE BB

Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HENBAR 2 K

DERE R (&)

SHMEERER
REERIRE R L& D AR R R E E M AR

BESWWT

—e—=%

Manufacturing
RERH
US$°000

TR

930,211

298,485

63,833
19,468

(102)

(1,461)
9,793
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Logistics
services Total

i R BB
US$'000 US$°000

Txx Fxx

998,059
6,094
24,345
360,429

1,388,927

11,515 310,000

424,694

734,694

70,208
21,602

(108)

(1,476)

14,907




SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 8 HmEER®E)
Segment assets and liabilities (Continued) STHEERAGREE)
2012 —T——F
Logistics
Manufacturing services Total
BUEET AR B
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
TET FTET TET
ASSETS gE
Segment assets DNEEE 969,188 61,026 1,030,214
Interests in associates NN 5 5,314
Interests in joint ventures INCR-NIE A 3oy 6,812
Unallocated corporate assets AOBRBIEE 422,865
Consolidated total assets HEBERS 1,465,205
LIABILITIES &
Segment liabilities AR 412,002 10,690 422,692
Unallocated corporate liabilities APEARIARE 393,483
Consolidated total liabilties mehfes 816,175
OTHER INFORMATION Hih &
Amounts included in the measure ~ FRNEHE 2 EREAIE,
of segment profit or loss BEIHDEER
or segment assets: SEEHE
Additions of capital expenditure AMBEARRX 118,866 1,434 120,300
Depreciation and amortisation TEREH 17,004 3,288 20,292
Gain (loss) on disposal of property,  HIEME - #E R
plant and equipment e (BE) 67 (1) 66
Loss on property, plant and HEE  BER
equipment written off Rl ER (326) (55) (381)
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 8 HmEER®

Segment assets and liabilities (Continued) SHEERAGRE(E)

The amounts included in other information are part BT E M E R FRIE TH Al RS M A

of the reportable and operating segments. DEH)—ELD ©

For the purposes of monitoring segment REREESEEN D BRBMNERS

performances and allocating resources between fic :

segments:

- all assets are allocated to operating - [N /NS N =
segments other than interests in associates, X2 BERRADERREEIN
interests in joint ventures and unallocated FIEEENDREKLEDE - 1]
corporate assets. Assets used jointly by WEDHENBE 2 EETIIR(E
reportable segments are allocated on the ARl ED B2 ERFAR/EEE
basis of the revenue earned by individual it &
reportable segments; and

- all liabilities are allocated to operating - BRAPEARIBE(BREAFE
segments other than unallocated corporate MERELERIBEE) IBEA
liabilities, which included current and EHSEERLEDH - AIFRED
deferred tax liabilities. Liabilities for which BEMEBMBEZBBENROEE
reportable segments are jointly liable are RFTRELBIEDER ©
allocated in proportion to segment assets.

Revenue from major products and FTEERBERBZEEXEHE

services

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue AEEXZEEMMRGE 2 EFEBAITI

from its major products and services (after T(EEESHEEE)

elimination of inter-segment sales):

2012
—E——F
US$’000
FETT

Manufacturing: BUEZET -

Dry freight containers 72323 1,064,707
Refrigerated containers RIRERAE 202,805
Tank containers 2] 85,319
US domestic containers ERARESRER 79,543

Other specialised containers Hinrig R
and container parts N SAER T 73,826
Logistics services Y ARTE 30,408
1,536,608

TE-CZEFR - BREBECEARAA
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8 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continuved) 8  EPE#R &)

Geographical information il [& 57 &B

The Group’s operations are located in Hong Kong, AEBZEBIHRESE  PE KL%
the PRC and Thailand. The Group’s manufacturing o REE 2 BUEREHRNPAE - Wi
division is located in the PRC. Logistics services IRISZNEE ~ PEIKRFH -

division is located in Hong Kong, the PRC and

Thailand.

The following table provides an analysis of the TREEASERE PR 2 HETIS
Group’s revenue by geographical market based on DM EHEEE  WRERERMEEM
the location of customers, irrespective of the origin SARFS TR R, -

of the goods/services:

2012
—E——F

US$'000

FET

USA = 785,290
Europe BOM 225,553
Hong Kong B 214,664
Taiwan =] 5,637
PRC H 74,065
South Korea EE: 86,936
Others Efb 144,463
1,536,608
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
Geographical information (Continued)

The following is an analysis of the carrying amount
of segment assets and non-current assets, other
than available-for-sale investment, analysed by the
geographical area in which the assets are located:

8

SEER ()
b (& 53 8B (&)
AT =R (BEMEN) DT & &

ENFRBEE (IHHEZRERIN
ZBREHE

Carrying amount of
non-current assets

other than
Carrying amount available-for-sale
of segment assets investment
AT E Z B IS
IMEEZREFE ERDEEZREFE
2012 2012
—E——fF —E-F
US$'000 US$'000
FET FE7T
PRC H 1,010,206 454,032
Hong Kong B 19,968 5,868
Others HAtb 40 762
1,030,214 460,662
Information about major customers FEEXRER

Revenue from customers contributing over 10% of
the total sales of the Group are mainly derived from
the manufacturing segment in both years. For both
years, there is one customer contributing over 10%
of the total sales amounting to US$208,002,000
and US$380,726,000 in 2013 and 2012
respectively.

REMBEFELAEBHEBHEL
10%MEFFEREREEKD I -
REME @ HEEBEBRAI10%NE
FRE-R HHEEERZZ—=FK
—E——F 5 5/4208,002,000 E T &
380,726,000 37T °
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9 FINANCE COSTS 9 HMBEH
2012
—E——fF
US$’000
FET
Interest on bank loans and overdrafts ~ F|EXH — BRAFAEE
wholly repayable within five years BEZIBITERNEL 6,996
Notes coupon payments FRES 10,415
Bank charges WITFES 2,265
19,676
10 INVESTMENT INCOME 10 #H{EWNAN
2012
—E—_fF
US$’000
F3ET
Interest earned on bank deposits RITHFEHEMA 4,074
Dividend income from AHEEZRE
available-for-sale investment AR B 347
4,421
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11

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 11 BRFHanEH
2012
—E——4F
US$000
F=T
Profit before taxation has been arrived BrA A& A2 kR (GEA)
at after charging (crediting) the following: TAEIE
Auditor’s remuneration AT & 733
Staff costs, including directors’ emoluments 1B Bk AN » B IEE EHIE
— Salaries and other benefits - HekHMET 110,191
— Retirement benefit costs (Note 13) — BRINERIER (HE 13) 3,666
— Share-based payments - AR S 129
113,986
Depreciation and amortisation rE R
Depreciation of property, plant M - B RREBITE
and equipment 18,573
Amortisation i
- Patents - EHFIRE 117
— Prepaid lease payments in respect - HETHFBNEE
of leasehold land RIE 1,602
20,292
Operating lease charges KEHEER
- Land and buildings - THREF 5,429
— Plant and machinery - R REE 138
5,567
Allowance for doubtful debts REEERE 22
Share of taxation charge of associates FEIERE & A RIHIIE 237
Share of taxation charge of joint ventures ~ E(REELETE 141
378
Cost of inventories recognised as expense B REAHERAZTE 1,339,966
Loss (gain) on disposal of property, plant HEME - WERRE
and equipment ZEE () (65)
Loss on property, plant and equipment ERiEIE R = E
written off it 381
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HERBAR 2 W
(included in other income) (BEEEMBAR) -
Gain on disposal of an associate HEBE QR 2 W
(included in other income) (BEEEMBAR) -
Gain on disposal of joint ventures HEABLE 2 W
(included in other income) (BEEEMBAA) (3,360)

TE-CEFR - BWEESERERAA
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BA#5# &M st

12 DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST
PAID INDIVIDUALS’ EMOLUMENTS

The following was the emoluments paid or payable
to each of the 12 (2012: 12) Directors of the

12

EERTZESHMA L ZM

&

ATHENIEN+ i (ZF——%F:
T EZZEZME -

Company.
2013 —F-=
Cheng Tam
Chang Teo Chan Teo Fu Kwok, Ho Kit, Ong Yang Hsueh  Shuk Ping, Tan
Yun Chung  Siong Seng Kwok Leung  Tiou Seng David an  KaThai Victor  Chao En Sylvia  Chor Kee
R RHB RER  REE g5E  WAWE  IXE BEW  BER @ R
USS000  US§000  USS'000  US$'000 USS000  USS000  USS000  USS000  USS000  USS000  US$000
r  Fr  Fr R Hr  FEr FEr FEr fEr fER tER
(Note (Note vi) (Noteii) ~ (Notei)  (Noteii)
(i) () (i) (&) (R
Fees e 15 8 2
Other emoluments: Afpe :
Salaries and other benefits EE REAMET 18
Contrbutions o retfement RIRERIES
beneftt scheme
Pefomance rted incenfie. ~~ $ERT{ERERE
payments
Share-based payments Wi
2012
Cheng Tam
Chang Teo Chan Teo Kuan ~ FuKok, Lau Ong Yang Hsueh  Shuk Ping, Jn
YunChung  SiongSeng KwokLeung ~ TiouSeng ~ Kimkin David  HoKit, Ivan Ka Thai Victor -~ CheoEn Syia XuChu Total
Fh O FNB O RER  REE 0 OBGE 48 W& IXF AEE EER BNk 4D g
USS000  USS000  USS000  USS000  USS000  USS000  USS000  USBO00  USS000  USS000  USS000  USSO00  USS000
Hr T T T fAar T T far T T B T i
(Note ) (Note v) (Notei) — (Note vi)
(Hitv) (Hitv) Witi) _ (Bitwi)
Fees B2 X} 2% 19 8 B - 3 30 % 8 19 10 301
Other emoluments: Afpe :
Selares and other benefits &8 R - 48 104 51 - - - - - 176 U4 - 1103
Controutons to refrement RIRERIES
beneftt scheme - 19 10 2 - - - - - - 10 - 4
Pefomance reted noentie  £ERT/ERRES
payments - 1509 2 16 - - - - - 2 17 - 1583
Share-based payments HREE 5 49 10 2 2 - - 2 2 1 10 - 9
48 2,041 264 B 3 - 3 3 38 232 300 10 3122

Mr. Teo Siong Seng is also the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company and his emoluments
disclosed above include those for services
rendered by him as the Chief Executive Officer.
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12

DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST
PAID INDIVIDUALS’ EMOLUMENTS
(Continued)

Note i:

Note ii:

Note iii:

Note iv:

Note v:

Note vi:

Note vii:

Mr. Chang Yun Chung, a former Director, retired from
office at the 2013 annual general meeting held on
27 May 2013 and did not offer himself for re-election.

Mr. Tan Chor Kee had been appointed as non-
executive Director on 2 July 2013.

Mr. Hsueh Chao En, a former Director, retired from
office at the 2013 annual general meeting held on
27 May 2013 and did not offer himself for re-election.

Ms. Tam Shuk Ping, Sylvia had been appointed as
executive Director on 1 March 2012, and resigned on
2 February 2013.

Mr. Chan Kwok Leung had been appointed as
executive Director on 1 March 2012.

Mr. Cheng Fu Kwok, David had been appointed as
independent non-executive Director on 1 November
2012. According to the policy of Mr. Cheng’s existing
employed company, Mr. Cheng is not allowed to
receive remuneration for the appointment.

Mr. Jin Xu Chu, a former Director, retired from office at
the 2012 annual general meeting held on 6 June 2012
and did not offer himself for re-election.

12 EERTBAESFHFMA LT ZEM
& (&)

et -
—t+tHEFZ=F
A& _LIRIF - T EEEF -

HKiatii -
ERHBTTEE -

Kiazii -
—FtHEFZ=F
A& LRI WTESEET -
Kiativ :
HEHE -

Kiatv -
EBRITEE -

Kiatvi :

WERFTB

Histvii - FIEELBIALER —F

_EAR(F - WTEHEET -

TE-CEFR - BWEESERERAA
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—=FEREEF

BRELER —F—=F+A_A#Z

FEFHERELER —F—=F8H
—=FERREF

BHNIK IR =ZFE——F = —HEEL
EAHTEE YR -—F—=F—-H—=

BEREER —E——F=H—HEZ

BHEE LR —FE——F+—H—H#%
ZERBIIFHTTESE - RIS LH
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12 DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST 12 EEFERAAHSHEMA T Z N
PAID INDIVIDUALS’ EMOLUMENTS (&)
(Continued)
The above analysis includes 2 (2012: 4) Directors o tTEREASBERERa T
whose emoluments were among the five highest MATHERZME(ZE—ZF: @
paid individuals in the Group. Details of the HEZ - FREH =R (ZT—=F:
aggregate emoluments paid to the remaining 3 —Z)BAEBEERAERFMNALTZ
(2012: 1) individuals whose emoluments were Al MABIALRESTHEAZA
among the five highest paid individuals in the T HMEFBOT :

Group and which have not been included in
Directors’ emoluments above are set out below:—

2012
—E—F
US$’'000
FET
Salaries and other benefits e REMER 169
Retirement benefit costs RIRAEF R 6
Share-based payments BARRR 5
180
Their emoluments were within the following bands: ®E 2 e TE N3 E -
2012
—E——F
Number of
individuals
AEK
US$128,931 — US$193,396 128,931 3T — 193,396 7T
(HK$1,000,000 — HK$1,500,000) (1,000,000 7T
-1,500,000%7T) 1
US$193,397 — US$257,861 193,397 T - 257,861 7T
(HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000) (1,500,001 7T
- 2,000,000 7T) -
US$257,862 — US$322,327 257,862 7T — 322,327 & TT
(HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000) (2,000,001 7T
- 2,500,000 7% 7T.) -
No waiver of emoluments, compensation loss and FR - AEBVEREEI ARG TS
inducement to join or upon joining the Group was A T HEABE - fEAIMBESR N
paid to Directors or the five highest paid individuals BN B ) RE S E AR FE -

during the year.
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13

RETIREMENT BENEFIT COSTS

Prior to 1 December 2000, the Group operated
defined contribution retirement schemes for certain
employees in Hong Kong. These schemes are
registered under the Occupational Retirement
Scheme Ordinance. The assets of the scheme
are held separately and managed by independent
trustees. Under the rules of the schemes, the
employer and its employees are each required
to make contributions to the scheme at rates
specified in the rules. Any amount unvested
upon an employee ceasing to be a member
shall be used to offset subsequent employer’s
contributions.

With effect from 1 December 2000, the Group
has joined MPF scheme for all employees in Hong
Kong. The MPF scheme is registered with the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Authority
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance. The assets of the MPF scheme are
held separately from those of the Group in funds
under the control of an independent trustee.

Under the rules of the MPF scheme, the employer
and its employees are each required to make
contributions to the MPF scheme at rates specified
in the rules. The only obligation of the Group with
respect to the MPF scheme is to make the required
contributions under the scheme. No forfeited
contribution is available to reduce the contribution
payable in the future years.

The employees of subsidiaries in the PRC are
members of state-sponsored retirement benefit
schemes operated by the government in the PRC.
Subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain
percentage of relevant payroll to the retirement
benefit schemes. Obligations under the scheme
are borne by the PRC Government.

The retirement benefit costs charged to the
profit or loss representing contributions payable
by the Group to the MPF Scheme operated in
Hong Kong and the retirement benefit schemes
in the PRC amounted to US$4,282,000 (2012:
US$3,666,000).

13

BIREFIHEFX

R_ZEZZFE+_F—HA  AEED
BETEBREERX LA THIERKET
2l o 55 LB 58 BB B 2R AT 2D
Tt ZEFECEE DR BABILR
TAAFERER - BREFTEIZHR8  8
FREREFARMRAIERT ZLLE MG
EIER - WIEETBIBNALEE - B
HRBEIETS 2 (RS 1EREE & A AR 8
HiglEE 2K -

R-_ZZZEFE+_F—HiE  AEED
AEEBREERYNDEBTESETE -
ZETE| T E R FIME A TES FT 2K
meE s AES T EIEEBEM - &5
gz BEENEAEENEESFHILHE
USFEAEER -

REBRESTE AR BRERERES
BRBRARE 2L KA EIHR - K
SERRIE S 82— B ERREZ
ATEIEER - WEBOL WS A] FHRE R
REEE 2 AR o

B 2 Mt A R0 E 8 T5h BT A
HEfTZ P RRIKETBIRE - B A RIA
REEH©FET AN LRI -
tErE s BEEAETBHTEBRFEE -

BEIR 2 ERENHERIIAEE
BN TZEEREAR L Z2BESET
SIAREPEZEREGE 2 HR
& #£4,282,000% L( = F — = F :
3,666,000 %7T) °

TE-CZEFR - BREBECEARAA
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13 RETIREMENT BENEFIT COSTS 13 RIAKRBEREIR &)
(Continued)
No forfeited contributions of the Group’s defined AL B 2 FE TR RET 8 I 4%
contribution retirement schemes was used to Bz HERE BEREKRFE 2HK
reduce the current year’s contributions. At the end o NWEHR AEEWRBEEES
of the reporting period, the Group had no forfeited BEFRIGT ] - REEEARIOREE B
contributions, which arose from the employees KBRS MR o
leaving the retirement schemes and which are
available to reduce the contribution payable by the
Group in the future years.
14 INCOME TAX EXPENSE 14 FTEHIERXZ
Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of EBFETR T IRZ M EFE NG ER
the estimated assessable profit for both years. FRAZ 16.5% T & o
PRC Enterprise Income Tax has been calculated R 1 BTSSR T A AR E SR B i
on the estimated assessable profit for the year at M AL BN P B a1 R 2 RITH &
the rates of taxation prevailing in the PRC in which T8 o
the Group operates.
2012
—E——F
US$’000
FET
Current tax: REFEHIA -
Hong Kong Profits Tax BEBNED
— Current year - REE 21
— Prior years overprovision - BIF 2 2 (%)
16
PRC Enterprise Income Tax PR EFTISH
- Current year -RFE 30,248
— Prior years overprovision - B S M (50)
30,198
Deferred tax (Note 43): EEFIA (H13E43) -
Current year (credit) charge RNEE (He) i 3,734
Income tax expense for the year AEEZFEHERY 33,948
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14

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

14 MEHERIZ (Z

In accordance with the tax legislations applicable ZRERNIINEIRE D E 2 BEER
to foreign investment enterprises, a subsidiary of ARB—MEB AR E BEEKIEMBTSF
the Company are entitled to the exemption from REAZHRIBBEENENFEERNE
the PRC Enterprise Income Tax for the first three EET?—%%EF' lm%ﬁﬁ St Hig=
years commencing from the first profit-making FAIZEFRE m%ﬁﬁ MBDZETRE
year of operations, after offsetting all unexpired %o Bt AAR—HBARRN-F
tax losses from previous years, and thereafter —=FF_A=F—RUEFEZFRER
to a 50% relief from the PRC Enterprise Income EETMESTHRE -
Tax for the following three years. As a result, a
subsidiary of the Company was exempted from the
PRC Enterprise Income Tax for the year ended 31
December 2013.
2012
US$ 000 %
FET Bk

Profit before taxation B B A i F 102,879
Tax at the domestic tax rate LA AF = A& 25%

of 25% (2012: 25%) (2012 : 25%) st & 25,720 25.00
Tax effect of share of results  JE(EEEE A R 2%

of associates vy % (144) 0.14)
Tax effect of share of results  fEHA B D%

of joint ventures BB G E 401 0.39
Tax effect of expenses that  FE&1 2 & 22 i) A B

are not deductible in TEER 2 S

determining taxable profit ~ Z R & 1,796 1.75
Tax effect of income that TERTE e AR a1 B

are not taxable in BREBRELZ WA

determining taxable profit 2 FiiEH 2 (2,156) (2.10)
Tax effect on tax losses RAFERIEER

arising in the current ZBBEE L

year not recognised e 4,637 4.51
Tax effect of utilisation of FARFERIE

tax losses previously not R 2 RIS EE

recognised 2B E 27) (0.03)
Overprovision in prior years A4 fE 2 (s (55) (0.05)
Income tax on FTiSTE R R

concessionary rate (4,184) (4.07)
Withholding tax on RAOBEFE 2

undistributed profits RINRBHIE 3,734 3.63
Withholding tax paid on STRIEERIE

PRC dividend previously R ABIARE

not recognised RINRETHIE 3,862 3.75
Others HAftb 364 0.35
Tax charge and effective REEFIESL T

rate for the year PEREES 33,948 32.99

—E--FFR - BRWEBECEFRLAAF
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15 DIVIDENDS 15 B2
2012
—E—_4F
US$’000
FET
Dividends recognised as distributions R FERERBEDIKKE.
during the year:
Interim in respect of current financial ~ AFE ZFREIE - B
year, paid — HK3 cents FEBR 3B
(2012: HK4 cents) per ordinary share -
FEBAR4780L) 12,478
Final in respect of the previous financial %€ 2 KEARL B — B4
year, paid — HK2 cents &R 2L
(2012: HK5 cents) per ordinary share (=& — 4 :
i% A% 5 8L ) 15,682
28,060

The final dividend of HK1 cent in respect of
the year ended 31 December 2013 (2012: final
dividend of HK2 cents in respect of the year ended
31 December 2012) per ordinary share, total of
which equivalent to approximately HK$24,204,000
(equivalent to approximately US$3,121,000) (2012:
HK$48,400,000 (equivalent to US$6,200,000)) has
been proposed by the Directors and is subject to
approval by the shareholders in forthcoming annual
general meeting.
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16

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per
share attributable to the owners of the Company is

based on the following data:

16 BiEF

ARRIBRREHEARETEREF T
AT BIERTE

2012
—E——F
US$'000
FET
Earnings: &2 -
Earnings for the purposes of FEUAFTEEARREE
calculating basic and BREN 2 &BF
diluted earnings per share 60,346
Number of shares: RIGEE -
Weighted average number of FELAGTEERTRET
ordinary shares for the purpose 2 BBl T8 E
of calculating basic
earnings per share 2,418,906,258
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary BiRES BT
shares for share options LB 2 1,515,950
Weighted average number of FEUTTEEE TR AR
ordinary shares for the purpose 2 iR E 8
of calculating diluted earnings
per share 2,420,422,208

TE-CEFR - BWEESERERAA
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17 PROPERTY, PLANT AND 17 5% BBFERR

EQUIPMENT
Leasehold Furniture,
land and Plant fittings and
buildings and and office Motor  Construction
site improvements ~ machinery  equipment vehicles  in progress Total
BELHRTET HER R KER
Group FER RiHR #E BLERG RE ERIE am
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
i i S TEL TEL TEL
Cost kA
At 1 January 2012 RZE—Z5+ZA=+-H 155,200 155,642 9,500 7470 45,660 373472
Translation differences HEER 37 2 21 14 - 74
Additions AE 215 3,866 345 966 104,226 109,618
Disposals e - (589) ) (254) - (849)
Write off i - (1,480) (207) (224) - (1,911)
Trangfer @i 255 26,845 2,867 2413 (32,380) -
At 31 December 2012 RZE-Z4+ZA=1-H 185,707 184,286 12,520 10,385 117,506 480,404
Translation differences hEES 398 215 8 14 - 635
Additions AE 3911 7,822 619 1,839 49,592 63,783
Disposals e - (870) (58) (470) - (1,398)
Write off i - (2,611) (480) (614) - (3,705)
Attrioutable to disposalof ~ HEHBAT
subsidiaries (38,804) (37,771) (2,297) (1,783) - (80,655)
Trangfer @i 31,716 32,820 88 1,131 (65,755) -
At 31 December 2013 RZF-Z£+ZA=+-A 152,928 183,801 10,400 10,502 101,343 459,064
Accumulated depreciation  EFEHTE
At1 January 2012 R-Z2-——5-f-B 37,688 72,661 6,558 4,005 - 120,912
Translation differences BEES - 7 3 1 - 81
Charge for the year TEENE 6,704 10,308 662 899 - 18,573
Eliminated on disposals E - (509) (60) (228) - (791)
Eliminated on write off RazEfi - (1,174) (182) (174) - (1,530)
At 31 December 2012 RZE-—#+-A=1-A 44,39 81,369 6,081 4503 = 137,245
Translation differences BEES 108 70 6 16 - 200
Charge for the year TEENE 5,881 12,382 622 1461 - 20,346
Eliminated on disposals HEHH - (525) (52) (387) - 964)
Eliminated on write off REztaf - (1424) 462) (349) - (2,229)
Attributable to disposal of ~ HEHBAT
subsidlaries (17,023) (22,204) (2,006) (1,342) - (42,665)
At 31 December 2013 RZF-ZE+ZA=1+-A 33,358 69,578 5,089 3,908 - 111,933
Carrying values REERE
At 31 December 2013 RZF-Z£+ZR=t+-H 119,570 114,313 5,311 6,504 101,343 347,131
At 31 December 2012 RZF—Z%+ZA=+-H 111,315 102,917 5,539 5,882 117,506 343,159
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17 PROPERTY, PLANT AND 17 1% - BB REHREE)
EQUIPMENT (Continued)

The carrying value of land and buildings of the AEE T REFZREED T
Group is analysed as follows: ™
Leasehold
land and Site
buildings improvements Total
HE L
RETF THER wE
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
TET FET FET
Group A&ERE
At 31 December 2013 RZZE—=%+_A=+—H
Held outside Hong Kong ERBAIMNERFFE
On medium-term lease I HARE4Y
(20 to 50 years) (20£50%) 3,328 116,242 119,570
At 31 December 2012 R-E——_%+_A=+—H
Held outside Hong Kong ERBAIMNERFFE
On medium-term lease I HARE4Y
(20 to 50 years) (20£50%) 3,441 107,874 111,315

TE-CEFR - BWEESERERAA
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=3

17 PROPERTY, PLANT AND 17 % - I REHE =)
EQUIPMENT (Continued)
Furniture,
Leasehold fittings and
land and office Motor
buildings equipment vehicles Total
HELH HE RER
REF WAEH RE b
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
TET TET TET TET
Company YN
Cost B%N
At 1 January 2012 R-ZZF——F—f—H 4,287 2,468 61 6,816
Additions NE = 24 = 24
Disposal HE - (1) — (1)
At 31 December 2012 RZE-—F+-RA=1—-H 4,287 2,491 61 6,839
Additions NE - 8 - 8
Disposal HeE - - - -
At 31 December 2013 RZE—=%+=-H=+—H 4,287 2,499 61 6,847
Accumulated depreciation ZF&iTE
At 1 January 2012 RZE——F—F—H 734 1,804 61 2,599
Charge for the year AEEHE 112 184 - 296
Eliminated on disposals &% - - - -
At 31 December 2012 ——&+-A=1+—H 846 1,088 61 2,895
Charge for the year AEEHE 113 181 - 294
Eliminated on disposals & %84 - - - -
At 31 December 2013 RZE—=F+=-HA=+—H 959 2,169 61 3,189
Carrying values REEE
At 31 December 2013 RZE-=%+"A=+—-H 3,328 330 - 3,658
At 31 December 2012 RZE——F+=-A=+—H 3,441 503 - 3,944
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17 PROPERTY, PLANT AND 17 1% - BB REHREE)
EQUIPMENT (Continued)

2012
Company Y /N —T——fF
US$'000
FET
Leasehold land and buildings AR ERFE A9 (20 2 504F)
held outside Hong Kong on BHEBAIIMNE
medium — term lease B i R IEF
(20 to 50 years) 3,441
The land and building elements of a lease of land TH REFHRAOF O L RIEFHHE
and building cannot be allocated reliably between ERTHEEFE MR ESR - BH
the land and building elements, the entire lease is THABRBRIEDE - W R -
treated as property, plant and equipment.
18 GOODWILL 18 HWE
Group AEH
US$'000
7T
Cost %S
At 1 January 2012, RN—ET——F—H—H-
31 December 2012 and —E——F+ZA=+—8HkK
31 December 2013 —T—=F+-_A=+—H 7,872
Impairment RBE
At 1 January 2012, R—FT——F—H—H8"
31 December 2012 and —T——H+-A=+—8K
31 December 2013 —ET—=%+=-H=+—H 1,626
Carrying values REEE
At 31 December 2013 R_F—=f+="H=+—H 6,246
At 31 December 2012 R_T—_—_F+_A=1+—H 6,246
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill REARME - BEHEZEER R
has been allocated to individual CGUs, including ReBEMN PEAB(ZE—Z=F: 51
five (2012: five) subsidiaries in manufacturing of M) BREER KB I MB AR -
container.
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19

GOODWILL (Continued) 18 Tl‘*:-lﬁ & (&)
The Group tests goodwill annually for impairment, rEBem BT REEETRER
or more frequently if there are indications that A NRETRETRHENRESBEER
goodwill might be impaired. B - BB E S E IR -
The recoverable amounts of CGU is determined IR @ B a2 5B 2R A E A
from value in use calculations. The key Tﬁﬁﬁﬁm FEFEAEERRANE
assumptions for the value in use calculations EX BRI ARG IR K i‘ETM&
are those regarding the discount rates, growth MHH%%FT*?DET?EFH HFEETEE
rates and expected changes to selling prices B ERM AN R AEETREE X LMQHQ%
and direct costs during the period. Management BRI in Y B REEEMERIGE®
estimates discount rates using pre-tax rates BB AB AR Bk 2 T o 1R A
that reflect current market assessments of the BIBEEANERIBAMERE o $HEBBA
time value of money and the risks specific to the HEZERNEE G ATISHE L8 HIAN
CGU. The growth rates are based on industry HARKREEWERIEREEHER
growth forecasts. Changes in selling prices and
direct costs are based on past practices and
expectations of future changes in the market.
The Group prepares cash flow forecasts derived REEMNREeRERARREROIRE
from the most recent financial budgets approved fiﬁﬁ%ﬁtﬂ’]ﬂi??(ﬂiﬁ’]ﬁﬁ“ﬁ%fﬁ
by management for the next five years and B WiR5% (ZF—ZF : 5%) Mfh&T
extrapolates cash flows for the following five 1R ERIE) H'Hﬂ@iﬁﬂﬁfﬁé mE o A
years based on an estimated growth rate of 5% DATE?E?E'J%@imETﬁ?ﬁEﬁTEﬂ’]EEEEY
(2012: 5%). The rate used to discount the forecast B10% (ZE——F : 10%) - EERAE
cash flows is 10% (2012: 10%). The Directors AU ER S REEL A REISFENE
consider that reasonably possible change in key ERRBEAEMEATEES NI g5
assumptions on which the Directors have based BEemEEMMREERTDHEYE
to determine the CGU'’s recoverable amount would BHE ©
not cause the CGU'’s carrying amount to exceed its
recoverable amount.
INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 19 RMBARZHERE
Company
¥/
2012
—E——F
US$'000
FET
Unlisted shares and investments, JE_EmRRD RIRE -
at cost 2N 305,811
Less: Impairment loss recognised B ERERERR L -
305,811
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INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

Particulars of principal subsidiaries as at
December 2013 and 2012 are set out below:

31

19 M

Y

2 M

t

k
A
N—

BAR

el

R_E—=FR_FT——-_F+_H
=+—HB ' ARRZEENBRARZHF

BT -

Issued and fully

Place of paid share/
incorporation/ contributed Principal
Name registration ~ Group’s equity interest capital activities

ERITR

B/ WRBH/
& Eauyika RERFIG R BfkRA FTEEH

2012
—E-—F

DY Terminal Ltd. Hong Kong 100.0% Ordinary Provision of
TARBRRAH B HK$1,000,000 container
LR storage and
1,000,000/ 7T repair services
REERERT
KRB
Eng Kong Container & Warehousing Ltd. Hong Kong 73.3% Ordinary Investment
KEEREEARAT B HK$300,000 holding
LEk REER

300,000%7T
Eng Kong Container Services Ltd. Hong Kong 73.3% Ordinary Provision of
KEEERBERAR A HK$3,000,000 container
TR storage, drayage
3,000,0007%7C and repair services
RS RERT -
B B IR
Foshan Shunde Leliu Wharf & Container Co., Ltd. PRC 59.0% US$21,000,000 Provision of
(“Leliu Wharf) H 21,000,000%7T container
BLmIEER AR EEERRAR terminal services
(gl REERM
TS 2R R%
Foshan Shunde Singamas Tank Container Co., Ltd. ** PRC 100.0% US$10,000,000 Manufacturing
(“Singamas Tank’) # 10,000,000%7T of tank containers
FlmREEERE S EERAR " RN

(T 51E))
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19 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 19 RMBARZEZRE &)
(Continued)

Issued and fully

Place of paid share/
incorporation/ contributed Principal
Name registration ~ Group’s equity interest capital activities

2BITR

M3/ BWERG/
& Eaupiik KRB BEaRE TEEH

2012
“E-—F

Guangdong Shun An Da Pacific Container Co., Ltd. * British Virgin 100.0% US$1,000 Marketing dry
Islands 1,000%7T freight and
KBRS specialised containers
inthe PRC
ERELH
TRRME RN
Guangdong Shun An Da Pacific Container Co., Ltd. ** PRC 100.0% US$17,900,000 Manufacturing
(“Guangdong Shun An Da) H 17,900,000 % 7T of dry freight
EREZEATERARAR " and specialised
((EREFIERE]) containers
g SR
R
Hui Zhou Pacific Container Co., Ltd. * # PRC 91.0% US$40,000,000 Manufacturing
BMATERBRAR H 40,000,000 of dry freight
containers
g SR
Ningbo Pacific Container Co., Ltd. ** PRC 100.0% US$20,000,000 Manufacturing
ERATERERAR " H 20,000,000 7T of dry freight
and specialised
containers
e SR
REFTER
Qidong Pecific Logistics Equipment Co., Ltd.* PRC 100.0% US$45,000,000 Manufacturing
BRATREBRRAR " i 45,000,000 7T of refrigerated
containers
BUERRESRM
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INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

19 MNMHBAR w4

(Continued)

Issued and fully

Place of paid share/
incorporation/ contributed Principal
Name registration  Group’s equity interest capital activities

2BITR

M3/ WERH/
& Eaupik REBFRIL R BEaRE TEXH

2012
“E-—F

Qidong Pacific Port Co., Ltd. * PRC 100.0% RMB90,000,000 Provision of
ERREABERAR " HE AKH#90,000,0007C container
terminal services
REERMA
TSR R %
Qidong Singamas Energy Equipment Co., Ltd.* * PRC 100.0% US$92,500,000 Manufacturing
BRERREEERAR " H 92,500,000 %7 of dry freight
(Note 4) and specialised
(H1it4) containers
HEE SR
KRR
Qingdao Pacific Container Co., Ltd.* * PRC 100.0% US$26,605,700 Manufacturing
BEATERERAR " H 26,605,700 7T of dry freight
(Note 5) and specialised
(H1i25) containers
e SR
RIFTER
Shanghai Baoshan Pacific Container Co., Ltd. * PRC 74.0% US$25,300,000 Manufacturing
LEBELATEEERAR ¢ H 25,300,00037T of dry freight and
specialised containers
e SR
REFEM
Shanghai Pacific International Container Co., Ltd. *# PRC 60.0% US$26,000,000 Manufacturing
LBATEBREEARAR HE 26,000,00037C of tank containers
SUEEN
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19 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 19 RMBARZEZRE &)
(Continued)
Issued and fully
Place of paid share/
incorporation/ contributed Principal
Name registration ~ Group’s equity interest capital activities
2BITR
M3/ BWERG/
& Eaupiik KRB BEaRE TEEH
2012
“E-—F
Shanghai Reeferco Container Co., Ltd. * * PRC 90.9% US$22,000,000 Manufacturing
HEERREEARAR H 22,000,000%7¢ of refrigerated
containers
BERRERM
Singamas Container Industry Co., Ltd. *# PRC 75.0% US$5,100,000 Manufacturing
BHEETEERAR " # 5,100,000% 7 of collapsiole
flatrack and
specialised
containers
PETRAE
EGWEE T
Singamas Container Holdings (Shanghai) Limited ** PRC 100.0% US$2,000,000 Provision of
BREEERE (L8 BRAR" th 2,000,000 7T technical and
development services
of container
manufacturing
iy =gk
B R R
Singamas Depots Holdings Ltd. * Hong Kong 100.0% Ordinary Investment holding
BRI RERAR - BB HK$10,000 RERR
TR
10,00087T
Singamas Logistics (Qingdao) Co., Ltd. * PRC 60.0% US$5,780,000 Provision of
B (E8) BRAR H 5,780,000 7T container storage
and repair services
REEEERT
REERY
Singamas Logistics (Tianjin) Co., Ltd. ** PRC 100.0% US$6,500,000 Provision of
B (R=2) BRAR - H 6,500,000 7T container storage
and repair services
RUEERERE
REERS
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19 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 19 RMBARZEZRE )
(Continued)
Issued and fully
Place of paid share/
incorporation/ contributed Principal
Name registration  Group’s equity interest capital activities
2BITR
M3/ WERH/
& Eaupik KRB E BEaRE TEEH
2012
“B-—F
Singamas North America, Inc. * @ USA 100.0% US$500,000 Marketing
*H 500,000% 7 containers in
the USA
EXBREHERA
Singamas Terminals (China) Ltd. British Virgin 100.0% US$1,000 Investment
Islands 1,000%7T holding
RBRAHE RERR
Singamas Terminals Holdings Ltd. * British Virgin 100.0% US$1,000 Investment
Islands 1,000%7T holding
EBRUES KA
Singamas Terminals (HK) Ltd. British Virgin 100.0% US$1,000 Investment
Islands 1,000%T holding
RERUES REER
Singamas Terminals (Hong Kong) Ltd. Hong Kong 100.0% Ordinary Provision of
BREIEEE (BE) ARAA BB HK$5,000,000 mid-stream
TR services
5,000,000/ 7T REERRIER
87
Singamas Warehouse (Shanghai) Company Ltd. British Virgin 100.0% US$1,000 Investment
Islands 1,000%T holding
EERUES RERR
Tianjin Pacific Container Co., Ltd. ** PRC 97.0% US$25,700,000 Manufacturing
REATERERAR H 25,700,000%7C of dry freight
and specialised
containers
e SR
RIFER
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19 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 19 RMBARZEZRE &)
(Continued)
Issued and fully
Place of paid share/
incorporation/ contributed Principal
Name registration ~ Group’s equity interest capital activities
2BITR
M3/ BWERG/
& Eaupiik REBFRIL R BEaRE TEXH
2012
“2—F
Tianjin Singamas Container Co., Ltd. ** PRC 100.0% US$2,000,000 Provision of
REBHEREBRAR H 2,000,000%7T container storage,
repair and trucking
senvices, and
senving as a
freight station
RUERARE
BE  E
RE@IRY%
Wellmass Group Ltd. British Virgin 60.0% US$10,000 Investment
Islands 10,000%7T holding
EBRUES KA
Xiamen Pacific Container Manufacturing Co., Ltd. ** PRC 100.0% US$23,000,000 Manufacturing
(Xiamen Pacific’) HE (Note 6) 23,000,000%7T of dry freight
EFATERZEERAR (Hiz#6) containers
(TEFIAFED) BET RN
Yixing Singamas Metal Products Co., Ltd. * # PRC 95.0% US$200,000 Manufacturing
FEENCBNRERAR " H 200,000% T of container parts
SRR
* Subsidiaries held directly by the Company * NS e ) VAL
# Equity joint venture established in the PRC in ” RIZB LAV RAEERF B2 Em e
accordance with relevant laws and regulations Eibx
" Wholly owned foreign enterprise established in the PRC " RIEF G REERFEL 7.2 2INE
in accordance with relevant laws and regulations HHPE
e Represented common shares held by the Company @ REAR R AIfFE I BB
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INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)

The principal place of operation of each subsidiary
is the same as the place of incorporation/
registration stated above, except for those
companies incorporated in British Virgin Islands
and Bahamas which are incorporated for
investment holding purpose.

The above list gives the principal subsidiaries of the
Company which, in the opinion of the Directors,
principally affected the results and assets of the
Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would,
in the opinion of the Directors, result in particulars
of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities
outstanding at the end of the year.

Notes:

1 On 16 October 2012, each of the Company and
Singamas Terminals (China) Limited, a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into a share transfer
agreement with Foshan Shunde Chuangjian Investment
Co., Ltd., a company established in the PRC with
common substantial shareholder with Guangdong
Fuwa Machinery Holding Co., Ltd. (“Guangdong Fuwa
Machinery”), a company established in the PRC which
is currently holding 41% equity interest in Leliu Wharf, to
dispose of their respective 40% and 19% equity interest
of Leliu Wharf at a consideration of RMB98,310,000
and RMB46,690,000 (equivalent to US$15,660,000
and US$7,437,000) respectively. The transaction was
completed in February 2013.

2 On 16 October 2012, the Company entered into a share
transfer agreement with Guangdong Fuwa Machinery
to dispose of its 100% equity interest of Singamas Tank
for a cash consideration of RMB171,525,000 (equivalent
to US$27,322,000). The transaction was completed in
February 2013.

19

RIB AR Z#Em(

BRI EJ&%K%%&E BRLLAER
BREZEBR AR - EMBAREERS
2 ERHBEER FXOPRE 2 LR
ROFAME]

ERAMINARESERAEAEE 2 &BH
SEEREAFENTENBLAR - £
EERARBEEMNE QR 2153
BimiEAR o

BEAFEL > WE
REEZEANE?

SEEAMBATE

Hrat -

1 R=—F——F+F+~H AR REE
& W18 2\ 7]-Singamas Terminals (China)
Limited & B B2 1L T NE{Z = B 1 BB
R 2 7] (B R B0 17 3 5 5 2 e
EEERA A ([EREER W) - —FI
R BT 15 255 41 % R A HE s 2
NE] BRI —FERE)  FET—HER
B E % 2RI A R #98,310,000
o K A K #46,690,000T( 15 & R
15,660,000 7T X 7,437,000 7T ) £ %
THRBEHER /\5/};/\%?///[,/’%/5/?&_40/&
19% .2 RA#m o MK FER=F

F=HTRH o
2 REZF—=—F+HA+~H - I/‘Eﬁﬁ/;—?%
EEEFE —HREEE " A

K #%171,625,000T (15 % 77\‘27,322, 000
ZE) HE M ELH ERREHEXE
100%.2 KA fEm - X GER =—F—=
FE = F5R e
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INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

3

On 31 May 20183, the Company entered into a share
transfer agreement with Foshan Shunde Kanghong
Investment Co., Ltd., a company incorporated in the
PRC, to dispose of the Company’s 100% equity interest
in Guangdong Shun An Da for a cash consideration of
RMB160,000,000 (equivalent to US$25,895,000). The
transaction was completed in August 2013.

The Group had made an additional investment of
US$47,500,000 during year 2013. The paid-up capital
increased from US$45,000,000 to US$92,500,000
accordingly.

The Group had made an additional investment of
US$5,000,000 during year 2013. The paid-up capital
increased from US$21,605,700 to US$26,605,700
accordingly.

On 31 December 2012, the Group acquired the
remaining 4.8% equity interest of Xiamen Pacific for a
cash consideration of approximately RMB13,194,000
(equivalent to approximately US$2,099,000). The
surplus over the carrying amount of the respective
4.8% equity interest of Xiamen Pacific of approximately
US$2,063,000 was amounted to US$36,000,
which was debited to other reserve in consolidated
statements of changes in equity. Upon completion of
the transaction, Xiamen Pacific became a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company.
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KRB AR Z

Hret - (&)

3 R-ZE—=ZFFH=+—H LR F/H
1L T B 7 e R 22 B A R A Al (— R
RAEEIRET A AF]) 5T —BRE 2%
Wi AN BB 160,000,000 7T (1HER
25,895,000 7T ) H EA R AR ERINEZ
EMT100%RAEZR - MK ZGER-F
—=F/NAZH °

4 REBR —F— =41} T 47,500,000
ETRAIRE © B EHKAH 45,000,000
T2 92,500,000 % 7T °

5} AEEHR —FE—=4F14 1 T 5000,000%
TRARE - HE LA H 21,606,700
T2 26,605,700 % T °

6 RZFE—ZFFZA=+—H AR
AU I 13,194,000 7 (15 E R AT
2,099,000%7T) 2 B L 1EZHEFIXF
AT 4.8% RAMER - HHEFPIAF4.8%
SR A HE 2S5 1 BR IET (B 49 2,063,000 55 T + Il
HIBHE 1 #736,0005 7T » IR A # s
BHRFPEMEEF G - EX BT
#  BFIXFERABEREZ2ENER
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20 AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO 20 B FEFTHMIEB A FFIE

SUBSIDIARIES

Company A H

The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured EWHE AR KRB EERFLLE
and repayable on demand. Included in the EEXRBH - TEKKNERRK
amounts due from subsidiaries is an amount of I8 1 20,000,000E Jo( —Z T — = F -
US$20,000,000 (2012: US$70,494,000) which 70,494,000 7T) /B RENK ' FEBE
bears variable interest at a spread of no more EARRB)ZRITERTKAMTZRE
than 0.25% (2012: 0.25%) per annum over the B.0.25% (ZZF—=4F : 0.25%) =B&t
cost of bank borrowings of the Company. The B o ABRFKIBETEAE « RARIEETE
remaining balances are interest free. The Directors HAFE UL FE AT T I 2 R B IR A A 3 o5 P
expected the amounts due from/to subsidiaries to Kig+ @A mUkE Bt -

be recovered/repaid within twelve months after the
end of the reporting period.

The amounts due to subsidiaries are unsecured, JENHE AR B AEEE 258 E
interest free and repayable on demand. F o RRBRETEERBE -
21 INTERESTS/INVESTMENTS IN 21 REENFRIZER ]E
ASSOCIATES
Group Company
r&H Y. /N
2012 2012
—E——F —E——fF
US$'000 US$'000
FET FTET
Unlisted shares and FEEM 2R
investments:
At cost B 2,909 757
Share of post-acquisiton ~ FE{EUREE 1A (&1 -
reserves, net of 3k B U AR
dividend received 2,405 -
5314 757
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21 INTERESTS/INVESTMENTS IN 21 REZENRZERZ RE®)
ASSOCIATES (continued)

Particulars of associates as at 31 December 2013 RZE—=FR_F-—Z-F+=H
and 2012 are set out below: =+—8" $’EIZI%H§‘“¢’“TZ#
BT :
Place of
Form of incorporation/
business registration Group Proportion of Principal
Name structure  and operation equity interest voting power held activities
AL/ &R 3] FrfiR
4 Tk 7 REENY Frffi e RS TEEH
2012 2012
5 CF s
Ningbo Victory Container Co., Ltd. # Incorporated PRC 40.0%" 40.0%" Provision of
BEYRBERERLA =B e container storage
and repair
services
s 23T
REERT
Singamas Thai Logistics Co., Ltd. * Incorporated Thalland 25.0%" 25.0% Provision of
] %E container storage
and repair
services
s 23T
REERT
Xiamen Xiangyu Singamas Container Incorporated PRC 28.0%" 28.6%" Provision of
Co,, Ltd. * EE HE container storage,
EMREBEHERERAR repair and trucking
services, and
serving as a
freight station
RESRMER
e - HER
SEURE
Yixing Goldrich Welding Metal Incorporated PRC 30.0%" 33.3% Manufacturing
Co., Ltd. (*Yixing Goldrich”) * # =B HE of welding parts
HESREEMHBRAR SRR

B])
* Associates held directly by the Company * AREIEEF B &N A]
# Equity joint venture established in the PRC in 8 Wf’ﬁf@fﬁ/&fﬁx’fﬂﬁt"ﬁlz%&ﬁ
accordance with relevant laws and regulations i
" In proportion to issued and fully paid registered capital 8 f;?E’ BT REE MR Z B
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22

INTERESTS/INVESTMENTS IN 21 REENTIZH#EZR RE )
ASSOCIATES (continued)
Note: HiaE
1 On 25 January 2013, the Group disposed of its 30% 1 REZF—=F—H=+AH  FRa/8H—
equity interest in Yixing Goldrich, an associate of the B E =T #EF —HREEE S AE
Company, to a third party for a cash consideration of LAA B 1,490,000 7T (1HZE R 237,000 %
RMB1,490,000 (equivalent to US$237,000). At the date )2 B & — B & 7] 5% 7 30%
of disposal, the carrying amount of the Group’s interest R o RN EH - AEEFFHEA
in Yixing Goldrich was amounted to US$222,000, S E T KRB E 5 222,000% T © A
resulting in a gain on disposal of US$15,000 credited to K3 GFTE £ 2 W 15,0003 7T B 51 A
profit or loss. B o
Aggregate information of associates that are not HERIEE 2 B & ARG EER
individually material:
2012
—E——F
US$’000
FETT
The Group’s share of profit rEERELZ
for the year AEE A 575
The Group’s share of other REBEEEZ
comprehensive income FREMEE WS (35)
The Group’s share of total AEBEELEZ
comprehensive income FAZEW =BT 540
Aggregate carrying amount of rEBEGZ
the Group’s interests in BN R AREREE
these associates 5,314
INTERESTS/INVESTMENTS IN 22 REELEZER RE
JOINT VENTURES
Group
A
2012
—E——F
US$’'000
FETT
Unlisted shares and investments: JELETm 2R ¢
At cost DN 5,429
Share of post-acquisition reserves, FE(E IR BB 1& A
net of dividend received R E U AR A 1,383
6,812
—E--FFR - BRWEBECEFRLAAF
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22 INTERESTS/INVESTMENTS IN 22 REBELEZES HBE®

JOINT VENTURES (Continued)
Particulars of joint ventures as at 31 December RZE—=FR_F-—Z-F+=H
2013 and 2012 are set out below: =+—HB AEEZEEESELFEFE

W
Place of
Form of incorporation/
business registration Group Proportion of Principal
Name structure  and operation equity interest voting power held activities
AL/ F£HE Frs&
7B HuFs REENY Fr it KRB TEXH
2012 2012
—TF “ECF

Dalian Singamas International Incorporated PRC 36.8% 33.3% Provision of
Container Co., Ltd. # = H container storage
NEBREREERER AR and repair
services
REERBRT
R
Fuzhou Singamas Container Co., Ltd. *  Incorporated PRC 40.0% 40.0% Provision of
BMNBREEER AR %E i container storage
and repair
services
PR SRR
R#ERS
Shanghai Huasing International Container  Incorporated PRC - - Provision of
Freight Transportation Co., Ltd. * ] HE container depot
(‘Huasing”) and related
EERRRERHEEERAR logstics services
([££)) RESEARSER
RIAER RS
# Equity joint venture established in the PRC in & RIEERIEOIREERF LT 2 #Em s

accordance with relevant laws and regulations

The voting power of the Group in respective joint
ventures is determined by the proportion of the
Group’s representatives in the board of directors of
respective joint ventures.
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22

INTERESTS/INVESTMENTS IN 22
JOINT VENTURES (Continued)

Note:

1 On 5 July 2012, Singamas Depots Holdings Limited
(“Singamas Depots”), a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, has entered into a share transfer
agreement with PIL, a substantial shareholder and
the ultimate holding company of the Company, under
which Singamas Depots agreed to acquire from PIL,
the 40% equity interest of Huasing which engages
in the business of providing container depot and
related logistics services, for a cash consideration of
RMB110,699,000 (equivalent to US$17,797,000). Prior
to the Group’s acquisition, PIL and Sinotrans Eastern
Co., Ltd., an independent third party, were holding 40%
and 60% equity interest in Huasing respectively. The
transaction was completed on 14 March 2013.

Aggregate information of joint ventures that are not
individually material:

REELEZHELE BRE®)

1 R-FE——F+HaH  FRA—2EH
ER ARSI EFRA A (R
5 ) AR A2 F BRE R RAEIERL
Al - X FPHBZEET —BIREER G
A B U A & # 110,699,000 (18 & &
17,797,000% 7T ) 2 B B —‘727%%?
FEAFEZ40% 2 RA s » FE 75—
%%ﬁ%&”@ﬁf&‘%@ﬁﬁ&fﬁ@gwﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁ
Al o RAZEBIKIERT - KT R B
EERGRAF(—BLE=7)5FF
BEE40% K 60% 2 KA ME R © X5
ER=ZF—=F=FHFHHATHK -

FEREE 2 ABERENGEAER

2012
—E—_4F
US$’000
FET
The Group’s share of loss REBEEGZ
for the year RNEZEE (1,602)
The Group’s share of other AEEEGZ
comprehensive income 39
The Group’s share of total REBEELZ
comprehensive income (expense) FREEWE (BE) 85 (1,563)
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23 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE 23 FAHEZHEE

INVESTMENTS
Group Company
F£E VNG
2012 2012
—E——4F —E——F
US$'000 US$'000
F=ET FTET
Unlisted securities FLEmER
— Equity securities, - RAES
at cost R AR 1,614 669
The above unlisted investments represent Lt IE FmFES RN B ML 2 FL
investments in unlisted equity securities issued by ABBABITZIELTRAZTSIRE -
private entities established in the PRC. They are HREEAREBEHATHEEER S
measured at cost less impairment at the end of the REANBETEERAETE @ WZER
reporting period because the range of reasonable BREWMERREKNATRBERTE -
fair value estimates is so significant that the
Directors are of the opinion that their fair values
cannot be measured reliably.
The Group’s unquoted equity investments in 2013 R-E—=F XEEHAZIFLMHE
included 14.0% (2012: 14.0%) equity interest of FRERFIMEEFIREMRERRNDE
Xiamen Superchain Logistics Development Co., FRAFI14.0% (ZZF——F : 14.0%) i%
Ltd, a logistic company in the PRC. 1 ZAE—FTRPRLE 2R AR -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BA#5# &M at

24 PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 24 FE{FHERKIE

Group
AEE
2013 2012
- TE—_F |
US$’000 US$’000
FEr FET

The Group’s prepaid lease payments ~ ANEE 2 BNHEFIERIE
comprise:

Leasehold land outside Hong Kong: EEBAIMNER 2 HE T -

Medium-term lease fRERFE A9 80,846
Analysed for reporting purpose as: MMEMEL 22T -
Amount shown under non-current RIERBDEEERI R
assets 79,004
Amount shown under current assets ~ WREBEEZRH o5 1,842
80,846
25 DEPOSITS FOR NON-CURRENT 25 EREEERKE
ASSETS
Group Company
KEH p. /N
2013 2012 2013 2012

ZE—=£ et T — = elcEacs
US$’000 US$'000 US$’000 USs$'000
FE=x FET FEx FET

Deposits paid for property, T IH#1%E - #2E
plant and equipment iR (M)
(Note i) 2,955 2,537

Deposits paid for prepaid B ANFENTAERIA
lease payments (Note i) &% (H1:tii)

1,420

9,155 17,590

12,110 20,127
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25 DEPOSITS FOR NON-CURRENT 25

FERBEERE (&)

ASSETS (Continued)

Notes: Hfat -

i At the end of the reporting period, deposit of i RIFERIF - BT AR 700,000 (15
RMB700,000 (equivalent to US$115,000) and ER115,000% 7€) % 22,021,000, 7T (18
HK$22,021,000 (equivalent to US$2,840,000) (2012: ER2840,000%) (ZFE—=4F : AR
RMB7,020,000 (equivalent to US$1,117,000) and 17,020,000t (18 % 11,117,000 7T )
HK$11,011,000 (equivalent to US$1,420,000)) had K& 11,011,000% 7z (1% 1 1,420,000 %
been paid for the purchases of property, plant and TC))ERBEYR  HERRBEZIZE -
equipment. The remaining balance was disclosed B T BEE R R it 46 E AR IEIEH 7 -
as capital commitment as set out in Note 46. The UAEETE A FEE TR = F—PJF Tk e
acquisition is expected to complete in 2014.

it At the end of the reporting period, partial payments ji RIFLEHEK EFEFZTHARE
for the acquisition of land use rights in Qidong, the 55,820,0007T (1AE 19,155,000 7T ) (=
PRC, amounting to RMB55,820,000 (equivalent to F——14F AR 110561,000T (15%E
US$9,155,000) (2012: RMB110,561,000 (equivalent R 17,690,000 7T )) (E B AEA (7 R B
to US$17,590,000)) had been made by the Group, for FNRZ T H(E RSN (7 - A EEE
the development of new factories. The land use right IR - R=—F—=FF+=-FA=1—H "
certificates have not yet been obtained by the Group as EFIARERIRZ L (T FHHEGFE - WTH
at 31 December 2013 and expected to obtain in 2014. AR = F—UFEARZ

qe
26 INVENTORIES 26 FE
Group
At
2012
—E——F
US$'000
FE7T

Raw materials R R 135,128

Work in progress E&m 25,199

Finished goods BUAK 92,957

253,284

The entire carrying amounts of inventories as at R_E—=FR-_F——_F+_HA

31 December 2013 and 2012 are expected to be
recovered within the next twelve months.

204 singamas Container Holdings Limited + Annual Report 2013

=+ HNBEFEZREFEEIS A
E+—EARBIL -



27 TRADE RECEIVABLES 27 MEWERER
Group
AEE
2012
—E——4F
US$’000
FET
Trade receivables JE W BR 5K 182,445
Less: allowance for doubtful debts W RIEEREE (660)
Total trade receivables 4B eI ER 3R 181,785

A defined credit policy is maintained within the
Group. The general credit terms are agreed with
each of its trade customers depending on the
creditworthiness of the customers. The general
credit term ranges from 30 days to 120 days (2012:
30 days to 120 days).

The aged analysis of trade receivables net of
allowance for doubtful debts, which is prepared
based on invoice date of each transaction, which
approximated the respective revenue recognition
dates, at the end of the reporting period is as

AEECHE-—ERARZEERR -
EEH-—MRBBOREI120RTF(ZF
——%F: H30KREI120KRTEF)  RTF
BEEZEEME  AEEEZEFD 5
I E BRRE 2 E MG -

R & B R 2 8 YRR OB R I R 2R
(NEBRRZZHEFZAE - WHEIFE
WATER BHIEA) 2 BRie DT AT

follows:
2012
—E——F
US$'000
FET
0 to 30 days TEr=1+X 136,860
31 to 60 days =+t—EXTX 23,657
61 to 90 days AT—EATR 8,600
91 to 120 days At+t—=Z=—8=+X 6,391
Over 120 days —B T KRR E 6,277
181,785

The Group assessed the credit quality of trade
receivables based on historical default rates
and the creditworthiness of the customers. An
aggregate amount of US$178,440,000 was
subsequently settled.

AEBREFELSHBRAEREF 22
FEEUERZEEEZ - 86 H
178,440,000 = L E R B Uk E] -
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27 TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued) 27 BEWERF (&)
Included in the Group’s trade receivable balance AEERIE R 2 EWEREFSEELER
are debtors with aggregate carrying amount of F{EEA £16,804,000F L (— T ——
US$16,804,000 (2012: US$27,991,000) which F : 27,991,000 JT ) % H JE UK BR
are past due at the reporting date for which the K MAS BN &R EBERRIERE
Group has not provided for allowance. The Group FRER - NEEEZEHREEINEIRE
does not hold any collateral over these balances. Hm o ARBEEFHZERFZ2EEK
The Group has assessed the creditworthiness and [ESEHER R - @ BB R IERE A EUER
historical default rates of these customers, trade R BELHRERERRITREES S
receivables that are past due but not impaired EENL - Bt - EFRBHEELNE R
have very low historical default rates and have high K - S B ERIBARAEE -
credit-rating within the industry. In this regard, the
Directors considered that the default risk is low.
Accordingly, no allowance has been provided.
The aged analysis, based on invoice date of each BEERERENERER(AERR
transaction, of trade receivables which are past SHZBEZERFE) ZREATIT
due but not impaired is as follows: REREHZEBWOT -
2012
—E——4F
US$'000
FET
31 to 60 days =F+—ZEtXK 13,966
61 to 90 days ANT—EATR 6,378
91 to 120 days nt+—=2—8=+XK 2,954
Over 120 days —B=t+ARMNUE 4,693
27,991
Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts: REREEHEZEBIT -
2012
—E——4F
US$'000
FET
Balance at the beginning of the year ~ F )45 700
Provision for doubtful debts ERRBRER
recognised on receivables 22
Amounts written off as uncollectible LI eelkE 2 &8 62)
Balance at the end of the year FIREERR 660
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28

29

PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER 28 FEfTREMMEWIKIE
RECEIVABLES
As at 31 December 2013, prepayments and other RZE—=F+ZA=+—H " Bk
receivables included advanced of US$63,785,000 H th FE WK 1B B HE TR 63,785,000 € 7T
(2012: US$79,672,000) to certain suppliers (ZZF——%F : 79,672,000% L) TZXK
as deposits for raw materials purchases. The HEPERBERMIZE  KRELXE
remaining balance was mainly included refundable BETRIEET R R EMIENK - &K
value added tax and other advance payments. The HEHATRTZ@ARKE,ER -
entire amount is expected to be recovered/realised
within the next twelve months.
AMOUNT DUE FROM/TO ULTIMATE 29 [ Bt &&ERARKIE
HOLDING COMPANY
The general credit term for trade balances with BEERATNESEEEEH KRR
ultimate holding company is 30 days (2012: 30 OKR(ZE—ZF :30K) - AFEYL
days). No allowance on doubtful debts has been RBEREIRER -
provided during the year.
The aged analysis of amount due from ultimate RBEHAR 2 ZEEER AR FIB(AE
holding company, which is prepared based TRPHZEZHFE - WEAREKARE
on invoice date of each transaction, which REHEL) 2 BRI T
approximated the respective revenue recognition
dates, at the end of the reporting period is as
follows:
Group
AERE
2012
—E—_4F
US$’000
FET
0 to 30 days TE=+X 44
31 to 60 days =t—=xtXK 43
61 to 90 days ANT—EATK 3
90
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29

AMOUNT DUE FROM/TO ULTIMATE 29 J:W/J: TR %2Ry ENLE]
HOLDING COMPANY (Continued) &)
As at 31 December 2012, amount due from RZE—ZF+A=+—08" ' EK
ultimate holding company with aggregate REERARREBEEEHREEBESH
carrying amount of US$46,000 was past due at 46,0007 2 B EAE AR R - MAKE
the reporting date for which the Group has not I Rz EW AR RERERE - ~&E
provided for impairment loss. The Group does not HZERBENENRETRR - AEER
hold any collateral over these balances. The Group B L HR R R EBTEREIER AR
assessed the credit quality of the ultimate holding ZEEEE At EERAEHELR
company based on historical default rates and pfR - MIEIERERE -
the creditworthiness. In this regard, the Directors
considered that the default risk is low. Accordingly,
no impairment has been provided.
The aged analysis, based on invoice date of each 18 HR1E R VE R (B B FE IS AR AR A AR
transaction, of amount due from ultimate holding HABRRHZEZHHE) ZRKRD
company which are past due but not impaired is e -
as follows:
Group
AEE
2012
—E——F
US$’000
FET
31 to 60 days =t+t—EXTK 43
61 to 90 days AtTt—ZE=h+K 3
46
The amount due to ultimate holding company REE KRR B2 BN REELIERA R

of the Group and the Company was unsecured,
interest free and repayable on demand.
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30

AMOUNT DUE FROM FELLOW 30 EWREZMELRKIEA
SUBSIDIARIES
The general credit term for trade balances with RENBARINESEZEEER —KE
fellow subsidiaries is 30 days (2012: 30 days). No OAR(ZE—Z=F :30K) - AFEL
allowance on doubtful debts has been provided RBIERZIRERS o
during the year.
The aged analysis of amount due from fellow RS AR 2 & B R B A a5 E (A
subsidiaries, which is prepared based on invoice BRRH2EZAE - WEERKA
date of each transaction, which approximated the REEEL) < BREC DT T -
respective revenue recognition dates, at the end of
the reporting period is as follows:
Group
AERE
2012
—E—_4F
US$’000
FET
0 to 30 days TE=FX 300
31 to 60 days =t—=xtXK 145
61 to 90 days ANT—EATK 74
519

For the year ended 31 December 2013, amount
due from fellow subsidiaries with aggregate carrying
amount of US$275,000 (2012: US$219,000) was
past due at the reporting date for which the Group
has not provided for impairment loss. The Group
does not hold any collateral over these balances.
The Group assessed the credit quality of fellow
subsidiaries based on historical default rates and
the creditworthiness. In this regard, the Directors
considered that the default risk is low. Accordingly,
no impairment has been provided.

R-EBE—=%F+-A=+—08"El}k
AEMBARFEELSERAERS &
275,000 T (ZF — 4 : 219,000
TC) B EEWERE - MASEW &R
ZIEWERESIERERE - NEEHZE
FREENERETRR  c AREREEL
HBREREBTEERERARIZEER
B -Hit ESRAHENRRK -
A EAER R
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30 AMOUNT DUE FROM FELLOW 30

31

SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

The aged analysis, based on invoice date of each
transaction, of amount due from fellow subsidiaries
which are past due but not impaired is as follows:

BN [5) 2 it B8 2 B) R IR (4%

BHAB R VERE R B SR I IR A R AR
HUNEBRRGZHREHHE) 2RERD
T :

Group
AEHE
2012
—E——F
US$'000
FET

S EE VAR PR
AT—EALLX

31 to 60 days
61 to 90 days

145
74

219

BANK BALANCES AND CASH 31

Bank balances of the Group and the Company
carry interest at market rates which range from
0.01% to 5.3% (2012: 0.01% to 5.5%) and
0.01% to 5.3% (2012: 0.01% to 5%) per annum,
respectively.
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32

33

TRADE PAYABLES 32

The aged analysis, based on the invoice date of
each transaction, of trade payables at the end of
the reporting period is as follows:

BT BRFX

RBERR - BARRAERRHZ
HRBFE) ZREANWAT

Group

AERE
2012
—E——F
US$'000
FETT
0 to 30 days TE=1X 59,339
31 to 60 days =t+—ERTK 38,387
61 to 90 days AT—EATR 11,273
91 to 120 days At+—=Z=2—8B=+X 8,409
Over 120 days —BTARHUE 9,639
127,047

The average credit period on purchases of goods
is 57 (2012: 59) days. The Group has financial risk
management policies in place to ensure that all
payables are settled within the credit timeframe.

BILLS PAYABLE 33

The aged analysis of bills payable at the end of the
reporting period is as follows:

REBEM 2 FEHEERATR(ZE
——%F :50K) - £EEE #E € @A
PEHIBRR R REIR T N RS E = B HIRR
Iaq o

Bt R

RIEMR - BNREZERE ST
T

Group
A%H
2012
—E——4F
US$’000
FET

0 to 30 days TE=+XK

31 to 60 days =t—E=~tXK

61 to 90 days At—z=ht+X

91 to 120 days At+—FE—BZTX

49,973
37,120
27,873

3,983

118,949
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34

35

ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES

Accruals and other payables consisted of
advances from customers, provision of staff cost
and selling expenses and other accrued expenses
for the both year ended 2013 and 2012.

As at 31 December 2012, accruals and other
payables included deposits received on disposal
of subsidiaries, Leliu Wharf and Singamas Tank,
amounted to RMB316,525,000 (equivalent to
approximately US$50,419,000). Such disposal
transactions have been completed during the year
ended 31 December 2013 as detailed in note 44.

AMOUNTS DUE TO ASSOCIATES
AND JOINT VENTURES

The amounts due to associates and joint ventures
of the Group and the Company are unsecured,
interest free and repayable on demand. The
Directors expected the amounts will be repaid
within twelve months after the end of the reporting
period.
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34

35

FERTE A B H fth FE 4+ BR 5K

RZFE—=FERT—_FFREAD
BT ER REMENERBIEBRREN
o EEXNAREEEREE - RHAM
FEFTERA -

RZZE——F+-A=+—8 - E:t&
AR EAENARREED U E 2 KB
PR - RBRBMENERZZS
+ 8 A AR ¥316,525,0007T (HHER
#950,419,000%7T) - ZBHEXRFE
RBE-_Z—=F+_A=+—H&K
SERK L FF M AP 5E 44 ©

BHEEARRGELRMIEA

AEEBRARR 2 ENBERRREE
EEFAYBELRR REERRZE
BEERAH EFRHZFHERE
WEBARE T+ EAAWKRE, IS -



36 BANK BORROWINGS

36 RITEX

Group Company
Vi VN
2012 2012
T4 T
US$'000 Us$'000
FET T3
Bank borrowings comprise  SRITEREIE
the following:
Bank loans RITIER
Unsecured EiS A
— within 1 year - BR—FAEE 50,554 30,000
—more than 1 year, - BAREFRN
but not exceeding B8
2 years 30,000 30,000
—more than 2 years, -BRE=ZE
but not exceeding AENEE
5 years 67,500 67,500
148,054 127,500
Less: Amount due within ~ J& : ZBER—F R
one year shown BEWINRE
under current BEERZ
liabilities | (50,554) (30,000)
Amount due after one year BR—F4ERE
shown under VRIEREEE
non-current liabilities EHR T 97,500 97,500

On 24 September 2013, the Company entered
into a facility agreement with a syndicate of banks
in respect of a US$310 million term loan and
revolving credit facilities for a term of four years.
Repayments will commence on 24 September
2015 and continue until 24 September 2017. Only
US$124 million was drawn as at 31 December
2013.

NZEBE—=FAA=-+MA  KAFHA
—$RE T2 7 310,000,000 7t 2 7F HA
R ZEEEHZE - NS - AR
“E-RFENAZTHBERBRER  H
5::35 ‘tﬁﬂﬂ_+mani/ﬁ3§°
A AR EEEUT 124,000,000 %ﬁ%ﬁ%& °
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36 BANK BORROWINGS (continued)

All bank loans are unsecured and mainly carry
interest at either LIBOR or borrowing rate offered
by the People’s Bank of China plus certain basis
points and are repayable over a period range from
one to four years. Interest is repriced every one
to six months. The proceeds were largely used to
finance the working capital of the Group during the
year.

The ranges of effective annual interest rates for the
year 2013 on the Group’s and the Company’s bank
borrowings were 0.76% to 6.55% (2012: 0.76%
to 7.28%) and 2.07% to 2.22% (2012: 2.15% to
2.42%) respectively.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s
bank borrowings that are denominated in
currencies other than the functional currencies of
the relevant group entity are set out below:

36

SRITER (&)

FIERITERDEERERL EE R
HRITREFEIFERARBITAMZ
BHRMENEFTEEMTE AR
N BRRHER—ENF - FESE
—ZEXEAABIEE - EXFIETERAE
AEERFERBESHS °

RZZE—=F  AEERARAIRT
BRZBEHERED R A076%E
6.55% (- F— —F : 0.76% £ 7.28%)
K2.07% E2.22%(—F——4 : 2.15%
Z£2.42%) o

RBEMKR - AEE 2 BRERIAEYD
RREBEEZRITETNOT

Group
AEHE
2012
—ET——F
US$'000
FET
RMB AR 8,575
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37

38

NOTES 37 EiE
On 14 April 2011, the Company issued a RZE——FWEA+TAE - NARE
three-year RMB1,380,000,000 (equivalent to 77 —HEE A A R%1,380,000,000 7T
approximately US$210,600,000) notes that will (}E R %7210,600,000 % 7T ) H) = 4F £f
mature on 14 April 2014 (the “Notes”). Accordingly, FE - BRZZT—UFMA+HA S
the Notes was reclassified as current liability during (I&RE]) - At - EBEERFAERN
the year. The Notes was denominated and settled PEERBEE ZEBAARKEGE
in RMB, and borne coupon at 4.75% per annum MEE  FEBXRBLT5%  BEEY
payable semi-annually in arrears. The Notes were RES - ZEBTERHRER  EAX
unsecured and carried effective interest rate of FHMZEF516% o NARIA] AW IR H
5.16% per annum. The Notes may be redeemed BEURE REFTRERNONERE
in whole but not in part at the Company’s option BOZEB22E - BTEBEEED
for taxation reason at their principal amount with FFRFEAEERZ101% 2 XS ERE
accrued but unpaid interest or at the holders’ FHRERN T ST SIS -
option for change of control at 101% of their
principal amount, together with accrued interest.
The Notes are listed on the Singapore Exchange ZEBRFAINBEELSRZF LM o &
Securities Trading Limited. The fair value of the ZEZE-=FFTA=T—HIL %
Notes as at 31 December 2013 was estimated EBUZBURTERERZAARE
at approximately RMB1,380,648,600 (equivalent 18 & 51 89 & A K %1,380,648,600 7T
to US$226,451,000) (2012: RMB1,363,730,000 (A% 11 226,451,000F L) (ZF—=
(equivalent to US$216,964,000)), which was F: AR ¥1,363,730,000 7T ( 18 & R
determined based on the closing market price of 216,964,000 7T) ) °
the Notes at that date.
DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL 38 EEAHHMIANITEEMT
INSTRUMENTS DESIGNATED AS =
HEDGING INSTRUMENTS
2012
—EF—_F
US$'000
FET
Cash flow hedges - exchange rate WEmEBHEH - EX
swaps assets (liabilities) EHEE(BE) (8,962)

In order to minimise the Group’s and the
Company’s exposure to the exchange rate risk of
the Notes, which was denominated in RMB, the
Company entered into two exchange rate swaps
to fix the payment of the principal and interest of
the Notes at a fixed forward exchange rate.

AT RIEAA R E BRI REM 5l 2K
SERARRHHNELRER - AAF]
IS TMONEREHEH  UEERE
XNZEBENAE R SHER -
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38 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS DESIGNATED AS

38 EEAMHMITEMNTESMT

HEDGING INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

The exchange rate swaps and the corresponding
Notes had the equivalent settlement periods and
the Directors considered that the exchange rate
swaps were highly effective hedging instruments.

H#)

Sl =

ALEREHE NN ERZEE B —
B BEERRREXEHRENRSER
MEER T A - EMHR_F—
ATV EE =15 B & 40 R B AR R &Y iR

—F%

Major terms of the two exchange rate swaps S

entered in 2011 were the same and were set out

below:

Total notional amount

of the swaps Maturity Forward rate Total hedged item

HEMARREH BB EHEX BEMER

(Note)

(Hiit)

RMB32,864,000 13 October 2011 RMB6.15 to US$1 For coupon payments

AR 32,864,0007C “Z——%tAt=A ARK61BRLH1ET FENES

RMB33,224,000 13 April 2012 RMB6.15 to US$1 For coupon payments

AR¥33,224,0007 “T-"H5PMA+t=A ARK61RTHIET FENE

RMB32,686,000 12 October 2012 RMB6.15 to US$1 For coupon payments

AR 32,686,0007T “EZFTATZR  AR¥61THIET EEME

RMB32,686,000 12 April 2013 RMB6.15 to US$1 For coupon payments

AR 32,686,0007T “E=FOATZA AR¥615THIET ZEBME

RMB32,864,000 11 October 2013 RMB6.15 to US$1 For coupon payments

ARH 32,864,000 7 “E-=FtAt—R ARK61STHIETL FEME

RMB1,412,506,000 11 April 2014 RMB6.15 to US$1 For Notes principal of RMB1,380,000,000
and coupon payments of RMB32,506,000

AE#1,412506000 —T-WEMA+—H AR¥6.15TH1EL FEAEAREK1,380,000,0007

Note:

As at 31 December 2013, total notional amount

of the swaps was RMB1,412,506,000 (2012:
RMB1,478,056,000) in aggregate for the two exchange

rate swaps.
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DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL 38 EEAR ET/':PI R fTE & T

INSTRUMENTS DESIGNATED AS H (&

HEDGING INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the HE_ZT—=F+_A=+—HI £
gain on changes in fair value of the exchange RESREBHHANERIERAEHNMES
rate swaps under cash flow hedge amounting VA BB F A12,009,000E 7T (=
to US$12,009,000 (2012: US$3,166,000) has T — 4 :3,166,000%7T) © B REA
been recognised in other comprehensive income FHEWEPER - HH8,079,000% T
of which the fair value gain of the hedging —T— 4 : 2,427,000 7T ) B ¥
instruments amounting to US$8,079,000 (2012: TAEZAREBERANEREFIEEZE

US$2,427,000) were reclassified from hedge %E SRR E R HﬁvEEﬁ/‘:FfE%fﬁiﬁ@ﬁ
reserve to profit or loss in the same period when DEEEERE °

the hedged items affect profit or loss and upon the
settlement of coupon payment.

As at 31 December 2013, since the hedging AREATESR - —MFm A3
instruments will be matured in April 2014, the B HEEEER-_Z—=F1+=A
carrying amounts of which were reclassified to =+ BREFSEERHEE -
current assets, accordingly.
SHARE CAPITAL 39 B
Number of shares Share Capital
BRir& R BA
2012 2012 2012
“T——F “F-—F —“F-_F
Us$'000 HK$'000
TEn T
Ordinary shares of LaREhEE
HK$0.10 each 01077
Authorised: ETE -
At beginning of the year ENREL
and at end of the year 3,000,000,000 38,649 300,000
Issued and fully paid: BERTRAER -
At beginning of the year 1) 2,417,833,300 31,151 241,783
Exercise of share options (Note) T RARIE (#/2) 2,317,692 30 232
At end of the year ER 2,420,150,992 31,181 242,015
Note: Kt
During the year, the Company issued and allotted 268,926 RERA - FiTERERE - AREFETRAL T &
(2012: 2,317,692) ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each upon fR0.1087T,2268,926/)% (= F——4 : 2,317,692
exercise of share options. The exercise prices of the share &) ZiFfR o F#fﬁrﬂfﬂ?ﬁﬁe‘féZﬁ@Eﬁ%@
options ranged from HK$1.38 to HK$1.48 per share (2012: B8 1.38F 7= 1.48%F L (= —F T ER
ranged from HK$1.38 to HK$1.48 per share). The new ordinary 1.88 82 1.488T) ° i‘ﬁf“'ﬁ/ﬁz GEAR L EHE
shares rank pari passu with the then existing shares in all RIGIES T EEZ 6 FIZHEF -
respects.
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SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

The Company’s share option scheme (the
“Scheme”), was adopted pursuant to a resolution
passed on 1 June 2007 for the primary purpose
of providing incentives to Directors and eligible
employees of the Group, and may be terminated
by resolution in general meeting. Under the
Scheme, the Directors may grant options to
qualifying grantees, including employees or
directors of the Company and/or the Group.

At 31 December 2013, the number of shares in
respect of which options had been granted and
remained outstanding under the Scheme was
17,882,000 (2012: 24,990,000), representing
approximately 0.73% (2012: 1.083%) of the shares
of the Company in issue at that date. The total
number of shares in respect of which options may
be granted under the Scheme is not permitted
to exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in
issue on the adoption date, without prior approval
from the Company’s shareholders. The number
of shares issued and to be issued in respect of
which options granted and may be granted to
any individual in any one year is not permitted
to exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in
issue on the offer date without prior approval from
the Company’s shareholders. Options granted
to substantial shareholders or independent non-
executive Directors in excess of 0.1% of the
Company’s share capital or with a value in excess
of HK$5 million must be approved in advance by
the Company’s shareholders.

Options granted must be taken up within 28 days
from the date of offer. An aggregate of HK$1 is
payable by each qualifying grantee on acceptance
of the offer. Options may be exercised within the
option period (must not exceed 10 years from
the date of grant of the relevant option) which
shall be determined by the Board in its absolute
discretion at the time of grant. The exercise price
is determined by the Directors, and will not be
less than the higher of (i) the closing price of the
Company’s shares on the date of grant; (ii) the
average closing price of the shares for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of
grant; and (i) the nominal value of the Company’s
share.
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SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

Share options of 7,170,000 underlying shares were
granted on 1 July 2010 at the exercise price of
HK$1.38.

Share options of 8,860,000 underlying shares were
granted on 6 August 2008 at the initial exercise
price of HK$1.93 and adjusted to HK$1.48.

Share options of 20,300,000 underlying shares
were granted on 28 June 2007 at the initial
exercise price of HK$5.14 and adjusted to
HK$3.93.

Details are as follows:

40

LB 3 (49)

RZZE—ZF+H—HKXKHE 7,170,000
PITIEE 1.38 B T 2 1HRABARHE -

RZZZT)\F )\ A7X B & H 8,860,000
MR ITEES1.93E T ZHEER
- HITEERRARE 1488 °

RZEEZEELF A+ NBERHE
20,300,000 #2a1 T{E B A& 5.14 B2
FERERENLHE - HIT(E BB FAEE3.93
I e

ST -

Number of options

HBREYE

Vesting period
BE 7 A

Exercisable period

1TIEHAE

Option granted on 28 June 2007:
RZTZE+FRNA T N\BELOERE

6,766,666

6,766,667

6,766,667

Option granted on 6 August 2008:
RZZZENFEN\RNB RO HEAE :

2,958,333

2,963,333

2,953,334

Option granted on 1 July 2010:
RZZE—TF+t A —BREAERE

2,390,000

2,390,000

2,390,000

28 June 2007 to 27 June 2008
e AV iy AN =
—ZEZENFEASA=FtEH

28 June 2007 to 27 June 2009
ZEEEFAAZFTNRE
—ETNFSNA=Z++AR

28 June 2007 to 27 June 2010
—EEEFAAZFTNARE
I AV I =

6 August 2008 to 5 August 2009
—ZETNFN\ARBE
—ZEThFE/N\ARH

6 August 2008 to 5 August 2010
—TENFNARBE
—Z—ZF)\ARH

6 August 2008 to 5 August 2011
—TENFNARBE
—Z——%)/\AAA

1 July 2010 to 30 June 2011
—Z—TF+A—HZE
—T——FA=1H

1 July 2010 to 30 June 2012
—Z—ZTF+A—HZE
—T——FA=1H

1 July 2010 to 30 June 2013
—T-FFLA—AE
—E—=FXA=1H

TE-CZHEER - BWEELEFRAA 219

28 June 2008 to 27 June 2017
—EENFARAZFTNBE
—E— ARt A

28 June 2009 to 27 June 2017
ZEENFEANAZFTNRE
—T—+FRA=++A

28 June 2010 to 27 June 2017
—E-FFERA-T/NRBE
—E—+FRA=t++A

6 August 2009 to 5 August 2018
—EThFNASRBE
—Z-N\FE/\ARH

6 August 2010 to 5 August 2018
—T-TF/\ARAZE
—Z-N\FE/\ARH

6 August 2011 to 5 August 2018
—T—F\ARAZE
—ZT—-)\F/\AEH

1 July 2011 to 30 June 2020
—T—FtA—HE
—E-TFARNA=TH

1 July 2012 to 30 June 2020

—T——Ft+tA—HZE
—EEFSA=1+H

1 July 20183 to 30 June 2020

—T—=FtA—HZE
ZETFNA=TH




40 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued) 40 IABZX3Z (&)

2013 —F-Z=F
The following table discloses the Company’s share TRERRES (BIEES) MFEAARE
options held by employees (including Directors): IR 2 5F15
Outstanding at Granted Exercised Forfeited Outstanding at
1 January Reclassification during during during 31 December
2013 adjustment the year the year the year 2013
RIE-Zf R-F-Zf
—-A-H RER +ZA=+-A
WR{THE HERE EREH ER T Rl HR{THE
'000 '000 '000 '000 '000 '000
(Note)
(Hit)
Directors EZ
Employees (8
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SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued) 40

The following table discloses the movements of
the Company’s share options by the vesting period

during the year.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BA#5# &M at

Granted on 28 June 2007: RIBRLERAZT\BRL
~ with vesting period of B e I s

28 June 2007 to ~AZTNBE

27 June 2008 “ER\F/A-THR
~ with vesting period of B e I s

28 June 2007 to ~AZTNBE

27 June 2009 “ERNERACTLR
~ with vesting period of B e I s

28 June 2007 to ~AZTNBE

27 June 2010 “E2-TESACTHA
Granted on 6 August 2008; RZZENE\ARBEL
- with vesting period of -HEER=TT\&

6 August 2008 to NBRAZ

5 August 2009 ZEINEN\ARR
- with vesting period of -HEER=TT\&

6 August 2008 to NBRAZ

5 August 2010 “E-SE/\ARA
- with vesting period of -HEER=TT\&

6 August 2008 to NBRAZ

5 August 2011 —E—%/\ARA
Granted on 1 July 2010: REF-FELA-ARL:
- with vesting period of -JEER=T-%F

1July 2010 to tA-A%Z

30 June 2011 “E-—%5A=1H
- with vesting period of -FEER=T-%F

1July 2010 to tA-AZ

30 June 2012 Z3-Z5RA=1R
- with vesting period of -JEER=T-%F

1July 2010 to tA-A%Z

30 June 2013 Y
Exercisable at the end RERA TR

of the year
Weighted average exercise price  MET {71 (E
(HKS) (#7)

ARz ()

FRBE :
Outstanding Granted Exercised
1 January during during
2013 the year the year

RZE-Z%

—-A-H
HETHE ERRY ENITHE
'000 000 '000

Forfeited
during
the year

RERN
#ak

'000
(Note)
(Hit)

(1,916)

(1,916)

(1,917)

(200

(574)
(6,839)

TRABEMRFFREARRBEREL

Outstanding
31 December
2013
RZ5-Zf
+ZA=1-H
i RATHE

- BWEBESEARAR 221




40 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued) 40

2012

The following table discloses the Company’s share
options held by employees (including Directors):

ABRIRZ (#)
T F

TEREERE (BRESR) K ARAB
P2 715

QOutstanding at Granted Exercised Forfeited  Qutstanding at
1 January - Reclassification during during during 31 December
2012 adjustment the year the year the year 2012
RIF-Z% RZF-_%F
—-A-R RER +=A=+-A
HATTE HEHRE ERE FRTE RN WAL
'000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000
(Note)
(Wit
Directors EH 17,607 4,574 - (1,735) (1,568) 18,878
Employees (8 14,810 (4,574) - (689) (3,541) 6,12
32,417 = = (2,318) (6,109) 24,990
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SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

AR K3 ()

The following table discloses the movements of TRUBREHRFRERRREREZ
the Company’s share options by the vesting period FAEE :
during the year.
QOutstanding Granted Exercised Forfeited QOutstanding
1 January during during during 31 December
2012 the year the year the year 2012
R-F——% \ R-E—_F
-A-A ) NER +-A=t-H
BALT ER& Ml il RAITE
'000 '000 '000 '000 '000
(Note)
(Hit)
Granted on 28 June 2007: RIFELERAZH\RRL :
- with vesting period of i e s
28 June 2007 to ~NAZTNRZE
27 June 2008 “ZZ/\EAAZTLA 7,926 - = (1,394) 6,532
- vith vesting period of -BERA-TRLE
28 June 2007 to ~NAZTNAZE
27 June 2009 e L e: 792 - - (1,394) 653
- vith vesting period of -FERA-TRE
28 June 2007 to ~NAZTNAE
27 June 2010 “T-FEAACTA 798 - - (1,399) 6,53
Granted on 6 August 2008; RZZENE\ARBRL :
~ with vesting period of -HEHHE=SEN\E
6 August 2008 to NRRRZE
5 August 2009 “TRNE/\ARA 238 - @) 29) 174
— with vesting period of -BEHE-SENE
6 August 2008 to NARBE
5 August 2010 “2-Z%)\AAA 291 - (41) (24) 226
— with vesting period of -BEHE-SENE
6 August 2008 to NARBZE
5 August 2011 —“2—%\AAA 2,875 - (1,601) (269) 1,006
Granted on 1 July 2010: RZE-SFLA-ARM :
- with vesting period of -BESa=-3-5F
1July 201010 tA-AZ
30 June 2011 “E——%5XA=1H 641 - (261) ) 374
~ with vesting period of -HiEHa=-5-2F
1.y 200 to tA-B%
30 June 2012 “E-CERA=1H 2,007 - (374) (303) 1620
~ with vesting period of -HiEHBE-5-2F
1 July 2010 o tA—B%
30 June 2013 —2—=%xA=1H 2,297 - - (303) 1,994
2417 - 2319 5.109) 24,990
Exercisable at the end RELF TR
of the year 27,823 22,9%
Weighted average exercise price ~ JIEFS/T(E(E
(HKS) (1) 326 - 1.45 347 3.39
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SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

Note:

The forfeiture represented the share options granted to the
eligible Directors and employees of the Group, which were
forfeited upon their resignations in both years.

In respect of the share options exercised, the
weighted average share price at the dates of
exercise is HK$1.82 (2012: HK$1.95).

For the share options granted on 1 July 2010, the
fair value of the options determined at the date
of grant using the Binomial option pricing model
ranged from HK$0.61 to HK$0.81.

The following assumptions were used to calculate
the fair values of share options granted on 1 July
2010:

Closing share price at the date of grant HK$1.54
Exercise price HK$1.38
Option life 10 years
Expected volatility 65%
Semi-annual dividend yield 1.7%
Risk-free interest rate 2.29%

For the share options granted on 6 August 2008,
the fair value of the options determined at the date
of grant using the Binomial option pricing model
ranged from HK$0.53 to HK$0.72.

The following assumptions were used to calculate
the fair values of share options granted on 6
August 2008:

Closing share price at the date of grant HK$1.83
Exercise price HK$1.93
Option life 10 years
Expected volatility 45%
Semi-annual dividend yield 2.8%
Risk-free interest rate 3.55%

For the share options granted on 28 June 2007,
the fair value of the options determined at the date
of grant using the Binomial option pricing model
ranged from HK$1.62 to HK$2.52.
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SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continuved) 40 WABZIR3Z (&)
The following assumptions were used to calculate RZZEZLF A T\BRENER
the fair values of share options granted on 28 June BZAREBENMBEBEATNTREREEE
2007: T
Closing share price at the date of grant HK$5.25 R BB R (E 5.25 77T
Exercise price HK$5.14 1TE(E 51477
Option life 10 years fERE 2 BRUR 104
Expected volatility 48% TR 1@ 48%
Semi-annual dividend yield 1% FEEREX 1%
Risk-free interest rate 4.78% EEBEX 4.78%
Immediate after the rights issue became EER_TTNFHEEREERIE
unconditional in 2009, adjustments were made to RIRREARERT B B A RIBE M ARTT
the exercise price and the number of outstanding FERENITEERBEEELH
share options to subscribe for shares granted o
pursuant to the share option scheme.
The following table sets out the adjustments on the TR EREAENR _ZEZNFZFE
share option scheme in 2009: ¥
Before adjustments After adjustments
AEH %
Exercise Exercise
price of Number of price of Number of
each option share options  each option share options
BERE BERE
Date of grant REAH TiEE ERENE THEE EREXHE
(HKS) (HK$)
(&) (A7)
28 June 2007 R-FE+FA-1+N\R 514 18,400,000 3.93 24,039,600
6 August 2008 RZFTZN\E/\H"A 1.93 8,740,000 1.48 11,418,810
Total number of options ~ EERREMEE 27,140,000 35,458,410

The Binomial option pricing model has been used
to estimate the fair values of the options. The
variables and assumptions used in computing the
fair values of the share options are based on the
Directors’ best estimate. The value of an option
varies with different variables of certain subjective
assumptions.

Share option expense of US$34,000 (2012:
US$129,000) was recognised for the year ended
31 December 2013.

BlEz AR BECEA ZBAHREE
EBERAETE - RABEQAEERERD
HBHEMBRIRBES CRAERE -

IR LT BRER - RIBREZEE
etk Mk g -

BAREYH A34,00ET(ZE—=
F:129,000E( L) ER_E—=F
+ZA=+—BItEERER -

TE-CZEFR - BREBECEARAA
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41 RESERVES 41 s

Share Share option Hedge Accumulated
premium reserve reserve profits Total
Company Y /NG| BhiEE BRERE Hihfis 25t BH k]

US$'000 US§'000 US$'000 US§'000 US$'000
Txn TET TET TET TET

At 1 January 2012 RZE——F—H—H 236,315 5,706 (4,669) 19,076 256,428
Profit for the year KER M - - - 54,306 54,306
Fair value adjustments on BEERASMEL R

forward contracts designated ~ RHIALNN DA BEEAR

as cash flow hedges - - 3,166 - 3,166
Reclassification of fair value AR EERN R

gain from hedge reserve ER ey o

to profit or loss = = (2,427) = (2,427

236,315 5,706 (3,930) 73,382 311,473

Exercise of share options Gedtie 582 (178) = = 404
Recognition of equity-settled ERARA S 2 R EE

share-based payments - 129 - - 129
Transfer from share option REREREERE 25

reserves to accumulated S 2 08 s A

profits for forfeited options - (933) = 933 =
Dividend paid to the owners SIRARRRERS

of the Company - - - (28,060) (28,060)
At 31 December 2012 RZE——F+-A=+—H 236,897 4,724 (3,930) 46,255 283,946
Profit for the year AEZRF - - - 16,854 16,854
Fair value adjustments on WETAHSRELH

forward contracts designated  RERANM AL BEFAR

as cash flow hedges - - 12,009 - 12,009
Reclassification of fair value A BERTEEPRE

gain from hedge reserve ER Y b

to profit or loss - - (8,079) - (8,079

236,897 4,724 - 63,109 304,730

Exercise of share options TIEERRE 67 (22) - - 45
Recognition of equity-settled BAURR S 2R EE

share-based payments - 34 - - 34
Transfer from share option BEREFEERE R

reserves to accumulated A BRI AR

profits for forfeited options - (1,316) - 1,316 -
Dividend paid to the owners SRR RRRBE

of the Company - - - (15,604) (15,604)
At 31 December 2013 R-F—=#+"HA=+—H 236,964 3,420 - 48,821 289,205
Distributable reserves of the Company at 31 BREBEEBRUEFIE 7B IKFTE - AR
December 2013, calculated under section 79B of ARZE—=F+-A=+—HA#n
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, amounted K 2 R 548,821,000k L (—Z T — =
to US$48,821,000 (2012: US$46,255,000). T 46,255,00037T) °
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42 DETAILS OF NON-WHOLLY 42 HEEARFERIREEZZIE

OWNED SUBSIDIARIES THAT HAVE BB EIFFE
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING

INTERESTS

The table below shows details of non-wholly- TRERAEB A BRI AR E
owned subsidiaries of the Group that have material mZIEEEMBARIRGS -

non-controlling interests:

Proportion of
ownership interests
and voting Profit (loss)
Place of rights held by allocated to Accumulated
Name incorporation/ non-controlling non-controlling non-controlling
of subsidiary registration interests interests interests
kERRFER 8 (BR)
HENRER NEEFER AR
WELARER AL/ & it FRELLD) EL 521 EY 5
2012 2012 2012
—T-——F —E—F —E-——F
US$'000 US§'000
THx TAT
Hui Zhou Pacific Container Co., Ltd. PRC 9.0% 1,301 6,305
BMNATEBARAA i
Shanghai Baoshan Pacific Container PRC 26.0% 4,031 18,952
Co., Ltd. w
FERIATERERAR]
Shanghai Pacffic International Container PRC 40.0% 167 15,314
Co., Ltd. w
FEATERERARAR
Shanghai Regferco Container Co., Lid. PRC 9.1% 1,705 5,191
LaBER R RERARAR i
Summarised financial information in respect of ATER T ARE B R EARIEERRR
each of the Group’s subsidiaries that has material EmZIEEENBRARZMEERE
non-controlling interests is set out below. The o NMBERBERREBRFE
summarised financial information below represents SHRl 2 &% °

amounts before intragroup eliminations.
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of the Company 67,837 [GENGL 67,369
Non-controling interests SRR 6,709 6,305 20,547

Revenue B8 219910 WERVZGTAN 176,767 NG
Expenses i PUGREE (160,236) | 0L (240250)
Proft (oss) for the year TEERH(B8) 13,544 14,461 6,137 15,505

Proft (oss) attributable to owners A AJfREE(
of the Company 7 (B8 4 4542 11474

Profit (osg) attroutable tothe  JEERERIER B
non-controling Interests aH (B18) : 1,595
Proft loss) for the year TERRT(BR) 6,137

Other comprehensiveincome AR TRREN
attrbutable to owners Eh2EE
of the Company

Other comprehensiveincome. ~ sFETRIRRIES
attioutable to the iR M 2ENE
non-controlling interests

Other comprehensive income~~~ FAEM2ERE
for the year

Total comprehensive income ARAREEERE
(expense) aftrbutable to Wi (B18) 6%
owners of the Company ) 13,160
Total comprehensive income SR RER
(expense) aftributable o Elb2EkE
the non-controling interests (Eig) 2% 1219 1301 1,505

Total comprehensive income ERZENE
(expense) for the year ()2 13,544 14,461 6,137 15,

Dividends paid to ERFERER
non-controling interests ERRE 815 952 - 155
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Shanghai Pacific
International
Container Co., Ltd
LEATRBER

ARAF

20449
14,009
61315
(61,353)

(%)

31,273
15,314
35,970
185,352)

8

Shanghai Reeferco
Container Co., Ltd

LEplReE

ARAF

50,470
5,949

127,609
(119,270)
8,339

7,581

758

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B4 %5 $R % B
42 DETAILS OF NON-WHOLLY 42 EEEXRIEERREEDZZIE
OWNED SUBSIDIARIES THAT HAVE =EWB A RE &)
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING
INTERESTS (Continued)
Shanghai Baoshan i Pacifi
Hui Zhou Pacific Container Pacific Container i i
Co., Ltd. Co., Ltd. i , Ltd. i , Ltd.
EATER LEEUATER BATEY ;
ERAR ERAR N N
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
St T Bl T £ Bl T Eablli T fF
U000 USS000 | UEEIGNE  US§I000 | AN US§000 | ERNE  US$000
Txg ¢ T2g Tié T£4 Tié T£& T8
Curtent assets THEE 130,805 [RR[PZUM 103,546 , 37,752 45,987 92,773 85,695
Non-current assets ERBEE 31,470 31,151 14,018 , 28,262 29,003 10,834 11,422
Current liabiities L (67,819) EEMGRIM  (29,648) PRRCEE (08403 | REREEE (40,087)
Eauity attributable to owners ARAREEGER

51,889
5,191

202814
(184,060)
18,754

17,049

1,705

17,049



43 DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 43
Group

The following are the major deferred tax
assets (liabilities) recognised by the Group and
movements thereon during the current and prior

EERERE
AEHE
EBEAAFERAFERAEERR

AEERIBEE (AE)ER REZEH
T

years:
Accelerated
tax Undistributed Other
depreciation profits assets Total
MEFE KOE
ZHE i HinEE B8
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
TER TER TEn TER
At 1 January 2012 RZE——F—Ff—H 333 (4,569) (334) (4,570)
Chargetoprofitorloss Bt AXH (#i#14)

(Note 14) - (3,734) - (3,734)
At 31 December 2012 RZE——F+ZA=1—H 333 (8,303) (334) (8,304)
(Charge) credit to profit Bt A (i) K& (A7 14)

or loss (Note 14) (36) 712 - 676
At 31 December 2013 WRZFE—Z=F+"A=+—H 297 (7,591) (334) (7,628)

Under the Enterprise Income Tax Law of PRC,
withholding tax is imposed on dividends declared
in respect of profits earned by PRC subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures from 1 January 2008
onwards. Deferred tax credit of US$712,000 (2012:
charge of US$3,734,000) on the undistributed
earnings of PRC subsidiaries, associates and
joint ventures has been credited/charged to the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income
for the year ended 31 December 2013.

BEFRCEMGHE PEEBA
A BENRRABLEE ST NF
— A —BREERAENBRAKRER
712,000 T2 BB IER R (ZF—=
F:3,734,000E LX) EFFAZE
— =+ - A=+—HILFEERHEA
FEBAR  BEATREERER
IR A 2 BT B S, S e
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43

44

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES
(Continued)

Group (Continued)

At 31 December 2013, the Group has unused tax
losses of US$82,197,000 (2012: US$65,338,000)
available for offset against future taxable profits.
No tax losses has been recognised as deferred tax
assets due to the uncertainty of its recoverability.
Included in unrecognised tax losses are losses of
US$4,046,000, US$345,000, US$2,984,000 and
US$4,703,000 that will expire in 2014, 2016, 2017
and 2018 (2012: US$4,763,000, US$345,000 and
US$6,503,000 that will expire in 2014, 2016 and
2017), respectively. Other losses may be carried
forward indefinitely.

At 31 December 2013, the Group does not have
any deductible temporary differences (2012:
US$680,000). No deferred tax asset in relation to
such deductible temporary difference had been
recognised.

DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

On 16 October 2012, each of the Company and
Singamas Terminals (China) Limited, a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into
a share transfer agreement with Foshan Shunde
Chuangjian Investment Co., Ltd., a company
established in the PRC with common substantial
shareholder with Guangdong Fuwa Machinery,
a company established in the PRC which is
currently holding 41% equity interest in Leliu
Wharf, to dispose of their respective 40% and 19%
equity interest of Leliu Wharf at a consideration
of RMB98,310,000 and RMB46,690,000
(equivalent to US$15,660,000 and US$7,437,000)
respectively. The transaction was completed in
February 2013.
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EEHEABR S

rEB (@)

RZE—Z=F+"A=+—0 ' &%
& 15 A A% A B 18 5 18.82,197,000 %
JTL(=—Z— — % : 65,338,000% JT) A]
HAETRBE ZEBGEF o BRAREE
ErEEAKE Y - BMEFERBELER
HEEMBIEEBE - TAREERHE
518 M 4,046,000 7T * 345,000 7T
2,984,0003 T & 4,703,000 T ( = &
—4F : 4,763,000t * 345,000 7T
6,503,000 L7 BN =T —MHF -
TE-RFEZE—EFHH) AR
—E-OF - ZE—RF T —+F
RZZT—N\FRH - EepE1ERI R &R
HAfE AR o

R-ZZTE—=F+_A=+—H ' Kx&H
WEREERERERE(ZE——F ¢
680,000 7T) © WK ERERFERY
KRERBELERBEE -

HE M B LA
R-ZB——F+A+XE ARAR

H 2 & K B A A)-Singamas Terminals
(China) Limited % B £2 ¢ 1L T E{E (& &)
BEREERAE (ERFR B EE

EEMA - —RER AP RIS
RBMN BB AT A A EHER—
FERFR) B -BEREEEHE -
2 AIA A R #98,310,000 7t &2 A R #&
46,690,000 7T (#8514 15,660,000 € 7T
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44 DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

On the same date, the Company entered into a
share transfer agreement with Guangdong Fuwa
Machinery to dispose of its 100% equity interest
of Singamas Tank for a cash consideration of
RMB171,525,000 (equivalent to US$27,322,000).
The transaction was completed in February 2013.

On 31 May 2013, the Company entered into a
share transfer agreement with Foshan Shunde
Kanghong Investment Co., Ltd., a company
established in the PRC, to dispose of the
Company’s 100% equity interest in Guangdong
Shun An Da for a cash consideration of

a4

HEM B LA (&)

REH AAREERSERWMS

FI—IEREEZEGE UARE

171,525,000 7t ( #8 & 727,322,000 3

TR EREBHEENBEMEXEE

100% 2 R AR WRHERZE
—=F AKX °

R_ZE—=FFA=+—H KRARHE
HBLUMEEREREERBRAA (—M
KBRS AR R —HR RS R
% LA A R ¥ 160,000,000 7T ( #8 &
725,895,000k 7T ) HE AR R RIRER
EZ23ZH) 100% IR AN fE % o LR B ER

RMB160,000,000 (equivalent to US$25,895,000). “E=FN\HEK -
The transaction was completed in August 2013.
The net assets of Leliu Wharf, Singamas Tank and P BREXEBERERIERZER
Guangdong Shun An Da at the date of disposal HEAMNEEFENT -
were as follows:
Analysis of assets and liabilities over which KEEFENEEMEEDH
control was lost:
Guangdong
Leliu Wharf Singamas Tank  Shun An Da Total
BinE  BEWEAEE BRIERE A&t
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
TEn TET TEn FET
Property, plant MmE - BEREE
and equipment 12,265 6,636 19,089 37,990
Prepaid lease payments BNEETR 10,246 4,520 12,858 27,624
Inventories RE 114 4,233 - 4,347
Trade receivables FEIRR K 1,035 8,129 18 9,182
Prepayments and BN REMERE
other receivables 4,793 2,190 3 6,986
Tax recoverable A igm 2 HiE - - 244 244
Bank balances RITHEBRRRS
and cash 10,640 2,210 408 13,258
Trade payables TR - (37) (261) (298)
Accruals and FEst & A R EAM
other payables R AR 917) (6,894) (9,921) (17,732)
Tax payable FERTIE (128) (1) - (129)
Net assets disposed of HEZBEFE 38,048 20,986 22,438 81,472

—m=EER
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44 DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 4 HEMBLRR @)

(Continued)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries: HEMB AR 2 aF -
Guangdong
Leliu Wharf Singamas Tank  Shun An Da Total
BinE  BEELLE ERIERE CE
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
TER TER TEn TEL
Consideration (Note) RE (Hzt) 23,007 27,322 25,895 76,314
Net assets disposed of HEZEEFE (38,048) (20,986) (22,438) (81,472)
Non-controlling interests IR AR R A 15,603 - - 15,603
Cumulative exchange MEBRRIEEFEM
difference in respect of EXNZRELESR
the net assets of the NN YN P
subsidiaries reclassified R R E T
from equity to profit or NEEER
loss upon loss of control
of the subsidiary 4,462 - - 4,462
Gain on disposal HEWE (BFTA
(included in other income) ~ EAUTA) 5,114 6,336 3,457 14,907
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEMBARZFRERNA !
Cash consideration EREWHRERE
received during the year - - 25,895 25,895
Bank balances and HECRTEHREES
cash disposed of (10,640) (2,210) (408) (13,258)
(10,640 2,210) 25,487 12,637
Note: The cash consideration in respect of disposal of Leliu Hiet - HEETERENEXSEZ HLEBE
Wharf and Singamas Tank was received in 2012 RN ——Fife] - R E——F |
and had been accounted for as deposits received in H="1—HIFEFAFRIZLF -

advance for the year ended 31 December 2012.
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45 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

46

45 HARERE

Company
VN
2012
—E——4F
US$'000
FET
Guarantees given to bank, MERITIEL ERHELR ¢
in respect of banking facilities to:
The subsidiaries: MEBAR] :
— amount guaranteed - BEReE 810,606
- amount utilised - S 102,089
CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 46 BERKIE
2012
—E—_4F
US$’000
FET
Group AEE
Capital expenditure in respect of EERTAMER RS B 7%
the acquisition of property, plant WMERBEBA
and equipment contracted but ME - R RBE L
not provided for in the consolidated BARXH
financial statements 74,474
Capital expenditure in respect of FEERERECZEARTH
the capital injection in a joint venture =
Company VNN
Capital expenditure in respect of EEATAE R BT 1%
the acquisition of property, MRBEZBA
plant and equipment contracted M - MR REREZ
but not provided for in the BEARZH
financial statements 12,783
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47 OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 47 RKEHERIE

Lessee 1ERABEAN
At the end of the reporting period, the Group REER - AEE RARQRIRESATH
and the Company had outstanding commitments HoREHERARAREZZLHES
for future minimum lease payments under non- Z KRN
cancellable operating leases, which fall due as
follows:
Group Company
A£E Y /N
2012 2012
T4 T
US$'000 Us$'000
FET FET
Land and buildings THREF
— within 1 year - RE—F 3,393 755
—inthe 2nd to - REZFZE
5th year inclusive FHFE(EEM
FREEAN) 5,457 252
—over 5 years — RAF% 220 -
9,070 1,007
Operating lease payments represent rentals LEHEIEASEN TREER G2
payable by the Group for certain of its container e HAOETFHRTR1EI0F M
depot sites. Leases are negotiated for an average HeEBVPHIBRER1E3F -

period of 1 to 10 years and rentals are fixed for an
average of 1 to 3 years.
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47 OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

(Continued)
Lessor

At the end of the reporting period, certain
leasehold land and buildings of the Group and the
Company with an aggregate carrying amount of
US$1,241,000 (2012: US$1,283,000) were rented
out under operating leases. Property rental income
earned during the year was US$72,000 (2012:
US$85,000). These properties have committed
tenants for the next year.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group and
the Company had contracted with tenants for the
following future minimum payments under non-
cancellable operating leases:

47

REHERE#)
fERHBEA

RRERR  AEBRARRZETLE
i REFREAEA1,241,000F 7T (=
T— — 4 1,283,000 7T) JIAK &
AEME - RAFE - HHEEREWER
BHRESWAT2,000ET(ZE——F:
85,000%7T) - MYWELEARR—FAL
BHEAFRA o

RBERR - AEERANRF EATEA
ERBEAAIRECEEHERENBR
ZHEERSMZAT

Group and Company
AEBERELF
2012
—E——F
US$’000
FETT

— within 1 year -
— in the second year —

i g

85

85

—B-SEER -
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48 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

48

Group

Other than those disclosed in notes 29, 30 and 35
to the consolidated financial statements, details of
transactions between the Group and other related
parties are disclosed below.

During the year, the Group entered into the
following trading transactions with related parties
that are not members of the Group:

=]
A8
Briz A BB R M 5E29 » 30 R 351 F&

- NEBEREMEIET 2 X HFEIEH
BT o

il

A

el
A
/|

BRAIRS
=

A

RER > REBEEBAERR GEARSE
BB ) ERATEZERS :

2012
—E——4F
US$’000
FET
Sales to ultimate holding company MRAIER A FIHEE 714

Sales to fellow subsidiaries (Note) BIEELNENE
HE S m (A7) 3,071

Sales to a related company (Note) m—BEEAR
SHEEMm (MiE) 848

Rental income received from m— R 2B A A

a fellow subsidiary (Note) WERFA & (f122) 85

The fellow subsidiaries are Pacific International Lines
(China) Ltd., PIL Logistics (China) Co., Ltd. and
Strategic Times Limited, in which PIL, a substantial
shareholder of the Company, also the ultimate holding
company of the Company, has 100% effective interest.

Note:

PILHK was related because it was a company in
which Messrs. Chang Yun Chung, Teo Siong Seng
and Teo Tiou Seng, Directors of the Company and
also the controlling shareholders of PIL, a substantial
shareholder and the ultimate holding company of the
Company, have significant influence. PILHK became a
fellow subsidiary of the Company since 1 December
2012.

The balances with the related parties are disclosed
in the consolidated statement of financial position
and notes 29, 30 and 35. All such balances are
subject to normal credit terms of 30 days (2012:
30 days).
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48 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

Compensation of key management
personnel

The remuneration of Directors and other members
of key management during the year was as follows:

48

FRERAR S #)

FTEEHEASZHRM

REFEERNHEMETEZEIEAB Z HMH
L

2012
—E——F
US$’000
FET

R EREF
ZHE1& A
AR 32

Short-term employee benefits
Post-employment benefits
Share-based payment

3,197
41
106

3,344

The remuneration of Directors and key executives
is reviewed by the remuneration committee having
regard to the performance of individuals and
market trends.

Company

The balances with subsidiaries, ultimate holding
company and associates are disclosed in the
statement of financial position and notes 20, 29
and 35.

EERHMBEETBABZRME B
MEzEeaREBEEARRETSBSR
Eéj o

V. /N

Eﬁiﬂ%é@?“ﬁﬁj N ﬁ%ﬁﬁ%i\\ﬁj > Bk =
NE - BENERMB AR Z EREE
R R KM EE20 « 29 K 35 ©

SE-ZFFR - BWEECEFRAR 237




49

EVENT AFTER THE END OF THE
REPORTING PERIOD

On 19 February 2014, Teamwill International
Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, has entered into the master agreement
and the related agreements, pursuant to which
Teamwill obtained 26% of the enlarged issued
share capital of Modex Holding Limited (“Modex”),
a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands with limited liability at a consideration of
approximately US$32,500,000. A newly formed
Modex Group including Modex Holding Limited
and its subsidiaries, becomes one of the world’s
largest providers of DNV 2.7-1 offshore containers
and modules to the oil and gas industry.

Completion of the transactions contemplated
under the share transfer agreements took place
following signing and Euro Offshore Leasing AS
(“Euro Offshore”), principally engaged in selling
and leasing cargo and modules for the offshore
industry, and Modex Asia Limited (“Modex Asia”), a
company that specialises in manufacturing, trading
and leasing of offshore containers, have become
the wholly-owned subsidiaries of Modex. Modex
has become the investment holding company
for the Modex Group. As of date of signing these
agreements, Teamwill International Limited holds
26% of the enlarged issued share capital of
Modex.
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RZZE—NMHF_RA+1LH  AQF—
2 & W B 2 A Teamwill International
Limited ([ Teamwill |) 252 == 5% & #8778
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Group
%8

For the year ended 31 December

BEt_R=t-HLEE

2012 2011 2010 2009
—F-C 2% E-TF CTENE
% % % %
Sales Mix HEHE
(as a percentage of sales) (NSHEBERILA)
Manufacturing: RERH
Dry freight TEEA 69 65 78 34
Refrigerated containers REERM 13 13 8 22
Tank containers i 6 6 4 1
US domestic containers EEAEEER 5 9 5 13
Other specialised containers At R
and container parts SRERN 5 5 2 6
98 98 97 86
Logistics services: WAk -
Hong Kong BE 1 1 1 5
PRC (other than Hong Kong, hE (B - R
Macau and Taiwan) REERIM) 1 1 2 9
2 2 3 14
Total k] 100 100 100 100
TEUs TEUs TEUs TEUs
TREEN  RIEER  TREER  REER
Production volume tEE
20-foot containers 0REER 238,126 288,524 212,144 34,373
40-foot containers AORERF 47,700 60,480 31,214 7,804
40-foot high cube containers DREHEER 276,488 204,214 351,044 24,588
45-foot high cube containers BREFEER 7,500 8,220 4,644 1419
Others Hfth 30,288 66,576 37,260 18,416
600,102 648,014 636,306 86,600
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Group
73]
For the year ended 31 December

BE+-R=t-ALFE

2012 2011 2010 2009
“F-CF —F——F %% “EENE
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
T T TEn T£n
Revenue L] 1,536,608 1,817,718 1,373,173 274,647
Profit loss) from operations gasf (B8 116,734 224,188 121,787 (49,633)
Finance costs HBER (19,676) (19,121) (11,509) (10,027)
Investment income RERA 4,421 3,722 1,350 971
Reclassification of fair value BT AHRTAN
gain (l0ss) of derivative fTEERMIAY
financial instruments DA BERR (B])
designated as hedging HEREED
instruments from hedge 2R
reserve 2,427 (7,734) - -
Changes in fair value of PRRHAERHHN
derivative financial m_iﬁmﬂ;ﬂz
instruments classified as MREEE
held for trading - 931 (1,882 5,818
Share of results of associates  [EEBFE AR &) 575 112 569 665
Share of results of EREELEL
joint ventures (B8) &7 (1,602) 2,638 6,940 (6,813)
Profit (loss) before taxation BHA(B8) 87 102,879 204,736 117,261 (59,019)
Income tax expense FERES (33,948) (50,909) (14,467 (2,89)
Profit (loss) for the year RERFN (BB) 68,931 153,827 102,794 (61,915)
Attributable to: fEl
Owners of the Company YN[ 60,346 138,641 92,541 (51,914)
Non-controlling interests FERRRER 8,585 15,186 10,253 (10,001)
68,931 153,827 102,794 (61,919)
Earnings (loss) per share SRERN (B8)
Basic £X US249cents 1L USS.74cents EML  US3.84 cents L US[2.97) cents L
Diluted e US249cents ML USh.73cents Ml US3.84 cents ML US(2.97) cents
Assets and Liabilities BERAR
Total assets BEE 1,465,205 1,386,780 1,251,290 737,192
Total liabilities BEfR (816,175) (774,578) (742,723) (333,121)
649,030 612,202 508,567 404,071
Equity attributable to AATRREGER
owners of the Company 579,162 545,545 460,113 364,484
Non-controlling interests FERRRER 69,868 66,657 48454 30,587
Total equity EnEs 649,030 612,202 508,567 404,071
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SINGAMAS CONTAINER HOLDINGS LIMITED

19th Floor, Dah Sing Financial Centre

108 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
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Tel E&E: (852) 2598 7831

Fax {8 K. (852) 2598 7847

E-mail = #: info@singamas.com

Website #911t: http://www.singamas.com
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